
 

Date: July 02, 2024 

To, 

BSE Limited 

 

Listing Department,  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 

Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 

 

Scrip Code: 974215 & 974289 

 

Subject: Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for FY 2023-24  

 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

 

Please note that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is scheduled to be held on 

Wednesday, July 24, 2024. Pursuant to regulation 53(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we enclose herewith the notice 

convening AGM and the Annual Report sent to the shareholders.  

 

The said Notice and the Annual Report are also available on the website of the Company i.e. 

www.irbinfratrust.co.in.  

 

We request you to take the above on record. 

 

Thanking you. 

For Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  

 

 

 

Shilpa Todankar  

Director 

 

 

Encl.: As above 

http://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/


 

NOTICE  

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Solapur 

Yedeshi Tollway Limited will be held on Wednesday, July 24, 2024 at 11.30 a.m. (IST) at the 

registered office of the Company at Off No-11th Floor/1101, Hiranandani Knowledge Park, 

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai, 400076, to transact the following business: 

 

Ordinary Business:  

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Shilpa Todankar (DIN: 08683910), Director, who retires by 

rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. 

 

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as 

an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141 & 142 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 

force), M/s. Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 103264W), having its office 

at 304/308/309, Udyog Mandir No. 1, 7 - C, Bhagoji Keer Marg, Mahim, Mumbai- 400 016 and 

from whom certificate pursuant to Section 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 has been received, be and are hereby appointed as 

the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from the conclusion of 

ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of AGM to be held in the year 2029, 

on such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors in consultation with the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and Key Managerial Managerial Personnel of the 

Company be and are hereby severally authorized to file the necessary E-Form(s) as prescribed 

under the Companies Act, 2013 with the Registrar of Companies to notify the appointment and to 

do all such acts, deeds, things and matters as may be necessary or incidental thereto.” 

 

Special Business:  

 

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as 

an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and any other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and Regulation 23 and any other applicable 



  

provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the circulars and guidelines issued thereunder (“SEBI 

LODR”), and other applicable regulations, if any, including any statutory modifications, 

amendments or re-enactments to each of the foregoing, and applicable notifications, clarifications, 

circulars, rules and regulations issued by any competent authority in India from time to time, read 

with the Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company pursuant to approval of the Audit 

Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company vide their resolutions dated June 26, 2024 

and earlier passed Board resolution dated February 10, 2020, the ratification/consent/approval of 

the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for a) the Project Implementation 

Agreement dated February 3, 2020, entered into with IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited 

(IRBIDL) for appointment of IRBIDL as Project Manager to undertake the construction, 

operation, management and maintenance of Project, as per the terms provided in the Project 

Implementation Agreement (the PIA) and b) the Name Licensing Agreement dated February 13, 

2020, entered into with IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited (IRBIDL) for usage of Trademark 

and Logo owned by IRBIDL, as per the terms provided in NLA (the NLA), (details provided in 

explanatory statement) to be considered as related party transactions/ contracts/ arrangements 

(whether by way of an individual transaction or series of transactions taken together) entered into 

by the Company with IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited (IRBIDL) and its Subsidiaries. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee(s) thereof) be 

and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to do all acts, deeds, things, and matters, 

including sub-delegation of all, or any of these powers, as may be required or are necessary to 

give effect to these resolutions or as otherwise to be in the best interest of the Company, including 

any negotiations, finalizations, amendments, supplements or modifications to the agreements, 

deeds, letters, undertakings and any other documents in relation to the above transactions, as 

applicable or appropriate, to carry out and complete the above 

contracts/arrangements/transactions, and in relation to the above transactions, to negotiate and 

finalize the terms and conditions of any agreements, memoranda, documents, letters, deeds or 

instruments as may be required in this regard, as well as any amendments, modifications, 

supplements or terminations to documents, including to appoint any advisers, valuers, experts or 

other persons and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its discretion, deem 

necessary, proper or desirable for such purpose, and to make any filings, furnish any returns or 

submit any other documents to any regulatory or governmental authorities as may be required, 

and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt and further to do or cause to be done all such acts, 

deeds, matters and things and to negotiate, finalize and execute all agreements, documents, 

papers, instruments and writings as it may deem necessary, proper, desirable or expedient and to 

give such directions and/or instructions as it may deem fit from time to time, to decide and to 

accept and give effect to such modifications, adjustments, changes, variations, alterations, 

deletions and/or additions as regards the terms and conditions as may be required, without being 

required to seek further consent or approval of the shareholders of the Company or otherwise to 

the end and intent that the shareholders of the Company shall be deemed to have given their 

approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution. 

 



  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board (including any Committee(s) 

thereof) authorized pursuant to the above resolution in connection with any matter(s) referred to 

or contemplated in the foregoing resolution be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in 

all respects.” 

 

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as 

an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and any other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and Regulation 23 and any other applicable 

provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the circulars and guidelines issued thereunder (“SEBI 

LODR”), and other applicable regulations, if any, including any statutory modifications, 

amendments or re-enactments to each of the foregoing, and applicable notifications, clarifications, 

circulars, rules and regulations issued by any competent authority in India from time to time, read 

with the Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company pursuant to approval of the Audit 

Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company vide their resolutions dated June 26, 2024 

and earlier passed Board resolution dated February 10, 2020, the ratification/consent/approval of 

the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for a) Debt Novation Agreement dated 

February 19, 2020, entered into with IRB Infrastructure Trust (the Trust/ the Holding Entity) to 

novate Subordinated Debt and the Unsecured Loans in favour of the Trust obtained for the project 

development purpose, as per the terms provided in Debt Novation Agreement (the DNA) and b) 

Shareholders Loan Agreement dated February 19, 2020 (SLA), entered into with IRB 

Infrastructure Trust (the Trust/ the Holding Entity) to obtain loans from the Trust in one or more 

tranches, as per the terms provided in Shareholders Loan Agreement (the SLA), (details provided 

in explanatory statement) to considered as related party transactions/ contracts/ arrangements 

(whether by way of an individual transaction or series of transactions taken together) entered into 

by the Company with IRB Infrastructure Trust. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee(s) thereof) be 

and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to do all acts, deeds, things, and matters, 

including sub-delegation of all, or any of these powers, as may be required or are necessary to 

give effect to these resolutions or as otherwise to be in the best interest of the Company, including 

any negotiations, finalizations, amendments, supplements or modifications to the agreements, 

deeds, letters, undertakings and any other documents in relation to the above transactions, as 

applicable or appropriate, to carry out and complete the above 

contracts/arrangements/transactions, and in relation to the above transactions, to negotiate and 

finalize the terms and conditions of any agreements, memoranda, documents, letters, deeds or 

instruments as may be required in this regard, as well as any amendments, modifications, 

supplements or terminations to documents, including to appoint any advisers, valuers, experts or 

other persons and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its discretion, deem 

necessary, proper or desirable for such purpose, and to make any filings, furnish any returns or 

submit any other documents to any regulatory or governmental authorities as may be required, 



  

and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt and further to do or cause to be done all such acts, 

deeds, matters and things and to negotiate, finalize and execute all agreements, documents, 

papers, instruments and writings as it may deem necessary, proper, desirable or expedient and to 

give such directions and/or instructions as it may deem fit from time to time, to decide and to 

accept and give effect to such modifications, adjustments, changes, variations, alterations, 

deletions and/or additions as regards the terms and conditions as may be required, without being 

required to seek further consent or approval of the shareholders of the Company or otherwise to 

the end and intent that the shareholders of the Company shall be deemed to have given their 

approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board (including any Committee(s) 

thereof) authorized pursuant to the above resolution in connection with any matter(s) referred to 

or contemplated in the foregoing resolution be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in 

all respects.” 

 

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as 

an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, 

if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 

and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or 

re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s. JNP & 

Associates, Cost & Management Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000572), appointed by the 

Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2024-25, amounting to Rs. 50,000/- p.a. (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) be and is 

hereby ratified and confirmed.”     

 

Regd. Office: 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani 

Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 

Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 400076  

 

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                    

Date: June 26, 2024 

By order of the Board 

For Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

 

 

Sd/- 

                  Shilpa Todankar                 

                                                                      Director  

DIN : 08683910 

Address: 408, Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, 

Kondivita, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400059 

 

  



  

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Item No. 2 

 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar (holding DIN: 08683910) was appointed as Director liable to retire by rotation 

on June 22, 2022. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, being the 

director appointed with longest tenure, Ms. Shilpa would retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting of the Company. Ms. Shilpa being eligible has offered herself for re-appointment as 

Director liable to retire by rotation. Further the Board of Directors also recommended her 

appointment as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar, 40 years, joined the IRB group in September 2009. She is a member of the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India since 2011. She holds a diploma in Information System 

Audit from Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. She has more than 10 years of experience in 

the fields of accountancy, audit and taxation in the IRB group. She is also functioning as Chief 

Financial Officer of the Investment Manager to IRB Infrastructure Trust (the Holding Entity). 

 

Ms. Shilpa does not hold share in the Company. The details of Board Meetings attended by her 

during the year under review are given in Board’s Report. She is not related to any Director and/or 

Key Managerial Personnel of the company. The Directorship and Membership of Committees held by 

Ms. Shilpa in other companies is as given below: 

 

Sr. 

No 

Names of the Companies  Director / Membership of Committee 

1.  CG Tollway Limited Director, Member of Audit Committee & 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee. 

2.  AE Tollway Limited Director, Member of Audit Committee & 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee. 

3.  IRB Hapur Moradabad Tollway Limited Director, Member of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Chairperson of 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 

4.  Kishangarh Gulabpura Tollway Limited Director, Member of Audit Committee & 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee. 

5.  Udaipur Tollway Limited Director, Member of Audit Committee & 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility 



  

Committee. 

6.  Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited Director, Member of Audit Committee, member 

of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee, Member of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee and Member of Risk Management 

Committee 

7.  IRB Westcoast Tollway Limited Director, Member of Audit Committee, Member 

of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee. 

8.  Kaithal Tollway Limited Director, Member of Audit Committee, Member 

of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee. 

9.  IRB Kota Tollway Limited Director 

10.  IRB Lalitpur Tollway Private Limited Director 

11.  IRB Gwalior Tollway Private Limited Director 

 

Except Ms. Shilpa, being an appointee, none of the Directors of the Company and their relatives is 

concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 2. 

 

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval of 

the members. 

 

Item No. 4 

 

The Members are requested to note that the Company was transferred to IRB Infrastructure Trust (the 

Holding Entity/ The Trust) by IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited (Sponsor to the Trust, IRBIDL) 

in February 2020. Pursuant to the provisions of SEBI InvIT Regulations, 2014, as amended, the 

Company was required to appoint the Project Manager and accordingly, it has executed the Project 

Implementation Agreement dated February 3, 2020, (the PIA) with IRBIDL and accordingly 

appointed IRBDIL as the Project Manager to undertake the construction, operation, management and 

maintenance of Project, as per the terms provided in PIA. The said transaction between the Company 

and IRBIDL was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on January 31, 2020, pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Further the Company had entered into the Name Licensing Agreement dated February 13, 2020, (the 

NLA) with the IRBIDL, wherein IRBIDL authorized the Company to use IRB Logo and trademark 

owned by IRBIDL, for its business purpose. The said transaction between the Company and IRBIDL 

was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on February 10, 2020, pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. 



  

 

The aforesaid transactions have been entered into by the Company since it was in phase of transfer to 

IRB Infrastructure Trust from IRBIDL (earlier Holding Entity), the Sponsor to the Trust and in 

accordance with applicable provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations. Aforesaid agreements/ 

arrangements were agreed with and approved by the lenders, financial investors and the Investment 

Manager to the Trust. Since then the Company has from time to time entered into transactions with 

the Sponsor or its subsidiaries, under the purview of the PIA & NLA entered. The Company has been 

benefitted by entering into aforementioned agreements. For information, other Project SPVs which 

were also transferred to the Trust along with the Company, have also entered into similar agreements 

for appointment of IRBIDL as Project Manager, for implementation of their respective projects. 

 

The Company had issued and allotted the listed debt securities in October 2022 (more than Rs. 500 

Crore) and accordingly, it was classified as the High Value Debt Listed entity with effect from 

October 2022, pursuant to the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (the “SEBI LODR”). The provisions of 

Reg. 16 to Reg. 27, were made applicable to the High Value Debt Listed Entities from September 7, 

2021, on comply and explain basis up to March 31, 2025.  

 

The Provisions of Reg. 23 of SEBI LODR were amended w.e.f. April 1, 2022, and the SEBI vide its 

circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2022/40 dated March 30, 2022, had clarified that all 

existing material related party contracts or arrangements entered into prior to the date of notification 

of these regulations and which may continue beyond such date shall be placed for approval of the 

shareholders in the first General Meeting subsequent to notification of these regulations. Therefore, 

the Company being high value debt listed entity, in order to comply with the provisions of Reg. 23 of 

SEBI LODR and the circulars issued thereunder, it is proposed to the shareholders to ratify, approve 

and adopt the material related party transactions entered into by the Company. 

 

The details required to be provided pursuant to Section III-B of SEBI Circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, are as under: 

 

Sr 

No. 

Description Details of proposed RPTs 

1 Name of the Related Party and its 

relationship with the Company or its 

subsidiary, including nature of its concern 

or interest (financial or otherwise). 

IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited (the Sponsor to 

IRB Infrastructure Trust, the Holding entity) and / or 

its Subsidiary(ies) 

The RPT is continuing arrangement and will continue 

to be in existence for the period mentioned in Project 

Implementation Agreement and Name Licensing 

Agreement. 

2 Type, material terms, monetary value and 

particulars of the proposed RPTs. 

i) Ratification/ Approval for the Project 

Implementation Agreement (PIA) entered into with 

IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited (IRBIDL) 

for operations and maintenance of Project, as per 

the terms provided in PIA. Total consideration to 



  

be paid under the PIA entered: ~Rs. 266.14 Crore. 

 

ii) Ratification/ Approval for the Name Licensing 

Agreement (NLA), entered into with IRB 

Infrastructure Developers Limited (IRBIDL) for 

usage of Trademark and Logo owned by IRBIDL, 

as per the terms provided in NLA. Total 

consideration to be paid under the NLA entered: 

Nil. 

3 Tenure of the transactions i) Project Implementation Agreement (PIA) – 11 

years effective from February 2020 up to March 

2030. 

ii) Name Licensing Agreement (NLA) – a) Sponsor or 

its subsidiary ceases to be sponsor of the Trust, b) 

up to the date IRBIDL holds 51% equity share 

capital of the Investment Manager.  

4 Value of the proposed transactions i) Project Implementation Agreement (PIA) – 

aggregating approx. Rs. 266.14 Crore to be paid in 

tranches over the period of 11 years. 

 

ii) Name Licensing Agreement (NLA) – Nil 

5 Percentage of the Company’s annual 

consolidated turnover, for the immediately 

preceding financial year, that is 

represented by the value of the proposed 

RPTs. 

For PIA: ~198%  

For NLA: Not Applicable. 

(w.r.t turnover for March 31, 2024) 

6 Justification for why the proposed 

transaction is in the interest of the 

Company. 

The Investment Manager to IRB Infrastructure Trust 

has appointed IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited 

as Project Manager, which is India’s leading and the 

largest infrastructure developer in roads and highways 

sector in India.  

7 Where the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made 

or given by the Company or its subsidiary 

a) Details of the source of funds in 

connection with the proposed transaction. 

Not Applicable 

b) Where any financial indebtedness is 

incurred to make or give loans, inter-

corporate deposits, advances or 

investments:  

• Nature of indebtedness  

• Cost of funds and  

• Tenure. 

Not Applicable 

c) Applicable terms, including covenants, 

tenure, interest rate and repayment 

schedule, whether secured or unsecured; if 

secured, the nature of security 

Not Applicable 

d) The purpose for which the funds will be 

utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of such 

funds pursuant to the RPT 

Not Applicable 



  

8 Valuation or other external report, if any, 

relied upon by the listed entity in relation 

to the proposed transactions 

EPC and O&M / project implementation contracts with 

related parties are independently reviewed for arms-

length consideration and industry benchmarking as 

may be applicable, for similar categories of 

transactions. 

9 Any other information that may be 

relevant 

All relevant information is being considered. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in any way 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.  

 

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for 

approval by the Members. 

 

Item No. 5 

 

The Members are requested to note that the Company was transferred to IRB Infrastructure Trust (the 

Holding Entity/ The Trust) by IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited (Sponsor to the Trust, IRBIDL) 

in February 2020. The Company had entered into the Debt Novation Agreement dated February 19, 

2020, to novate Subordinated Debt and the Unsecured Loans in favour of the Trust obtained for the 

project development purpose. Further the Company had entered into the Shareholders Loan 

Agreement dated February 19, 2020, for obtaining debt financing from the Trust in or more tranches. 

The aforesaid transactions between the Company and Holding entity was approved by the Board of 

Directors of the Company on February 19, 2020. 

 

The aforesaid transactions have been entered into by the Company since it was in phase of transfer to 

IRB Infrastructure Trust from IRBIDL (earlier Holding Entity), the Sponsor to the Trust and in 

accordance with applicable provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations. Aforesaid agreements/ 

arrangements were agreed with and approved by the lenders, financial investors and the Investment 

Manager to the Trust. Since then the Company has from time to time entered into transactions with 

the Trust, under the purview of the SLA entered. The Company has been benefitted by entering into 

aforementioned agreements. For information, other Project SPVs which were also transferred to the 

Trust along with the Company, have also entered into similar agreements for appointment of IRBIDL 

as Project Manager, for implementation of their respective projects. 

 

The Company had issued and allotted the listed debt securities in October 2022 (more than Rs. 500 

Crore) and accordingly, it was classified as the High Value Debt Listed entity with effect from 

October 2022, pursuant to the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (the “SEBI LODR”). The provisions of 

Reg. 16 to Reg. 27, were made applicable to the High Value Debt Listed Entities on comply and 

explain basis from September 7, 2021, up to March 31, 2025.  

 



  

The Provisions of Reg. 23 of SEBI LODR were amended w.e.f. April 1, 2022, and the SEBI vide its 

circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2022/40 dated March 30, 2022, had clarified that all 

existing material related party contracts or arrangements entered into prior to the date of notification 

of these regulations and which may continue beyond such date shall be placed for approval of the 

shareholders in the first General Meeting subsequent to notification of these regulations. Therefore, 

the Company being high value debt listed entity, in order to comply with the provisions of Reg. 23 of 

SEBI LODR and the circulars issued thereunder, it is proposed to the shareholders to ratify, approve 

and adopt the material related party transactions entered into by the Company. 

 

The Members are requested to note that the Company is wholly owned Project SPV of IRB 

Infrastructure Trust (Holding Entity) an Infrastructure Investment Trust registered under the SEBI 

InvIT Regulations. The Holding Entity is also Listed Infrastructure Investment Trust (privately 

placed) and complies with applicable provisions in relation to related party transaction from time to 

time.  The financials of the Company are also consolidated with Holding Entity and the same are 

placed before the Unitholder of the Trust for their approval. 

 

As Per Regulation 23 of SEBI LODR, approval of the members for related party transactions is not 

required to be obtained for the transactions entered between a holding company and its wholly owned 

subsidiary whose accounts are consolidated with such holding company and placed before the 

shareholders at the general meeting for approval.  

However, the Trust is not a Company and consequently not a Holding Company. Therefore, as a 

matter of abundant caution, the Company has proposed to sought the approval/ratification of the 

members for the aforesaid transactions/Contract/arrangements as stated in the ordinary resolutions at 

item no. 5 of the accompanying Notice.  

 

The details required to be provided pursuant to Section III-B of SEBI Circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, are as under: 

 

Sr 

No. 

Description Details of proposed RPTs 

1 Name of the Related Party and its 

relationship with the Company or its 

subsidiary, including nature of its concern 

or interest (financial or otherwise). 

IRB Infrastructure Trust (the Trust/ the Holding entity) 

The RPT is continuing arrangement and will continue 

to be in existence till existence of Concession period. 

2 Type, material terms, monetary value and 

particulars of the proposed RPTs. 

Ratification/ approval for the Debt Novation 

Agreement dated February 19, 2020 (DNA), entered 

into with IRB Infrastructure Trust (the Trust/ the 

Holding Entity) to novate Subordinated Debt and the 

Unsecured Loans in favour of the Trust obtained for 

the project development purpose, as per the terms 

provided in DNA. 

Shareholders Loan Agreement dated February 19, 

2020 (SLA), entered into with IRB Infrastructure Trust 

(the Trust/ the Holding Entity) to obtain loans from the 

Trust in one or more tranches, as per the terms 



  

provided in SLA. 

3 Tenure of the transactions As may be mutually agreed between the Parties. 

4 Value of the proposed transactions Debt Novation Agreement: Rs. 441.77 Crore 

Shareholders Loan Agreement: Rs. 2,500 Crore 

5 Percentage of the Company’s annual 

consolidated turnover, for the immediately 

preceding financial year, that is 

represented by the value of the proposed 

RPTs. 

Debt Novation Agreement: ~330% 

Shareholders Loan Agreement: ~2101% 

(w.r.t turnover for March 31, 2024) 

6 Justification for why the proposed 

transaction is in the interest of the 

Company. 

To enable to Company to borrow from the Holding 

Entity as per the requirement of the project on the 

terms mutually agreed between the parties. 

7 Where the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made 

or given by the Company or its subsidiary 

a) Details of the source of funds in 

connection with the proposed transaction. 

Not Applicable 

b) Where any financial indebtedness is 

incurred to make or give loans, inter-

corporate deposits, advances or 

investments:  

• Nature of indebtedness  

• Cost of funds and  

• Tenure. 

Not Applicable 

c) Applicable terms, including covenants, 

tenure, interest rate and repayment 

schedule, whether secured or unsecured; if 

secured, the nature of security 

Not Applicable 

d) The purpose for which the funds will be 

utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of such 

funds pursuant to the RPT 

Not Applicable 

8 Valuation or other external report, if any, 

relied upon by the listed entity in relation 

to the proposed transactions 

- 

9 Any other information that may be 

relevant 

All relevant information is being considered. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in any way 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.  

 

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for 

approval by the Members. 

 

Item No. 6 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. JNP & Associates, Cost & Management 

Accountant (Firm Registration No. 000572), to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company 

for the financial year 2024-25. In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 



  

2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014 and Rule 14(a)(ii) of The 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is to be 

ratified by the Members of the Company. The remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand 

only) per annum is payable to M/s. JNP & Associates, Cost Accountant for the audit to be conducted 

for financial year 2024-25. Accordingly, the Members are requested to ratify the remuneration 

payable to the Cost Auditors for the audit to be conducted for financial year 2024-25. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in any way 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.  

 

 

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for 

approval by the Members. 

 

 

 

Regd. Office: 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani 

Knowledge Park, Technology Street, 

Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 

400076 

 

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                    

Date: June 26, 2024 

By order of the Board 

For Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  

 

 

 

Sd/- 

                                                                  Shilpa Todankar                 

                                                                      Director  

DIN : 08683910 

Address: 408, Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, Kondivita, 

Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400059 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



  

NOTES: 

 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE IN THE 

MEETING AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.  

 

2. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 

FIFTY (50) MEMBERS AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN 

PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING 

VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE 

TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY 

APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS 

PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. 

 

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are 

requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 

representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 

4. The instrument appointing the proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 

not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

 

5. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached and 

forms part of this notice. 

 

6. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 

Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the 

Annual General Meeting. 

 

7. The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interest, maintained under 

Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the 

Annual General Meeting. 

 

8. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the 

members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturday(s), 

Sunday(s) and public holiday(s), between 10.00 a.m. to 12.00 Noon up to the date of the Meeting. 
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Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  

CIN: U45400MH2014PLC251983 

Registered Office: Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 

Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 400076 072 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 

Annual General Meeting, Wednesday, July 24, 2024 at 11.30 a.m. 

 

 

Regd. Folio No.   / DP ID  Client Id/Ben. A/C  No. of shares held   

 

 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER 

 

 

 

I certify that I am a member/proxy for the member of the Company. 

 

I hereby record my presence at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on 

Wednesday, July 24, 2024 at 11.30 a.m. at Off No-11th Floor/1101, Hiranandani Knowledge Park, 

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai Mumbai 400076. 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature 

 

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. Members/Proxy 

holders are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report with them to the Annual General 

Meeting. 

 

 



  

Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

CIN: U45400MH2014PLC251983 

Registered Office: Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 

Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 400076  

 

Name of the member (s):  

Registered address:   

E-mail Id:   

Folio No/ Client Id:  

DP ID:  

 

I/We, being the member (s) of ………….……. shares of Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited, hereby 

appoint.  

1. …………………… of …………………. having e-mail Id: ………………………., or failing him  

2. ………………… of ……………………. having e-mail Id: ………………………., or failing him  

3. ………………… of ……………………. having e-mail Id: ………………………………………. 

  

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us 

and on my/our behalf at the Annual general meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, July 

24, 2024 at 11.30 a.m. at Off No-11th Floor/1101, Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, 

Hill Side Avenue, Powai Mumbai 400076 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 

resolutions as are indicated below: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Resolutions For Against 

1.  

 

Consider and adopt Audited Financial Statement, Reports of the Board of  

Directors and Auditors  

  

2.  

 

To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Shilpa Todankar (DIN: 08683910),  

Director, who retires by rotation and, being eligible, seeks re-appointment.  

  

3.  Appointment of Statutory Auditor   

4.  

 

Ratification/Approval of Related Party Transactions entered with IRB  

Infrastructure Developers Limited and its subsidiaries 

  

5.  

 

Ratification/Approval of Related Party Transactions entered with IRB  

Infrastructure Developers Limited and its subsidiaries 

  

6.  Ratification of remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditor   

 

Signed this…… day of……………… 2024. 
Affix  

Revenue  

Stamp 



  

 

 

Signature of shareholder 

 

 

Signature of First Proxy holder Signature of Second Proxy holder   Signature of Third Proxy holder 

 

Notes: 

 

(1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

meeting. 

(2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

(3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the 

aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A 

member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights 

may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person 

or shareholder. 

(4) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so 

wishes. 

(5) In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the 

joint holders should be stated. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board’s Report 

Dear Stakeholders,  

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their report on the business and operations, along with the 

audited financial statements of your Company, for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

(Amount in millions)  

Particulars Year ended March 

31, 2024 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Total Income 1,399.92 1,312.68 

Total Expenditure 344.2 285.70 

Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax 1,055.72 1,026.98 

Less: Finance costs 

  Depreciation 

1,742.92 

156.93 

1,083.45 

168.97 

Profit/ loss before tax (844.13) (225.44) 

Less: Provision for tax   

Current tax 0.47 - 

MAT Credit Entitlement - - 

Deferred tax - - 

Profit/ loss after tax before minority interest (844.60) (225.44) 

Less: Minority interest - - 

Profit/ loss after tax and after minority interest (844.60) (225.44) 

Add: Profit/ loss at the beginning of the year (2283.71) (2058.25) 

Profit available for appropriation          (3,128.31)         (2,283.71) 

Appropriations: 

Interim Dividend/ Proposed Interim Dividend 

Tax on equity dividend 

Transfer to General Reserve 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period: 

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

- 

Balance Carried Forward to Balance Sheet (3,128.31) (2,283.71) 

 

  Your Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the General Reserves. 

 

OPERATION AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW  

 

During the year, your Company earned total income of Rs. 1,399.92 millions and Earnings before 

Interest, Depreciation and Tax of Rs. 1,055.72 millions for the year ended March 31, 2024. After 



 

providing for Finance costs of Rs. 1,742.92 millions and for Depreciation and amortization of Rs. 156.93 

millions, the Loss before tax is Rs. (844.13) millions. The net Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 

stood at Rs. (844.60) millions, as against Loss of Rs. (225.44) millions for the previous year.  

 

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company, during the year under review. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments, if any, are given in the Notes to the Financial 

Statements. 

 

DIVIDEND  

 

Your Company has not recommended any dividend for the year under review. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

As on March 31, 2024 the Authorized and Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at                        

Rs. 98,25,00,000/-. During the year under review, there were no changes in the authorized and paid up 

share capital of the Company. 

 

DEBENTURES 

 

As on March 31, 2024 the Company has outstanding Non- Convertible Debentures of Rs 591 Crores. The 

Debentures issued by the Company are listed with BSE Limited. During the year under review Company 

has not issued any Debt security. 

 

Debenture Trustees 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 

Address: 202, Maker Tower, ‘E’, 

Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai – 400005 

Email: corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 

Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com 

Contact No. 022 4302 5555 

Fax – 022 22040465 

 

 

 



 

 

CREDIT RATING OF COMPANY  

 

CRISIL Ratings Limited has re-affirmed rating of CRISIL AAA/Stable for Non-Convertible Debentures 

of Rs.5,910 Million. 

 

BORROWINGS  

 

As on March 31, 2024, your Company’s project borrowings availed stood at Rs.5,910 Millions. 

 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

 

During the year under review, the Company had no subsidiary(ies). 

 

CHANGE IN HOLDING COMPANY 

 

During the year under review, there is no change in holding entity of the Company. 

 

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL  

As on March 31, 2024, the Board comprises of Mr. Abhay Phatak, Ms. Shilpa Todankar, Mrs. Ranjana 

Paranjape and Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan, as Directors of the Company. 

 

During the year under review, Mr. Mitesh Kamariya resigned from the position of Company Secretary 

and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. April 18, 2023.  

 

During the year under review, Ms. Bhumi Trivedi was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance 

Officer of the Company w.e.f July 18, 2023 and she resigned from the position of Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer w.e.f.  November 24, 2023. 

 

During the year under review, Ms. Rishika Rawat was appointed as the Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f February 20, 2024 and Ms. Rishika resigned from the post 

w.e.f.  May 22, 2024. 

 

During the year under review, there was no change in the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

 



 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar (DIN: 08683910), Director of the Company, is liable to retire by rotation at the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. Your 

Directors recommend her appointment as Director liable to retire by rotation. 

 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 

down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

On the basis of confirmation received by the Company, all Directors including Independent Directors 

appointed during the year have complied with the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company. Further 

based on the confirmations and disclosures received, the Board also states that Independent Directors are 

person of person of integrity and has adequate experience to serve as an Independent Director of your 

Company.  

 

BOARD EVALUATION  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance 

evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of 

its Committees.  

 

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key 

areas: 

i. Attendance of Directors in Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings 

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations 

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance 

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management 

v. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests 

 

The evaluation involves Self-Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board 

of Directors. A member of the Board does not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation. 

  

The Board found its members’ performance satisfactory.  

 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee 

members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 

meetings, etc. 

 

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, Chairperson of 

the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of non-executive directors. Performance 



 

evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director 

being evaluated. 

 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY  

 

The Board had adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy which sets out the guidelines regarding the 

nomination, remuneration and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and employees of the 

Company. 

 

The policy on Directors/Key Managerial Personnel’s appointment & remuneration is annexed herewith as 

“Annexure A”. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES, COMMITMENTS, IF ANY: 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report. 

 

MEETINGS 

 

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors met as and when business required. The 

intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Details of dates of meetings of the Board and its committee held during the financial year, indicating 

the number of meetings attended by each director and composition of committees is given in “Annexure 

B”. 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

 

As required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, reports on 

Corporate Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 forms part of the Annual Report. A 

Certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary on the compliance with the provisions of Corporate 

Governance is annexed to the Corporate Governance Report. 



 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 

operations as approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Internal Financial Controls are 

adequate and working effectively.  

 

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit is laid down by the Audit Committee and accordingly the 

Internal Audit Plan is laid out. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditors reports 

to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

 

The Internal Auditors monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the 

Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of 

the Company. Based on the report of internal audit, process owners/concern department undertake 

corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit 

observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Company. 

 

OTHER DISLOSURE 

 

Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013 is mentioned in “Annexure C”. 

 

WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM 

 

The Company has adopted whistleblower policy to deal with genuine concerns of the employees and 

directors. All Employees and Directors are made aware of the whistleblower mechanism. The Company 

has established a system to ensure  functioning of the said mechanism. During the year under review, the 

Company has not received any complaints under Whistle Blower Mechanism. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

The Annual Return as required under Section 92 and Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 shall be made available on the 

website at https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in, once it is filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

M/s. MKPS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 302014E), Statutory Auditors 

of the Company, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company a period of 5 years commencing 



 

from the conclusion of Annual General Meeting (AGM) held in the year 2019 until the conclusion of 

AGM to be held in the year 2024. The 2nd term of the Statutory Auditors would be completed at the 

conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by Statutory Auditors in their report for 

the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at its 

meeting held on June 26, 2024 has approved the appointment of M/s. Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered 

Accountants (Firm Registration No. 103264W) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 

5 (five) Consecutive years, commencing from the conclusion of ensuing AGM till the conclusion of the 

AGM to be held in the year 2029, subject to the approval by the Members of the Company at the ensuing 

AGM. As required under the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has 

received a written certificate from the Auditors proposed to be appointed to the effect that their 

appointment, if made would be in conformity with the limits specified in the said section. Further the 

Company has also received a confirmation from the Auditor’s that they satisfy the criteria provided 141 

of the Companies Act, 2013. Necessary resolution to consider above appointment is included in the 

Notice of the Annual General Meeting. 

COST AUDITORS  

 

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 

Amendment Rules, 2014, the Cost Audit Records maintained by the Company in respect of its road 

construction activity is required to be audited. Accordingly, for the Financial Year 2023-24, the company has 

maintained and audited its cost records from M/S. V R & Associates, Cost Auditor as per section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

For Financial Year 2024-25, your Directors have appointed M/s. JNP & Associates, Cost & Management 

Accountant (Firm Registration No. 000572) to audit the cost records of the Company on remuneration 

amounting to Rs. 50,000/-. As required under the Act, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required 

to be placed before the Members in a general meeting for their ratification. Accordingly, a resolution seeking 

Member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s. JNP & Associates, Cost Auditors is included in the 

Notice convening the Annual General Meeting. 

  

SECRETARIAL AUDIT  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. MMJB & 

Associates LLP, Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 



 

Financial Year 2023-24. The Company, in order to comply with Section 203 of the Act, had been seeking 

competent candidates and it would continue to make reasonable efforts to recruit/depute competent 

persons so as to comply with applicable provisions. 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as “Annexure D”. 

 

FIXED DEPOSITS  

 

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit from public during the year under review.  

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in compliance with 

the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, and necessary approvals 

have been obtained as required. 

 

The details of contract and arrangements entered with related parties, if any, are provided in form AOC 2, 

annexed herewith as “Annexure E”. For disclosure, transaction/s more than 10% of Annual turnover 

with related party are considered material. 

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going 

concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key 

business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed 

through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.  

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  

 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 

them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 

2013: 

 



 

a. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 

the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures, if any; 

 

b. that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been 

selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 

and of the loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

 

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

e. that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were 

adequate and operating effectively. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  

 

During the year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

The Company doesn’t have any employee on its roll, hence the provisions of Section 197(12) are not 

applicable. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

There were no earnings / expenditures in the foreign currency, during the year under consideration. 

 

Since the Company does not have any manufacturing facility, the other particulars required to be provided 

in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 are not applicable. 

  



 

PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: 

 

During the year under review no instances were reported / initiated by or against the Company under the 

aforesaid code. 

 

Further, there were no instances occurred during the year under review which would lead to any valuation 

being carried out arising due to one-time settlements for the loans taken from Banks / financial 

institutions. 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

 

 

Sd/-        Sd/- 

Shilpa Todankar      Abhay Phatak 

Director       Director 

DIN: 08683910       DIN: 09519500 

Address: 408, Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, Address: B/106, Shashank CHS       

Kondivita, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400059   Mulund Vikroli Link Road, 

Bhandup Village, Bhandup (East) 

Mumbai - 400042 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: June 26, 2024 



 

Annexure A 

Criteria for appointment of Board of Directors 

 

As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board shall have required number of independent 

directors of their Board. Further, as per SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, the 

majority Directors on the Board of the Company will be appointed by the Investment Manager in 

consultation with the Trustee of IRB Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”). 

 

The members of the Board of Directors are expected to possess the required expertise, skill and 

experience to effectively manage and direct the objectives of the Trust to attain its organizational & 

business goals. They are expected to be persons with vision, leadership qualities, proven competence and 

integrity, and with a strategic bent of mind. 

 

Each member of the Board of Directors is expected to ensure that his/ her personal interest does not run in 

conflict with the company’s interests. Moreover, each member is expected to use his/ her professional 

judgment to maintain both the substance and appearance of professionalism and objectivity. 

 

Remuneration Policy 

 

The Company doesn’t have any employee on its roll.  

 

Remuneration to Director/s, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 

 

The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director/s and Key Managerial 

Personnel, if any, shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 

under or any other enactment for the time being in force. The remuneration including incentives to Senior 

Management shall be in accordance with the Company’s policy. A performance appraisal be carried out 

annually and promotions or incentives or increment will be based on performance and the Company’s 

Policy. 

 

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director 

 

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as per 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made thereunder. The amount of sitting fees for 

attending Board and Committee meetings shall be fixed by Board of Directors, from time to time, subject 

to ceiling/ limits as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other 

enactment for the time being in force. 



 

Annexure B 

 

The Details of dates of meetings of the Board & Committees and Composition of Committees of the 

Board of Directors 

 

As on 31.03.2024, the Board of Directors consists of the following members: 

 

1. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   Non-executive Director  

2. Mr. Abhay Phatak   Non-executive Director 

3. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape   Independent Director 

4. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan  Independent Director 

 

As on 31.03.2024, the Audit Committee consists of the following members –  

 

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  - Chairperson 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   -Member 

3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan  -Member 

 

As on 31.03.2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following members –  

 

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  - Chairperson 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   -Member 

3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan  -Member 

 

As on 31.03.2024, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee consists of the following members –  

 

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  - Chairperson 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   -Member 

3. Mr. Abhay Phatak   -Member 

 

As on 31.03.2024, the Risk Management Committee consists of the following members –  

 

1. Mrs. Shilpa Todankar   - Chairperson 

2. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan -Member 

3. Mr. Abhay Phatak   -Member 

  



 

Number of Board/ Committee Meetings attended by the Directors 

 

Name of Director Board 

Meetings 

Audit 

Committee 

Nomination 

and 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Stakeholder 

Relationship 

Committee 

Risk 

Management 

Committee 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 11 9 3 2 2 

Mr. Chandrashekhar 

Kaptan  

10 9 3 N.A. 2 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 11 N.A. N.A. 2 2 

Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 11 9 3 2 N.A. 

 

Date of Board Meetings held during the year 

 

Sr. No. Date of the Meeting Board  Audit 

Committee 

N&R 

Committee  

Stakeholder 

Relationship 

Committee 

Risk 

Management 

Committee 

1.  April 27, 2023 √ √ - - - 

2.  July 03, 2023 √ √ √ - - 

3.  July 18, 2023 √ √ √ - - 

4.  July 27, 2023 √ √ - - - 

5.  August 30, 2023 √ √ - - - 

6.  September 25, 2023 √ - - - √ 

7.  October 23, 2023 √ √ - - - 

8.  January 19, 2024 √ √ - √ - 

9.  February 20, 2024 √ - √ √ - 

10.  March 6, 2024 √ √ - - - 

11.  March 15, 2024 √ √ - - - 

12.  March 23, 2024 - - - - √ 

 

 

 

  



 

Annexure C 

 

Disclosure as per Sexual Harrassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder, the Company has not received any 

complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review. 

 

The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee 

as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013. 

  



 

Annexure D 

FORM NO. MR.3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2024 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To,  

The Members, 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai, Mumbai- 400076, Maharashtra. 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited (hereinafter called ‘the 

Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance of 

records based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing 

Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Auditing Standards requires that 

the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our 

opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 

(hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 

that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent and in the 

manner reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provision of: 



 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under; 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;  

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 

 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015;  

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 

 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018. 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) and 

 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 

2014; to the extent applicable to the listed entity; 

 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 



 

 

1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder. (‘Listing Regulations') Further, the 

Company being High Value Debt Listed Entity, it is complying with the provisions of 

Listing Regulations on Comply and Explain basis and is in the process of full compliance. 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines and Standards etc. made there under except that the Chief Financial Officer and 

the Chief Executive officer appointed under section 203 (1) of the Act read with Companies (Appointment 

and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, also holds the position of Key Managerial 

Personnel in other project companies of IRB Infrastructure Trust (the Holding Entity). 

 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the 

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the 

Company has complied with the following law applicable specifically to the Company: 

 

• Indian Tolls Act, 1851 

• National Highway Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder 

 

We further report that 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors 

during the audit period. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (except the meetings which were convened at a shorter 

notice for which necessary approvals obtained as per applicable provisions) and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 

for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in 

the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

 

We further report that there are systems and processes in the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines. The Adequacy and efficacy of the 

same shall be read in the context of remarks made in this report. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

We Further report that during the audit period the Company has altered its Article of Association by 

inserting Clause 69A for the appointment of Nominee director nominated by debenture trustee(s) in the 

accordance with the SEBI Regulations.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: June 26, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 

For MMJB & Associates LLP 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Deepti Joshi  

Designated Partner 

FCS: 8167 

CP: 8968 

PR: 2826/2022 

UDIN: F008167F000622143 

 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 

integral part of this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 ‘Annexure A’  

 

To, 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai, Mumbai-400076, Maharashtra. 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 

the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company.  

 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis.  

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

company.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: June 26, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 

For MMJB & Associates LLP 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Deepti Joshi  

Designated Partner 

FCS: 8167 

CP: 8968 

PR: 2826/2022 

UDIN: F008167F000622143 

 



 

        Annexure E 

AOC-2 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil  

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil 

 

 



 

SOLAPUR YEDESHI TOLLWAY LIMITED 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT – FY 2023-24 

[Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations, 2015] 

 

A. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is based on certain key principles, including fairness 

and integrity, transparency and disclosure, accountability, equal treatment to all the stakeholders and social 

responsibility. Your Company’s Corporate Governance practices extends beyond corporate laws. Its 

fundamental objective is the institution of and adherence to systems and procedures, ensuring the commitment 

of the Board of Directors in managing the Company’s affairs in a transparent manner to maximize the long-term 

value of the stakeholders at large. 

 

The Corporate Governance framework at your Company is driven by Core Governance Policies adopted by the 

Company to ensure timely and accurate disclosure on all material matters including the financial position, 

performance, ownership and governance of the Company. 

 

The Report on compliances with the Corporate Governance norms by your company for FY 2023-24 is provided 

herein below: 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

   

(i) Board Membership Criteria 

 

The members of the Board of Directors accessed and observed that the Directors of your Company possess the 

required expertise, skill and experience to effectively manage and direct your Company to attain its 

organizational goals. They also have leadership qualities, proven competence and integrity and with a strategic 

bent of mind. 

 

Each member of the Board of Directors of your Company have ensured that his/ her personal interest does not 

run in conflict with your Company’s interests and used their professional judgment to maintain both the 

substance and appearance of independence and objectivity. 

 

(ii) Composition of the Board 

 

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Non-executive Directors and 

Independent Director to have a balanced Board Structure. The Board has 4 (Four) Directors, comprising of Ms. 

Shilpa Todankar and Mr. Abhay Phatak as Non-executive Directors and other 2 (Two) Non-executive Directors 

viz. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape and Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan are Independent Directors of the Company. The 

Chairperson of the Board of Directors of your Company is a Non-Independent Director. In the opinion of the 



 

Board, all Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management. 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2024 is as follows: 

 

Name of 

Director  

Category of 

Director  

Relationship 

with other 

Directors  

No. of 

Directors

hips in 

other 

companie

s 

including 

this listed 

entity*  

Number of 

membershi

ps in 

Audit/ 

Stakeholde

r 

Committee

(s) 

including 

this listed 

entity 

(Refer 

Regulation 

26(1) of 

Listing 

Regulation

s)** 

No of 

post of 

Chairper

son in 

Audit/ 

Stakehold

er 

Committe

e held in 

listed 

entities 

including 

this listed 

entity 

(Refer 

Regulatio

n 26(1) of 

Listing  

Regulatio

ns)** 

Directorships 

held in other 

listed entities# 

Ms. Shilpa 

Chandrashekhar

Todankar 

DIN: 08683910 

Non-Executive 

Director  

 

None 12 10 None None 

Mr. Abhay 

Prabhakar 

Phatak 

DIN: 09519500 

Non-Executive 

Director  

 

None 9 3 None None 

Mrs. Ranjana 

Vinay Paranjape 

DIN: 06646483 

Non-Executive 

- Independent  

Director 

None 4 5 4 None 

Mr. 

Chandrashekhar 

Shankarrao 

Kaptan 

Non-Executive 

- Independent  

Director 

None  9 10 1 $IRB 

Infrastructu

re 

Developers 



 

DIN: 01643564 Limited-

Independent 

Director  

*Number of Directorship in other Companies excludes directorship in Section 8 Companies & Foreign Companies, if any. 

# While calculating directorships in listed entities, only directorships in equity listed companies have been considered in 

accordance with the explanation provided under Regulation 17A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR). 

** While calculating directorships in listed entities, only directorships in equity listed companies have been considered in 

accordance with the explanation provided under Regulation 17A of SEBI LODR. 

$Ceased to be Director in IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited w.e.f. March 31, 2024. 

(iii) Board Meetings / Annual General Meeting  

 

For the period ended March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of your Company met 11 (Eleven) times on April 

27, 2023, July 03, 2023, July 18, 2023, July 27, 2023, August 30, 2023, September 25, 2023, October 23, 2023, 

January 19, 2024, February 20, 2024, March 06, 2024 and March 15, 2024. 

 

Further, circular resolutions were passed by the Board of Directors during the Financial Year 2023-24 on 

October 30, 2023, December 12, 2023 and March 12, 2024. 

 

The Annual General Meeting of the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 was held on July 26, 2023. 

 

Details regarding the attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and the Annual General Meeting held 

during the period ended March 31, 2024, are provided in the following table: 

 

Director  No. of Board Meetings 

Attended 

Whether AGM Attended 

(Yes/No) 

Ms. Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 11 Yes 

Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 11 Yes 

Mrs. Ranjana Vinay Paranjape 11 Yes 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Shankarrao 

Kaptan 

10 Yes 

   



 

(iv) A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors  

 

Accordance with the company’s Corporate Governance philosophy, the Board has laid down criteria which 

guides selection of board member. The members of the Board of Directors of your Company are expected to 

possess the required expertise, skill and experience in the relevant sector to effectively manage and direct your 

Company to attain its organizational goals. 

 

The following is the list of core skills / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the 

context of the Company’s business and that the said skills are available within the Board Members. 

 

Name of the 

Director 

Business 

Leadership 

Financial 

Expertise 

Knowledge of 

Company’s 

Business 

Corporate 

Governance and 

Risk Management 

Ms. Shilpa 

Todankar 

√ √ √ √ 

Mr. Abhay 

Phatak 

√ √ √ √ 

Mrs. Ranjana 

Paranjape 

√ √ √ √ 

Mr. 

Chandrashekhar 

Kaptan 

√ √ √ √ 

 

(v) Membership Term 

 

At every Annual General Meeting, one-third of the Directors excluding Independent Directors, for the time 

being are liable to retire by rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest 

to one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire by rotation at every Annual General Meeting shall 

be those who have been longest in office since their last appointment. However, as between persons who became 

Director on the same day and those who are to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be 

determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-appointment. 

  

(vi) Code of Conduct 

 

Your Company’s Board of Directors has prescribed a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and the 

Company’s Senior Management. The Code of Conduct is available on your Company’s website 

www.irbinfratrust.co.in 

 

All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel of your Company have affirmed their compliance 

with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2024. A declaration to this effect as signed by the Chief 

Executive Officer(s) is given below: 



 

 

This is to certify that, in line with the requirement of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, all the Directors of the Board and Senior Management Personnel 

have solemnly affirmed that to the best of their knowledge and belief, they have complied with the provisions 

of the Code of Conduct during the financial year 2023-24. 

 

Sd/-                                                            

Jai Prakash Nandi 

Chief Executive Officer                                                         

 

(vii) Meeting of Independent Directors: 

 

The separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company as per the requirements of Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, was held on February 23, 2024, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and 

the members of the management. All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting. 

 

(viii) Performance Evaluation of Directors: 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of 

Independent Directors and other Directors, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors 

pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of 

Directors comprises of the following key areas: 

 

i. Attendance at Board & Committee Meetings. 

ii. Quality of contributions in deliberations. 

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance. 

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management. 

v. Commitment to Stakeholders interests. 

 

The evaluation involves Self- Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board of 

Directors. A member of the Board does not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation. 

 

B. Familiarisation Program for Independent Directors: 

 

In case of appointment of new independent directors, the management provides the Familiarisation Programmes 

as per the requirement of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 

main objective of the Programme is to familiarize the Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, 

rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model 



 

of the company, etc., through various programmes. During the year under review, no new independent Directors 

were appointed.  

 

C. BOARD COMMITTEES  

 

In compliance with both the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements under the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the applicable laws, your Company’s Board of Directors 

constituted the following Committees:  

 

i) Audit Committee;  

ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;  

iii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee;  

iv) Risk Management Committee; 

 

The Chairman of the Board, in consultation with the Company Secretary and the respective Chairman of these 

Committees, determines the frequency of the meetings of these Committees. The recommendations of the 

Committees are submitted to the Board for approval. 

 

The Board of Directors has also adopted the following policies in line with the requirement of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 for the effective 

and defined functioning of the respective Committees of the Board: 

 

a. Whistle Blower Policy; 

b. Remuneration Policy; 

c. Code for Corporate Disclosure; 

d. Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by 

Designated Persons; 

e. Policy on Related Party Transactions; 

f. Code of Conduct: 

g. Criteria for appointment of Directors 

h. Succession Policy 

i. Record Retention Policy 

 

Relevant policies as per Regulations 62 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 are available on the website of the Company 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/ 

 

(i)  Audit Committee  

 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2024 consists of the following 

Members:  

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

 

1) Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  - Chairperson 

2) Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan - Member 

3) Ms. Shilpa Todankar   - Member 

 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. 

 

The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the 

Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 

177 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:  

 

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  

 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;  

 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;  

 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:  

 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 

report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013  

 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same  

 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management  

 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings  

 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements  

 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions  

 

g. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report  

 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval;  

 



 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 

monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified 

institutions placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this 

matter;  

 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;  

 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;  

 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  

 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;  

 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;  

 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 

control systems;  

 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit;  

 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;  

 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the board;  

 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 

as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;  

 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;  

 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;  

 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the 

finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate;  



 

 

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.  

 

21. To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crores or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 

including existing loans / advances / investments; 

 

22. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, 

amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.  

 

The Company’s Audit Committee met 9 (Nine) times for the period ended March 31, 2024 viz. April 27, 2023, 

July 03, 2023, Julu 18, 2023, July 27, 2023, August 30, 2023, October 23, 2023, January 19, 2024, March 06, 

2024 and March 15, 2024. 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Audit Committee meetings held during the period 

ended March 31, 2024: 

 

Members  No. of Meetings Attended 

Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 9 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 9 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 9 

 

(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) as on March 31, 2024 consists of 

the following members viz.: 

 

1) Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape -Chairperson  

2) Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan -Member 

3) Ms. Shilpa Todankar  - Member 

 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 (Three) time during the period ended March 31, 2024 on 

July 03, 2023, July 18, 2023 and February 20, 2024. 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings 

for the period ended March 31, 2024: 

  



 

 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 3 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 2 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 3 

  

The brief terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:  

 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 

and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key 

managerial personnel and other employees;  

 

2.    For every appointment of an independent director, evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience 

on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required 

of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent 

director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable 

candidates, the Committee may:  

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;  

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and  

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

3.   Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;  

4.   Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;  

5.  Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management 

in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and 

removal.  

6. Review whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of 

the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.  

7. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

 

Remuneration Policy 

 

The Board had adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy which sets out the guidelines regarding the 

nomination, remuneration and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and employees of the Company. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is annexed to Board’s Report. 

 

Remuneration paid to Non-executive Directors: 



 

 

The Non-executive Independent Directors of your Company are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees. Your 

Company has paid sitting fees of Rs. 3,000/- per meeting for Meetings held upto December 2024 and from 

January 2024 onwards paid Rs. 5000/- to the Non-executive & Independent Directors for attending the meetings 

of the Committees and Board. 

 

Details of Remuneration for the period ended March 31, 2024 

 

Name of the Non-Executive Director  Sitting Fees (Amounts in Rupees)  

Mr. Chandrashekhar S. Kaptan 87,320 

Mrs. Ranjana Vinay Paranjape  101,480 

Ms. Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 110,920 

Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 66,080 

 

As per the disclosures received from the Directors, none of the Company’s Non-Executive Directors hold any 

Equity Shares of the Company. Further, there are no pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Directors 

with the Company, except those disclosed in the Annual Report. 

 

None of the Directors are entitled to any benefit upon termination of their association with your Company. 

Further, the Company doesn’t have any Employee Stock Option scheme.  

 

(iii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee  

 

The Composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2024 consists of the following 

members viz.:  

  

1. Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape  -Chairperson 

2. Mr. Abhay Phatak  - Member 

3. Ms. Shilpa Todankar  - Member 

 

During the year under review, the Board has appointed Ms. Rishika Rawat as Company Secretary and 

Compliance officer of the Company w.e.f. February 20, 2024. Ms. Rishika ceased to be Company Secretary and 

Compliance officer w.e.f. May 22, 2024, consequent upon her resignation from the employment. 

 

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee met 2 (two) times for the period ended March 31, 2024 on January 

19, 2024 and February 20, 2024. 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings for 

the period ended March 31, 2024: 

  



 

 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Mrs. Ranjana Paranjape 2 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 2 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 2 

 

Further, no complaints from securityholders were outstanding at the beginning of the year or received during 

the year under review, hence, there was no complaint to be disposed of during the said period or remaining 

unresolved at the end of the year under review.  

 

The brief terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as follows:  

 

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares/ securities, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, Non-

receipt of interest on debentures, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.  

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders/security holders.  

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being 

rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 

dividends/ non-receipt of interest and ensuring timely receipt of interest/ dividend warrants/annual 

reports/statutory notices by the shareholders/ security holders of the company. 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 

 

The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints redress system. Your Company 

has been registered on SCORES and makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints received through 

SCORES or otherwise within the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint. 

 

During the year under review the company has not received any investor complaint. 

 

ONLINE DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ODR) PORTAL 

 

SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023 (Updated on 

December 28, 2023) has issued guidelines for common Online Dispute Resolution portal (“ODR Portal”) for 

resolving grievances/disputes arising between investors/clients and listed companies or specified intermediaries/ 

regulated entities in the security market. In case the grievance is not redressed satisfactorily by the entity/RTA, 

the investor may escalate the same through SEBI SCORES portal. After exhausting the above options, if the 

investor is not satisfied with the outcome, he/she/they can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR portal. 

The Company is registered on the ODR portal.  



 

 

The link to access SMART ODR Portal and ODR related provisions are: 

 

SMART ODR Portal- https://smartodr.in/login 

ODR related provisions- https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/  

 

There were no complaints received on ODR Platform during the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

(iv) Risk Management Committee: 

 

The composition of the Risk Management Committee as on March 31, 2024 consists of the following members 

viz.: 

 

1. Ms. Shilpa Todankar    -Chairman 

2. Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak  -Member 

3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Shankarrao Kaptan  - Member 

 

The Risk Management Committee meeting was held on September 25, 2023 and March 23, 2024 during the 

period ended March 31, 2024.  

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Risk Management Committee meetings held for 

period ended March 31, 2024. 

 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 2 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 2 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 2 

 

The brief terms of reference of Risk Management Committee are as follows: 

 

1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include: 

 

a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, in 

particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), 

information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.  

b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.  

c) Business continuity plan. 

 

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks 

associated with the business of the Company; 

 

https://smartodr.in/login
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

3. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy 

of risk management systems; 

 

4. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering the 

changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity; 

 

5. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations 

and actions to be taken; 

 

6. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to 

review by the Risk Management Committee. 

 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

As on March 31, 2024, the Senior Management of the Company comprises of the following- 

Mr. Devendra Ranka- Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Jaiprakash Nandi- Chief Executive Officer 

Ms. Rishika Rawat- Company Secretary (Ceased w.e.f. May 22, 2024) 

D. GENERAL BODY MEETING  

 

Annual General Meeting 

 

Details of your Company’s last three Annual General Meetings are presented in the following table: 

Nature of Meeting  Date & Time  Venue  Details of Special Resolutions 

passed  

Tenth Annual 

General Meeting 

July 26, 2023 at 1.10 

p.m. 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

None 

Ninth Annual 

General Meeting 

June 22, 2022 at 

11.00 a.m. 

 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

None 



 

Eighth Annual 

General Meeting 

July 20, 2021 at 

11.30 a.m. 

 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

None 

 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

During the financial year 2023-24, Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held on September 26, 

2023 details of which are as follows: 

Nature of Meeting  Date & Time  Venue  Details of Special Resolution 

passed  

Extraordinary 

General Meeting 

September 26, 2023 

at 10.30 a.m. 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

Alternation of Articles of 

Association of the Company 

 

Postal Ballot  

 

During the financial year 2023-24, no resolution were passed by the Company through Postal Ballot and as on 

the date of this report no special resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot  

 

E. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION  

 

1) The website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/# consists of Disclosure/ filing w.r.t. to Company, which 

provides comprehensive information to the investors. 

 

2) Quarterly and Annual Financial results have been published in leading English viz. The Free Press Journal 

etc. The said results are also made available on the Company’s website 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/  

 

3) The Company’s Annual Report is e-mailed to the Members of the Company and other stakeholders’ entitled 

thereto. whose email addresses are available with the depositories as per section 136 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 53 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and will also be made available on the Company’s 

website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/  

 

4) presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: Nil 

 

 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

F. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION  

1. Annual General Meeting                    

Date, Time and Venue  July 24, 2024, 11.30 AM through Video Conferencing 

2. Financial Year  Financial Year is April 1 to March 31 of the following year  

Quarterly results will be declared as per the following tentative schedule:  

Financial reporting for the quarter ending 

June 30, 2023 

Financial reporing for the half year ending 

September 30, 2023 

Financial reporting for the quarter ending 

December 31, 2023 

Financial reporting for the year ending March 

31, 2024 

First fortnight of August, 2024 

 

First fortnight of November, 2024 

 

First fortnight of February, 2025 

 

sixty days of close of Financial Year 

3. Dates of Book Closure  Not Applicable 

4. Record date for Dividend declared  - 

5. Interim/Final Dividend  - 

6. Interim/Final Dividend Payment Date  Not Applicable 

7. Listing on Stock Exchanges & Payment of 

Listing Fees  

Your Company’s Debt securities are listed on:  

BSE Limited  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 

Your Company has paid the annual listing fee to the 

exchange. 

8. Stock Code   (i) Scrip Code: 974215 / ISIN: INE441Q07011 

 (ii) Scrip Code: 974289 / ISIN: INE441Q07029 

9. Registrars and Transfer Agents  KFin Technologies Ltd. (Formerly known as KFin 

Technologies Private Ltd.) 

  

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli 

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad – 500 032.  

Tel.: 040 6716 1500; Fax: 040 67161500  

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com 

10. Share Transfer System  Equity Shares of the Company are not listed on any Stock 

Exchange. Further, NCDs issued by the Company are in 

Demat form and hence, no physical debenture certificates 

were required to be delivered during the year under review. 

The Company obtains an annual certificate from Practicing 

Company Secretaries as per the requirement of regulation 

61(4) read with regulation 40(9) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and the same is filed with BSE Limited and is 

also available on the website of the Company i.e 

mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com


 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-

yedeshi-tollway-limited/ 

11. Address for Correspondence  Ms. Shilpa Todankar 

Director, 

Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, 

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 

400076 

Tel No. 022 66404220 

Fax No.: 022 28573441 

Email: irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in   

12. Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity  During the year under review and as on the date of this 

Report, all securities issued by the Company were held in  

Demat form. 

14. Investor Complaints to be addressed to  Registrars and Transfer Agents or Ms. Shilpa Todankar, 

Director of the Company, at the addresses mentioned earlier.  

15. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or 

any Convertible Instruments, Conversion 

Date and likely impact on equity  

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or 

any Convertible Instruments.  

16. Plant Locations  The Company does not have any manufacturing plant.  

17. Details of Suspension of Securities from 

trading if any 

Not Applicable. 

18. performance in comparison to broad-

based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL 

Index etc- 

Not Applicable  

19. Debenture Trustees (for privately placed  

debentures): 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 

Address : 202, Maker Tower, ‘E’, 

Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai – 400005 

Email: corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 

Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com 

Contact No. 022 4302 5555 

Fax – 022 22040465 

20. Credit Rating: 

 

 

The details of credit rating are mentioned in the Board’s 

report of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/
https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/
mailto:irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in


 

G. DISCLOSURES  

 

i) Related Party Transactions  

 

There have been no materially significant related party transactions, pecuniary transactions or relationships 

between your Company and the Directors, management, or relatives, except for those disclosed in the financial 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 and as reported in the Directors' Report in terms of requirement 

under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy on related party transaction is available on your 

Company’s website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/# 

 
ii) Details of Non-Compliance, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or 

the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years 

 

Other than the below mentioned details there has been no other non-compliance of any legal requirements nor 

have there been any strictures imposed by any Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter 

related to Capital Markets during the last three years.  

 

a) During Financial year 2022-23, BSE had levied a fine of ₹1,08,560/- inclusive of taxes the Company 

has paid ₹ 9,440 inclusive of taxes and has given justification to BSE for not paying the balance amount. 

The Company has appointed qualified Company Secretary w.e.f 1st December, 2022. The Company had 

received response from BSE vide their email dated April 2, 2024 considering the justification given and 

waived the balance fine levied. 

 

b) During the Financial year 2022-23, BSE had levied a fine of ₹1,08,560/- inclusive of taxes. Since 

already having been complied, the Company has not paid any amount and has given justification to BSE 

for the same. The Company had received response from BSE vide their email dated June 27, 2023 

considering the justification given and withdrawal of fines levied.  

 

iii) Corporate Governance Report  

 

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on Comply and Explain basis and is in the process of full 

compliance. 

 

iv) Commodity price risk or Foreign exchange risk and Hedging activities  

Disclosure with respect to commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities are not applicable to 

the Company as the Company is engaged into Infrastructure development. 

 

v) Policy for determining ‘Material’ subsidiaries  

     During the year under review and as on the date of this Report, the Company did not have any subsidiary. 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/solapur-yedeshi-tollway-limited/


 

vi)  Details of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are 

interested  

During the year under review, the Company has neither advanced nor received any funds in the nature of 

loans to/from the firms/companies in which directors are interested. 

vii) Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism  

 

Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism (SPOC Policy) for directors, employees, vendors/ consultants 

to report genuine concerns and has widely circulated/ displayed for the information of the concern.   

 

We further confirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 

viii) Compliance with Mandatory Requirements 

 

Your Company has complied with all applicable mandatory corporate governance requirements under the 

Listing Regulations. 

 

The Company has complied following Non-mandatory requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule 

II. 

 

A. Modified opinion(s) in audit report  

 

During the year under review, there is no audit qualification on the Company’s financial statements. The 

Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure regime of unmodified audit opinion. 

 

B. Reporting of internal auditor  

 

The Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee of the Company. They participate in the meetings of 

the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company and present their internal audit observations 

to the Audit Committee. 

 

ix) Certificate on Corporate Governance 

 

The Practicing Company Secretary’s certificate, with respect to compliance with Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to Corporate Governance, has 

been annexed to the Boards Report and will be sent to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing the 

Company’s Annual Report. 

 

x) Compliance Certificate 

 



 

As per Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a 

Compliance Certificate from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, on the Financial 

Statements and other matters of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, was placed before 

the Board. 

 

xi) Risk Management 

 

The Company has laid down procedures to inform Board Members about the Risk Assessment and minimisation 

procedure, which are periodically reviewed by the Board. 

 

xii) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 

As disclosed in the Board’s Report of the Company, during the year under review, the Company has not 

received any complaint of sexual harassment. 

 

xiii) Fees paid to Statutory Auditors  

 

Total fees of Rs. 3,59,900/- for financial year 2023-24, for all services, was paid by the Company.  

 

xiv) Corporate Governance Requirements 

 

The Company has complied with Corporate Governance Requirements specified under Regulation 17 to 27 and 

required disclosures under Regulation 62 is also available on your Company’s website: www.irbinfratrust.co.in 

 

xv) Certificate from Company Secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 

As per provisions of Listing Regulations, M/s. KDA & Associates, Company Secretaries, has issued a certificate 

confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 

being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 

such statutory authority. The Certificate is enclosed as Annexure A. 

  



 

xvi) DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2024 

 

100% shareholding of the Company is held by IRB Infrastructure Trust alongwith 6 Nominee shareholders.  

Sr. 

No.  

Name of the Shareholder 

 

No. of Shares % of Shareholding 

1.  IRB Infrastructure Trust* 98,249,994 99.99 

2.  

 

Mr. Dhananjay K. Joshi (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

3.  

 

Mr. Shailesh Joshi (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

4.  

 

Mr. Mahesh Kavthekar (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

5.  

 

Mr. Nikhil Maniar (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

6.  

 

Mrs. Arati Taskar (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

7.  

 

Mrs. Anushree Joshi (Nominee of IRB  

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

TOTAL  98,250,000 100.00 

*shares held by IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Registered Owner for and on behalf of IRB Infrastructure 

Trust, the Beneficial Owner. 

 

  



 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

 

 
To,  
The Members,  
Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited  
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  
Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  
Powai, Mumbai- 400076  
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Solapur Yedeshi 

Tollway Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated in Regulations 
17 to 27 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”)  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
representations made by the management, we certify that the Company, being a High Value Debt 
Listed Entity has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 
17 to 27 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of Listing Regulations on Comply and Explain basis and 
is in the process of full compliance.  
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.  
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 
 

Date: June 26, 2024  
Place: Mumbai  

For MMJB & Associates LLP  
Company Secretaries 
Sd/-  
Deepti Joshi  
Designated Partner  
FCS: 8167  
CP: 8968  
PR: 2826/2022  
UDIN: F008167F000622484 

 

  



 

Annexure A 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members of 

SOLAPUR YEDESHI TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai, Mumbai-400076 

 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 

Directors of Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) having CIN: 

U45400MH2014PLC251983 and registered office at Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge 

Park, Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai-400076, produced before us by the 

Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Schedule V Para-C Sub 

clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 

necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that 

none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 

on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs or any such other Statutory Authorities.  

 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 

1 Chandrashekhar Shankarrao Kaptan 01643564 26/02/2020 

2 Ranjana Vinay Paranjape 06646483 06/10/2021 

3 Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 08683910 26/02/2020 

4 Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 09519500  09/03/2022 

 

  



 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 

the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

 

For KDA & ASSOCIATES 

(Formerly known as KDT & Associates) 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Kaushal Dalal 

                        Partner 

        Membership No.: FCS 7141 

COP No.: 7512 

           UDIN: F007141F000541895 

Date: June 6, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 

 



ffll(PS & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 

The Members of Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
(Formerly known as Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Private Limited) 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Gpinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
formerly known as Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Private Limited) ("the Company"), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 
2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by ICAI and 
speci fied under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Key Audit Matters - SA 701 

Sr. 
No. 
1 

Key Audit 
Matters Thou ht Process Remarks Reference 
Revenue a) Toll CoJlection Toll Collection 
Recognition The income from Toll for the year Refer Note 3.04 for the 

collection is recognised on ended 2023-24 Companies Revenue 
the actual collection of toll was Rs.1272.76 Recognition in the 
revenue, , net of revenue million. Material Accounting 
share paid to NHAI as per Policies 
the Concession A reement. 
b) Contract Revenue 
Contract revenue 
associated with the utility 

Contract Revenue 
Collection for the 
year ended 2023-
24 was Rs. 77.70 shifting incidental to 

construction of road are million. 
recognized as revenue by 
reference to the stage of 
compl~tion of the projects 
at the balance sheet date. 
The stage of completion of 

ro·ect is determined b the 

Refer Note 3.04 for the 
Companies 
Recognition 
Material 
Policies 

Revenue 
in the 

Accounting 

Unit No 122, 1st Floor, Nahar & Seth Industrial Estate, Cardinal Gracious Rd, Chakala, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400099. 

+91 22 4608 3939 / 4608 3940 EJ mumbai@mkps.in 'H· www.rnkps.in 

Also at New Delhi, Bengaluru, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kolkata , Raipur, Bhubaneswar, Cuttack, Sambalpur, Rourkela 



2 Amortisatio 
n of 
Intangible 
Assets 

proportion that contract 
cost incurred for work 
performed up to the balance 
sheet date bears to the 
estimated total contract 
costs. 
The Companies operations 
involve levying of GST on 
the construction work. 
Goods and Service tax is not 
received by the Company on 
its own account, rather, it is 
tax collected on value added 
to the commodity by the 
seller on behalf of the 
government. Accordingly, it 
ls excluded from revenue. 

Amortisation 
The intangible assets which 
are recognised in the form 
of Right to charge users of 
the infrastructure asset are 
amortised by taking 
proportionate of actual 
revenue received for the 
year over Total Projected 
Revenue from project to 
Cost of Intangible assets. 
The estimation of total 
projection revenue requires 
significant assumption 
about expected growth rate 
and traffic projection for 
future. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting 
date. 

fflKPS & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAN TS 

Companies 
Impairment 
charge on 
Intangible Assets 
represented Rs. 
156.93 million 
for the year 
ended 
31.03.2024. 

Refer Note 3.06 for the 
Companies 
Amortisation of 
Intangible Assets in the 
Material Accounting 
Policies 

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures 
to Board's Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Business Responsibility Report and 
Report on Corporate Governance but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' 
report thereon. The above-referred information is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this audit report. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. 
When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take 
appropriate actions necessitated by the circumstances and the applicable laws and regulations. 
We have nothing to report on this. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate Internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's' use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the lndAS Financial Statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, mal<es it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in: 
I. planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
ii. to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements. 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order "), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the Act), we give in Annexure- I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Oi-der, to the extent applicable. 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our Im owl edge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of cash flows 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply, in material respect, with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in Annexure- II. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended we report that, 
accordi ng to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the company, we report that the company has not paid or 
provided for managerial remuneration. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to Le included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, In our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have 
an impact on its financial position; 

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material 
foreseeable losses on its long-term contracts that may require any 
provisioning. 

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the 
reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

iv) A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
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identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

B) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: 

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub• 
clause(i) ancl (11) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under (A) and (8) above 
contain any material misstatement. 

v) The company has neither declared nor paid any dividends during the 
year under audit. 

vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for 
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a 
feature of recording audit trail ( edit log) facility is applicable to the 
Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting 
under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is 
applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has 
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which 
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in 
the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come 
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 
[Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per 
the statutory requirements for record retention.] 

For MI<PS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: -302014E 

CA Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.:046953 
UDIN:24046953BKEZDC7146 
Date: 23/04/2024 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report 
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of Solapur Yedeshi Tollway 
Limited (formerly known as Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Private Limited) for the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

i) (a) (A) The company does not carry any property, plant and equipment during the 
year under audit Hence, the reporting requirements under this sub-clause in not 
applicable. 
(BJ The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its 
intangible assets. 

(b) The company does not carry any property, plant and equipment including land 
during the year under audit. Hence, the reporting requirements under sub-clause 
(b), (c) and (d) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the company, we report that no proceedings 
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at 
March 31. 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements 
under sub-clause (a) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

(b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or 
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence the 
reporting requirements under sub-clause (b) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

iii) According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, we report that the company has not made 
any investments in, nor provided any guarantee or security nor granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or 
any other parties. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 
of the order are not applicable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
iv) company has not advanced any loans to directors/ to a company in which the Director 

is interested to which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply other than those 
stated at para (iii) above. Further, based on the information and explanations given to 
us, being an infrastructure company, the provisions of section 186 of the Act to the 
extent of loans, guarantees and securities granted are not applicable to the company. 
Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not 
applicable. 

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, 
the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of 
the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable. 

vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under 
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed 
such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been 
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made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the 
records with a view to deterrnine whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally 
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, and any 
other material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. 
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, and any other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no stan1tory 
dues referred to in clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute except in respect of an income tax demand (net) of Rs. 523.20 Lacs 
received for the Asst. Year 2017-18 in respect of which appeal has been filed with 
the CIT(Appeals), Income Tax. 

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, thereare 
no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 

ix) 

x) 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the 
books of accounts and records examined by us, in our opinion, the company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as 
represented to us by the management, the company has not been declared 
as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no fresh term loans have been taken during the year. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our 
opinion funds raised on short term basis have not been prima•facie used for 
long term purposes as at the reporting date. 

(e) The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and 
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (e) of clause (ix) of 
para.graph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

(f) The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and 
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (f) of clause (ix) of 
paragraph 3 of the order ar~ not applicable. 

(a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on 

our examination of the books of accounts and other records, we report that 
the company has not raised any moneys raised by way of initial public offer 
or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, 
the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a) of clause (x) of paragraph 
3 of the order are not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on 
our examination of the books of accounts and other records, we report that 
the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or debentures. Hence, the compliance to the provision of section 
42 and section 62 of the Act are not applicable. 
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Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting 
the true and fair view of the financial statements and as per the information 
and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we have 
neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the 
company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, 
nor have we been informed of any such case by the management. 
No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the CentraJ Government during the year and 
till the date of this report. 
According to the information and explanations provided to us, no whistle 
blower complaints have been received during the year and upto the date of 
this report. 

xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 
188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv) 

xv) 

xvi) 

xvii) 

a) 

b) 

In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and nature of its busines~,. 
We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, 
issued to the company, in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit 
procedures. 

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
them and hence the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the 
company. I 

a) 

b) 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India, 1934. Hence, the reporting requirements under sub­
clause (a), (b) and (c) of clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not 
applicable. 
According to the information and explanation given to us by the 
management, in our opinion, there is no Core Investment Company as part 
of the Group. Hence, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (d) of 
clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

The company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 585.83 Million during the current year & 
cash profit of Rs. 25.28 Million in the immediately preceding year respectively. 

xviii) There has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year. 

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of assets 
and payment of financial liabilities., other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our lrnowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans 
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing 
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material exists as 
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on the date of the audit report indicating that the company is not capable of meeting 
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not 
an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when 
they fall due. 

(xx) The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the company for the year 
under audit and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a) & (b) of clause 
(xx) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

For MKPS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: -302014E 

CA Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.:046953 
UDIN:24046953BKEZDC7146 
Date: 23/04/2024 
Place:Mumbai 
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Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of Solapur YedesM Tollway 
Limited (formerly known as Solapur Yedeshl ToJlway Private Limited) for the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Solapur Yedeshi 
Tollway Limited (formerly known as Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Private Limited) ("the Company") 
as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date, 

Management's Responsibillty for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibtuty 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ''Guidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures t ( ' obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on. the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For MKPS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: -302014E 

CA Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.:046953 
UDIN:24046953BKEZDC7146 
Date: 23/04/2024 
Place: Mumbai 
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Solnpur Ycduhl Tollwny Limited 
Balauce Sheet as at March 31, 1024 

ASSETS 
Non•current nssets 
Olher inlans ible R$SC1S 

Current nsscls 
Finsncinl asse1s 
I) loveslmenls 

ii) Trade receivables 
Ill) Cash and cash equlvalents 
iv) Bank balance olher 1han (iii) above 
v) O1her financial assels 
Curren! 1nx assets (net) 
Oiher eur'l'e111 assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND t.rABILITIES 
Equity 
Eqully share capit~I 
Subordinnte debl 
Other equity 

Non•cuncni liubilitics 
Pinancinl liabililios 
i) Borrowings 

Provisions 

Corrcnl linbilillcs 

Note No. 

5 
S.I 

5.2 
S.3 
5.4 
s,s 
6 
7 

8 
9 
10 

II 
II.I 
12 

Financial liabilities 13 
I) Borrowings I ) . I 
ii) Trnde paynblcs 13.2 

n) iotnl 01!1s1n11di11g do~ or micro enlerprises and small enierprises 
b) totnl ontsrnnding dnes of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

iii) O1her linuncinl liubilities 13.3 
Other liabilities I ,1 
Provisions I 5 

TOhll linllilitie.!i 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABfLITrES 

Summnry ofmntcrinl accounting policies 
The accon1panyi11s no1es ~re an inlegral pali of ihe nn~ncial statements. 

As at 
1\1:lrch 31 , 2024 

12,998.65 
1'2 998.65 

d0,46 
522.00 

50.79 
11.73 
14.51 

639,49 

13,638.14 

982.50 

(3,128.31) 
(2,145.81) 

I4;0S2.8Z 
103.57 

1J,IS6.39 

1.)42.15 

13.28 
79.80 

8.43 
183.90 

1 6Z7.S6 

IS 783.95 

13.638.14 

, in Mllllons 

/\H1I 
March 31, 202J 

13 155.57 
13,155.57 

72.82 
29,37 
24.86 

782.00 
24.42 

4,42 

0.04 
937.93 

14,o93.S0 

982.S0 
4,423.70 

(2,283.71 ) 
3,122.49 

9,829.36 
198.9S 

10028.JI 

654.72 

226.50 
57.90 
3.58 

942.70 

10,971.01 

141093.!I0 . 

As per our report of even date 
For M K P S & Associate~ 
Chartered Acco1111tants 

For and on behalf of tho Board of Directors of 
Solnpur Ycdcshi Tolhvlly Limited 

Pirm's Regd. No.3020148 

CA. Ynsuclcv SunJcrd,u M11Ui1 
Partner 
Mert1be11ihip No.046953 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : 23/04/2024 

ClN : U4$400MH2014PTC2S l983 

A Uhn f'l111lll k 
Director 
~ 

DIN: 095 19500 

Place: Mumbni 
Onie : 23/04/2024 

~u 
Chief Financial Officer 

Pince; Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

Director 
DIN: 08683910 

Pince: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2()24 Dale , 23/04/2024 

~ 
~ c.:_,,,.,.~ ------

~ h lko Rnwlit 
Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/202<1 



Solntrnr Ycdeshl Tollway Limited 
Statement or Profit !Intl Loss for year ended Mnrch 31, 2024 

Income 
Revenue fr~m operations 
Other income 
TOTAL INCOME 

Expenses 
Road work and site expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Other expenses 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

rroflt / (loss) before tnx 

·rox expenses 
Current tax 
TOTAL TAX EXPENSES 
Profil/(loss) for lhe year 

Other comprehensive l11come 
Item that wlll 1101 lo be reclnsslficd lo profit or loss: 
Re-measurement sains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of taxes) 
Net other com1>rehc11slve Income not 10 be reclassified to fll'Ofit or loss In 
s11bseq11e111 periods 
Other comprehensive lncomc/(loss) for the yc11r (net of t:1~) 
Total compl'ehenslve Income ror !he ye11r 

Eflrnihgs per equity $hnre (of R.s. 10 ench) 
Basic 
Dil11ted 

Summa~ of material occountin olieies 
The accompanying notes are nn ,ntegrnl part of tho llnancial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
l?or M K P S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regd. No.3020148 

CA. Vnsutle.v Sundcrd;u Mntta 
Portner 
Membership No.046953 

Placo; Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

Note No. 

16 
17 

18 
19 
20 
21 

22 

23 

3 

Ycnr ended Mnrch 
31,2024 

1,340.16 
59.76 

1,399.92 

326.19 
1,742.92 

156.93 
18.01 

2,244.05 

(844. 13) 

0.47 
0.47 

(844.60) 

!844.60) 

(8.60) 
(8.60) 

fin Millions 

Year ended Ma,·ch 
JI, 2023 

1,281.67 
31.01 

1,312.68 

244.17 
1,083.45 

168.97 
41.55 

1,538.14 

(225.44) 

(225.44) 

!22S.44l 

(2.29) 
(2.29) 

For and on behalf ofihc Board of Directors of 
Solapu1· Ycdeshl Tollway Llmlled 
CIN: U45400MH2014PTC2S l983 

Director 
DIN: 09519500 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

~ 
ChiefFlnancinl Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Dal~ : 23/04/2024 

~~ 
~ 

Company Secretary 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

®~ 
• Shi n Todnnkar 

Director 
DIN: 08683910 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

Place: Mutnbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 



Solopur \'edc~hi Tollw11y Limited 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024 

A. Equity Sh11re Cllpltnl: 

Equity shares of~ 10 ellch issued. subscribed and fully pnld 

Opening bnlnnce 
Issue or share capital 
Closing b,llonce 

8. Subordlnntc debt : 
Opening balance 
Addition r,luring the period/ ycor 
Closing biilance 

C .Other Equity : 
Retained earnings 
Opening balance 
Profit/(loss) for ihc period/ year 
Other comprehensive income/(Joss) for the year 

Rc-measutement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 
At the end of the year 

Summary of material !ICC0111\tin5 policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of ihe foHiltcial statements. 

As per our report of even dote 
For M K r S & Assodates 
Chnrlcred Accountants 
Fin11's Registration No.302014[:, 

CA. Vasuilc\l Sundcrdns Matta 
Portner 
Membership No.046953 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

3 

As nt 
Muth 311 2024 

982.50 

982.50 

4.423.70 
(4,423.70) 

(2,283.71) 
(844.60) 

(3,128.31) 

( , In Millions) 
As nt 

March 311 2023 

982.50 

982.50 

4,423.70 

4,423.70 

(2,058.25) 
(225.44) 

(2,283.71) 

For and on behnlfofthe Board of Directors of 
Solapur Ycileshl Tollway Limited 
CIN : U45400MH2014PTC251983 

Director 
DIN: 095 19500 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

~ 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Mumbai 
Dale : 23/04/2024 

~ 
Co,npa1iy Secretary 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

Shllpn Todnnlmt· 
Director 
DIN: 08683910 

Place ; Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

p s andi 
hief Executuve Officer 

lace : Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 



Sol11pu1· Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Stntcment ofCn,lt now for the yell!' ended Morch 31, 2024 

C:,sh now from operating activities 
Profit Before Tax 
Adjustments : 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Resurfacing expenses 
Finance costs 
Fair Value gain on Mutual Funds 
(Goin) / loss on sale of hwesunent 
Interest lncome on 
• Bank deposits 
• Others 

Pnt·iiculars 

Operating proflt/(loss) before working cnpitul changes 
Movement In working capital: 
Dccrease/(increase) in Trade receivables 
Deorease/(il1crease) in other financial assets 
Decreasc/(increase) in other assets 
lncrease/(decreaso) in lrnde payables 
tncrease/(decreasc) in other financial liabililics 
!ncrcase/(decrease) in other liabilities 
Cnsh generated frorn/(uscd in) operations 
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 
Net cnsh flows from/(used in) operating activities (A) 

B. Cash nows from investing activities 
Proceeds rrorn sale/ (purchase) of current investments (net) 
Bnnk deposits placed (having original maturity of more than three months) 
Proceeds from mnlurity of DSRA bank deposits 
Interest received 
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (B) 

C. Cash now from financing activities 
Proceeds / repayment of sub-ordiriate debt 
Proceeds/ (repayment) of loan from banks and fmnncinl institution 
Repayment of loan from issue of Non• Convcrtibli,; Debentures 
Proceeds / (repayment) of short tenn loan 
Finance cost paid 
Net cush flows froni/(used In) linnncing activities (C } 
Net incrcnse/(decrcnse) In cush and cash cqulvnlcnts (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at U1e beginning or the period 
Cnsh nnd cash equivalents nt the end of the period (refer note no S,3) 

Components of cash n.nd cnsh equivalents 
Cash on hand 
Balances with scheduled banks 

• On Current Account 
- On Escrnw Account 

Tot:1! Cash ond cnsh equiv11knts (refer note no 5.3) 

Vear ended Mnrch 
3.l,:Z024 

(844.13) 

156,93 
66.34 

1,742.92 

(4.77) 

(54,68) 
(0,25) 

1,062.37 

29.37 
(29.03) 
(I 4.47) 

(2 I 3.22) 
21.90 
4.85 

861.76 
(7,78) 

853.98 

77.59 

260.00 
57,60 

395.19 

(214.03) 

( i 14.82) 
(904.72) 

{1,233.56) 
15.61 
24.86 
40.46 

0.91 

13.35 
26.20 
40.46 

(~In MIilions) 

\'cur Chlled M nrch 31, 
2023 

(225.44) 

168.97 
74,61 

1,083.45 
(0,21) 
(3.74) 

(26.81) 
(0,20) 

1,070.63 

(2,67) 
8.28 
2.38 

(:i4,58) 
1.45 

11055.49 
(3.17) 

J,052.32 

(3 I .26) 
(575.2 l) 

27.01 
(579.46) 

(5,205.80) 
5,910.00 

(80,1i4) 
(1,090.95) 

(467.39) 
5.47 

19.39 
24.86 

1.01 

4.35 
19.50 
24.86 



Solapur Ycdcshi Tollway Limitc(I 
Statement of Cosh flqw for l'hc ye:ir ended March 31, 2024 

Pariic11!~1·s 

Debt reconcili11tion statement in 11ccorduucc wilh Jnd AS 7 
Op!!ning balances 
Long term borrowings 
Short lenn borrowings 

Move men ls 
l.ong term borrowings 
Short term borrowings 

Closing balances 
Long term borrowings 
Short term borrowings 

Summary of material accounting policies 
The accompanying notes ore on integral piirt of the financial stateme11ts. 

Notes; 
"I. Ail figures in bracket nre outflow. 

3 

Ycnr ended Mnrth 
31,2024 

9,829.36 
654.72 

4,223.46 
687.43 

14,052.82 
1,342. 15 

( ~ In Millions) 

Year ended Mnrch 31, 
2023 

9,193.07 
674.95 

636.29 
(20.23) 

9,829.36 
654.72 

2. Taxes paid ore treated us arising from operating activities and ore 1101 bifurcated br.:tween investing and financing activities. 
3. 'The cash !low statement has been pr0parcd under Indirect Method as per Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". 

As per our report of even date 
For M KP S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn's Regd. No.3020l4E 

CA. V:isudcv Sundcrdas Mnttn 
Partner 
Membership No.046953 

Pince: Mumboi 
Dote : 23/04/2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Solapur Ycdcshi Tollway Limited 
CIN : U45400MH20 l 4PTC25 l 983 

Director 
DIN: 09519500 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

Chief Fin;incinl Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 23/04/2024 

------::?: 
-~ 

RIShika Raw:it 
Compuny Secretary 
Pince: Mumbai 
Dote : 23/04/2024 

~ 
Sht11,a To(lanlrnr 
Director 
DIN: 086839 i 0 

Place: Mumbai 
Date ; 23/04/2024 

~ ~ndi 
hief Executuve Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Dote : 23/04/2024 



Solnpur Ytduhi Tollw:iy Llmllcd 
Nol~ to nnnnclnl sintement for 1he yur t11dod March :)I, 10%4 

Nole I : Curpor11ie Jn(ormntion 
Solopur Yedo,hl Toll,wy Limilcd ('lhc Company') i; domioil,ti in India. The Company has been aw~rded lhe projeol ror •1-ldning ofSolopur 10 Ycdcshi scclion 
ofNH-211 from Km 0,000 to Km 100.00 (de,i~n lc,1i1h 98.711 Km) in lhc Stale of Mahoroshlro. Tho rro)w ho9 been awMded under Nolionol Highwny, 
Development Progrom (NHDP) rh.,.o lY and Is 10 be excculcd as DOT (foll) on• De,ign, Build, Finarieo, Opemlc and Trnnsfer(DBFOT) bosi, . 

The Comf)Uny I••• been converted to Public Limilcd Compony from Private Limited Compony wld, cm,ct from l)lh Novombor, 2019. 

The flnaneial statements were outhurhcd tor issue by ihc Compnpy's Do•rd of Directors on 23th April, 2024. 
Tho ro11iS1cred oOice i, locoted 01 11 O I, 11 d, Floor, Hirn,1011dani Knowledge Pork, Technology Str«t, Opp Hitonanda11i Hospiinl, Powni, Mumb•i - 400 076. 

IRB lnfmlructure Trust [on lnfrnslluehire h1vcsimcnl Tnisl rcgi,tcrod with Securilie, ond Exeha,19,; Boord of lndi• under Securities ond Ex<hons• Board of 
Indio (lnfmtructur't lr1w;1tncnl Trus1s) Regulations, 2014] hold; 1hrough !it Tru91cc IDBI Tnisiecship Services Limil•d and hs no,ninoc,s 10-0'/o &ltll<c in lhc 
Company 

Nol• l: Do,11 of prcpnrntion 
Tha finonclol slntcmcnli of the Company h.ivc btum prepared i11 ac.cord11ncc wilh ]ndinn Accounting St.indtttd~ (Ind AS) ag per 1hc Comp.lnii:s (lndinn 
Aceounling Slondords) Rules, 201 5. 
These rm11.ndal ! ltlltill\C.11I9 for ihc ycnr ended Mqch l I~ 2024 are prepared hi aetorda,ico wilh Ind AS. Rerer to note J for lnform.tI1on on how 1ha. Compony 
adopted Ind AS, 
11, .. e ore the Finonoiol Sta1on1,nt; of U;o Compony ond oecordingly, the componilivo inforn1ollo,1 a~oiloblc for lhc compornble yeor lo dote period of tht 
imm,diatoly ptocodlni flnancinl yenr wilh ro,pccl 10 lhe Slotement of Profit •nd Los,. Slotemcnl of Ch•nac• in Equity ond Slot,monl or Ca,lt Flow, and nolcs 
10 the Jinmrlciol &ID.icmcms in<::luding other expl11.n;:atory in(ormation. 

Tho financial otftlcmcnis nrc pmcnlcd in lndion Rupee ('INR') wh,eh is ol;o the Compony'e funotionol cumnoy ond oil volu.s &ro tuund.d lo lhc ncorcsl 
millions, except when otherwise! indicnted. 
The lin~nci3I BltltemcnIs hovo been prepared on n historical cost bMi!, 6xC11pl for ecrtoin flnanciAI ~ct:- ond Ihibilitles (rer"r aeeounIIng policy ro,garding 
fiMnciol inslrumcnt;) which hnve been meil5ured :u ralr value. 

Nolt13 : Summnry nr rnnferinl nccountiui; policit!I 

3.01 Currenl versus non-(urr~nc cl11Ssinc-11llon 
Th~ Compnny presenl5 .issels :mJ li;;.bllilil)S ii, thll liolimcc stIccI bMi:d on C!urrcnt/ non,curre:nt chusifieatio1t An DS9c1 is trei\1~d AS current whcll it i~; 

- Bxpeelcd to be rc.,liscd or int,nd,d 10 be sold ot con~unt•d in normal opqrnling cycle 
, Held pnmnrily for 1h• purpuso oftradinl) 
- exvcctcd lo be reoli:;;cd within lwclw monlhS :1nar 111~ rcponint period, or 
• Cash or CMh et1ulvahrnt unless fc.8Iriclc:d rrom bcing exohnnged or used tu setlle: 3 llob1llty for ilt leo~t 1wclvc monthi pfler lhe reporting period. 
All other ilSsets nre cl:i!Sifitid l'IS no,,-eurront. 

A liabiHI~ is curronl when; 
• It I, expected to be sold,J 111 tl<.ltmOI OIJl'fAlins cycle 
• II i$ held primarily for lhe purpu!lc oftr'adin; 
- It is duo to be ,citied within twelve monttlS aRc, 1he reporting period, or 
• Thtre n no unec::n1dhional rlaht lo def¢r the sctUerncnt Qfthe liab,lity ror al lea.!.t twt!lvo months 30or 1hc. rcpor1ing pi:riod 
The Comp:my classifies a.II other li:tbllltfe9 3S i\011-currcnl, 
Dcf-0:rrcd lox osscli pnd 1iDbi1ilie$ nre aln.ss1fied i1S non-eurre.nl nsSel~ tnid linbililics, 
The apcrDting C)'Clu ls 1ho: Hrtte botwc~n lhc acquis!Hon of i'$$els for processing itnd their reulla.atio1\ in cash ond cash e:qvivolent;. The Comp:my hill identlC1ed 

twelve monlhs os ils 01,~rgting cycle, 

3,02 r~11ir v;1lut!: measur~ncnl 
Fnir valua ls Iha prieo that would be rccc:ivc:d lo ~ell nn illset or paid 10 tran:s(ar D liability in on orderly lran$action between market p11rtlclp:ii1l!l el 1hu 
mca.;ur~mcnl dntc, The f:i1ir vi\h.1e me;isurement is b;1scd on lhe: prnsurnplion lhnl lhc ln1n&nction IQ 5ell the D.Sset or trans(er the liab!liry tokes plocc cithcr; 

> In the prineipol m~rkol for lhe asset or lioblhty, er 
:r In the ::1b?1(l11C(l of 3. ptu1cipol 11hukci1 in lhc mos I odvnnlageous milrkel for du:, M5el or lt;;bility 
The prineipnl or the most advilntilgrOuS m3.rk61 nlU.9I bu ncccs9iblc by 1hc Comp<tlny. 
The ralr value of an asscl or n lii\bllity is measured using the il:ssumptlon:i 1hnt 1nllrket po.nicip~nt5 would u5e when pricing 1he asset or liabilhy, nssumitta; thnt 
market pflnicip~nts t1ct in their e:conamic best intere.R 
A riln' value me.uurorl\\lnt ofa non~finoocie\l asset t~kc; into nccounl a. m::1rkc1 ptu1lclpo.n1js ability to generate. cc.ono1T1ic bcncfiLt. by wing the o.sset ln I~ hiQhtst 
o,td bcsl use or by iolling ii lo pnolher markel portt.lponl lha1 would u;o 1hu ossel in ils highcsl ~nd be;I ~•-
Th~ Company uses voh.mtiol'I lechnique$ lhat are npproprialc m the cltcurn9ll1nC\.'1 and for which sv(licient dnlil are available to mea.suro fnit wluo, n)8}Cilni8in,g 
1hc Use of rc:lcvimt ob,erv.1b1e inputs ilnd mlniml.!l1lg tho us@ orunol>scrvnblc input;, 
All nsscts and lia,bilities: for which fuir value is m~Mut'ed ot disclosed in Ihc finnnci.il ;~temenls are t'illegallt~d withll'I 1hu fair value hic.rnrchy, descri~d QS 

rollr;1~, bil!ied on the lowe:st leval input tluu i, 5iJniflcnnt to lhc fair value mensurcmenl tis 3. who(!). 
Level I - Quoted (UmtdJosH:d) market prices, in oclivc morket!; for identical il5sel! ot lisbiUIIC!:S 
LC\'Ci 2.4 Vol1,1Dtic;m techniques ror which Ihe. lowcsi level inpul that is sigoifiC;)l11 to the fair value measureme.rtl is directly or indircelly obsc:rvoblc: 
Lovtl 3 -Valuaiion lcchniques for which lhe lowest level inpul that ls slinlnco111 hl the foir volvc monsvrement i, unobmvoble 

For osscls Rnd liobilities 1h01 = recognised 111 Iha r.,1•11ciol slolcmcnls on o recurring bosi,, lhe Compony dotctrnlnM whothor lrnnsfcrs hove occvrrcd between 
level, in tho hier.irehy by t•-ossouins co1e11orisotion (b;,,ed on the lowcsl level input lhat Is slgr110cam lo the fnir voluc meQ;urem,nl ., • whole) ol tho end of 
e.i.ch reporting pe(10d. 

T1i~ Compony4s Mnnogcmcnt det_enninc; the poUcic.s and ptoc(durn.s for both recurring fair vnh.ee meil.$uremcnt, such ag d~llvalive lrmrum1rnls and unquolcJ 
fino.ncinl os.sets mcnsu,ed .it rair villuc., .ind for· non-rccurriny, mllt\Su,e.mcnt, $1,1Ch Q.; ~els, held (or distribution in di!continuod operations 

Al ,ach reporting dole, !he M~n~g,menl onolysc; tho movo,nenls in 1ho volucs of o.sscl$ nnd linbilitie, whioh ore requi,·od 10 be ro,ncot1urod or rc•osscsse~ n& 

per !he Compony's ocoounling potlclo;. l'ot this onolysi&, lhe Monogcment verifies the mojor input, appli~d In ihc lalcsl vallllllion by agreeing lh• informolion in 
the v.iluittion c:omput3.llon lo COtilJOCts ood other rclcvnnl documenl5. 

The mIrno;omcnl also ~ompnrcs the change in lht! f3lr \lt.ilue of each BS5C( and liobility with relevant exlemal sour'Ct! to detem11rlO whc1hcr lhc change is 

rcn5onablc. 
On on inlcrim t,~;i;, th• Monogcmcnl prt;enl lho valualion mulls io the A~dit Committee ond the Compony's indopendcnl oudilors, This includes ; di,c~•ion 
of the m.ijor 35sump1io11;. u9:<?d Ir\ 1ho v11luatio,1s, 

Fot tho purpose of foir voh•c disclo,vrc,, the Company luu determl,tod clo&sos of osscls ond liobililic, on lhc ba, i, of tite notute, eho;3c1~ristics ond risks of1ho 
asscl or liobilily ond tho level oflhe (oir voluc hierotthy &s oxploittcd obovc, 
This noh1 summaries nccoun1ing policy ror fair vl!lluc. 0Lh~r fllir vnluo mimed disclo6urcs nrc given in the relcvnnt nolt!!I. 

- f:: 
0 
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Solopnr Ycd.,hl Tollwoy l.imiled 
Nole, 10 fi11AHtinl shut.nll!Ui ror the.'! )lfllr tnded Marth JI, 102◄ 

).03 Sii,:nifittinl il(cOmlliriC judt;<!nitiiU, '11itiifltt-t fuh.l liHUmpllOn 

The prcp11mtion of !he Compony'i finAnciol ;tAtcmcnts rcquir., monogcmcnl lo mokc judgcmcnl.i, Cilimolei ond mumpliom lhol oOi:ot the reported omounts 
of revenue, expenses . a.sset.s .ind li.1bili1les! .ind tbe acGompanyi.ng di:solosures, .md the disoio:sure of Ciontingenl Jiabi1i1ies. Un1:;ert11inty about these .wumptians 
:ind ~~lnnatcs could l(!SiJII in Oul~Onilll!S: ih.a.1 r"equlre I\ mlited!l adju!lrt'ICnl II) the: Qrrylr,~ amou1\I orasseu Of tl&bllhics err~ttcd In ruttii'II) yoa.r,. 

ElllmAt.J , nd A!lllmpllollJ 
ll$timate$ and underlying iJ;;umption; ;ire reviewed ,;>nan Qngoing \.ln$i$. Revi$iQn$ to il,ccounling C$Ci11111lc; .ire recogni$ed in the yur in whilih the ~lim.1tu nre 
,~vl!ed ~11d fulure p,rlods ate ~rr • .:1od. 
The kty .,,,,u,nptions eonceming the future o.nd 01har key goutces of ustlmallon uneettainty oL lhe ropan11)3, d111e, that ha.vu a slg.nlf1c3nl r-lsk of eaujtna a 
material odju,tmenl to the carrying amounis of .. ;els nnd liobililiCi within the ne<I fin•ncinl year. arc dCicribcd below. The Co111pony based i1, mumption• 
D.nd e~lima1¢$ on parnmcter$ qvQililble when the financial $lillemen1$ were prcp;ucd, I:xi$tina (!ircum!ilnnces, ~nd ~;ump1ion:5 t1bout future dcvelopmcnl$, 
however, m:iy change due to mBtket 0l11mges or circurrutilnces ilrising th.it :ire beyond the control of the Company. Such changes .1re reflected m lhe 

il~Sumptlon!I: when the)' OCt UI'. 

Molcriol Est imolCi nnd nssumplions used in the finonciol slotemcnt, •re; 

Fair valuo m~IYUtt11lhml oflinanclsl i,1struma1us (tlbflir note 2S) 

3.04 Rc,•cnnt:: rcc1;1a,nition 

The CQmpnny hi>$ ndopted Ind AS I IS, Revenue f1<>m Contmc1$ with Cu, tomol'$, wilh oJTeot frQm 01 April 2018 The Company hos opplied lhe fQllowing 
ac;tOuntin~ policy tor revenue tetog.nltion: 

Revenue from contnads wllh cwlamers1 
The Comp~ny re~osnins revenue from tonlraC!ls wilh ouslomen b;iscd on a. five step model .is sci oul in Ind AS 11 S: 
Step I Identify !he contrncl(s) with o customer; A conlrncl is defined as on Qijrcemcnt between two or more portics 1hot creole, enforceoble riljl1is nnd 
oblig.ilions and $C~ oul the oritcri.i ror every contrnc.l lh.it mu$1 be met. 

Step 2 Identify the performonce obligRlions in the controcl; A pcrfonnonce obliaotion is a promise in a conlroct with n c11~to111cr 10 lran&fer • good or service to 
the cu;lomer, 

Stop 3. Determine the lronsnclion price: The lrnnsoction prico is tho amount of co,i,idoralion lo which tho Con1pn11y ••p•cts lo be cnlillod in oxchnngo for 
tronifcrring promioc~ goodi or Jervicc5 lo• cu&lomer, excluding omounls collcclcd on beholfoflhird parties. 

Stop 4. Allocnlo lhc irnnsnclion price 10 tho performance oblian1ions in the eo,llrnct: For o eontrncl 1he1 hllS ,noro than one porfomtonce obligntion, tho Company 
,vi ii olloCJ!I• lite tro11;octio11 price lo each perfonnoncc obligRlion in on amount lhol dcpic!s the omount of comidc111tioo to which lhc Compony expeols lo be 
entitled in cxch;mge for Si1li;fyins ciJch perfQrm;mcc Qbligt1tion, 

St8p S. Recow.nlsa revc,iue when (or te) tlns entity !allslie:s ;1 perrormance obllg;itlon. 

TI1e Comp:my !latisfie.s iJ perfonmmce oblig.ition and recognises rc-Vtmue over time, if one ar tlu: following criteria. is met: 

I. The: CU$1omcr simullnncou;ly recciv6 :md con$ume$ the benefit; provided by the: Comp:my'$ performo.nce !1$ the Compnny perform;; Qr 

l , The CQmpony's pcrfom1oncc ercatcs or enhances on osscl lhnl the customer controls 118 the asset is crcolcd or cnhonccd: or 
3. The C<>mpa,,f; Prrrorrnance tioes 11ot crCaie nn asset with iln ahtimlltlve u,e io the Oraup !ind the: cnrity h~s rm enfor'tt'tible tight to payment for pcrform,mce 
completed to dole 

Revenue i; mca;ured ~I lhc fqir v;1luc of !he eonsidc~lio11 received or rccciv;1blc, t11ki11y inl,;, gcco,,m1 contrgclu"lly def1ned c~rJN of p;i,ymenl, 

Ton nvt,111e 
Tho income from Toll eollccliQn is rccQ11,1iscd on the ncluol colloctio11 of loll rovenuo,. 11e1 of r;,venue shnro paid lo NHAI os p•r lht Conc~s•ion Agroomo,ti. 

CO~lfl':4('1 rt.VfhOt. 
Contr;sol revenue ;usooii1ted with lhe utility shifting incidcnlnl to ClOn!ilruC!tiQn Qf ro.1d nre rccQsnizcd i\J re-venue by rcrcrcncc to the ;Inge of completi1;m or the 

ptOjecLS at the btilam:e shcot J:liu. 'tho stage or tomplettDn of projcot l! determined by the pruportion th.it contr.ict co.st Incurred (or work perronn,J up 10 the 
balo.nea: 6lii0c1 da1e Loon 10 1IH1 ~sti,na.1cd 10ml COf1t,aci eogt,_ 
iho Compauio• oporolions lnvolvo l•vyl1111 of GST on tho co,mruc1lon wo,k. Good, a,,d Service t3JC i, 1101 rocolv•d by the Company oo ii, own occou111, ,ed,ee, 
ii is ta• collcctod on voluo oddod lo tho comrnoditr by the ,oiler on behalf of 1lie govommon1 Accordingly, ii l, ••cludod rrom resonue. 

hifti"t'Jf hifOnitl 

Fin.inci.1I inslruments which ilre me~un:d eilhcr ;1t amortised cost ,;ir al fnir value Um;,ugh other ci;imprehcn$ivc incQme, inlcre,5:1 income i; recQrdcd µsins the 

e1Te:e1ive in1ere.s1 r.u& (EUt). Elft is the rate 1h.i1 ~xaetJy dl!leount!I the estimated (uture eMh p;syments or ree4!ipls over lho expected lire or Lhe liniJnoi::tl 
ine1rumo»1 or o short.r period, where appropriato. 10 tho arosg U f1)'1rtQ omou111 of tho flMrtcial .u,e1 or 10 1ho &Mrtlaed co,1 of a nnanelal llabllhy. When 
Clllculotina the elTcclivc interest rote, the Company cslimotcs the expec1cd eosh flows by considerina oil tl1c contNclual 1om1a or ihc nnonciol in!lrumem (for 
exnmple, pr•p~y111ent, extension, coll ond si111ilor options) but docs nol consider t~c •~peeled credit losses, Interest income is included in finance income in the 
5latement ofprofil and loss. 

!:ileume~,it n11n1u':IH£ eon,p,0119111 

Oenct.111)', tb~ Couip3ny receives ;hort-term 3.dv.tnCc,5 l'rom its Holding Comp.iny. u~ing 1he pr.ic1Jc:al expedienl 111 Ind AS 11 5, the Company doc5 not adjust 
th~ promisud ftihount of considorotio,\ ror 1hc effects of o siU;llificar11 fmuileina eorllp<aiwru if h C}(pee1s, 11t eommet inception, thot the potiod lx-twu-1\ rho: tro.n!fcr 
or the promised good or scrvico to the customer and when the cuslomc, po~ for that 1100d or service will be one ycor or less, 

N•m-cnsh (D1tsid,rn1io11 
The Company opplio, tl,a roqulro,nonlt or Ind AS 113 fa,r Veluo M•••urom, ,u i• 1M11Suti119 tho fnlr volu• or tlte 00,1- e11Sh coo,ldern11on. If the fol, vnluo 
connol be rCI\Sonobly cstimotcd, the non•cosh consideration is mensurcd indirectly by reference lo the stand-nlone selling prico of the EPC conlrnct revenue. 

CoiilrllCt b1lloilm 
Contrncl n55,t, 

A reci;ivablc rep11:.$1;:nl$ !hi: Oroyp's right lo on P.mounl of c.oniidc:r&11ion th::11 is un~ondil ion&1l (i,c:,, only !he p~;agc;. of tim~ i; required before p.iyment or lhc 
considcralion i.s due). Refer ta iJcc.ounling policies offin.inofo,I iJS5elS in seclion (t) Fin.inoi.il Instruments .. inili.il reo:ognition and subsequent me:isuremenl. 

Trnde recti\'Abtn 
A receivable reprcsonls the Compnny's right lo on amount or considerolion llrnl is uncondilionol (i.o., only ilio passo11e ortimo is roquirod boforo paymoni of1he 
con;idcmlion i; due), Refer to ne:cauntlng policie$ of finiJncinl ~;cl$ in ;cc lion (I) Pingnchil in$!run1cnt; - inill!!J recos11ifion and ;ub;cqucn, mc:osurcme11I 



Soln1111t Ycdcshl Tolhvny Umitod 
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3.0S hx,s 
Curre11l incomr h1I 
Current income tilx assets and llabilhics arc mcos.ure:d 111 the ;1m0un1 cxpeoled to be tCCOVi!ftd frorn or pRid to the tax;ition i1ulhoritics. ll1e t3X rtilt9 3rld talC 
111,\13 w:ed 10 corttputo th@ omount ore th~e that -ire en;:iotcd or sub913..ndvoly CrhlCied at lhc reporting dale in the countries whettl tha: Company opcrot~ and 
gc11ern1os uuu,blo in~ome. 
C1,1rrcnt income tax n:il:\llrtg lo hams rccosniscd outs.idc profil or lo:5s is recognisaJ out.Sido profil or loss (cilher ir1 other 1:?omprehen!ivti hteomc or in cquiiy) 
Current l3X items ore recognised in com:liltion to 1he undetlyinQ transaction either in OCI or direclly in equity . M~n.l(l;@lrtMt pcrioJicnlly cvaluti1e.$ pos.itioru. 
token in 1he laK return; with re$pect to silu::i.lton:s i11 which apptieob1e.1o.x rcsuhuion;; arc subjcc.t to in11:rprl!:ifUiott and c1tablishcs provi&ion!; where appropriate. 

DererrcLI hll 

Deromld tRX is provided u$ing lhe liabili1y method on l\)1t1poro.ry differcm;:C$ between the tax b;i.scs ot asst11s and liabililie,j ond their c;mying ::i.mounl.5 rcr 
fiMncit1I reporting purpoit:.:s iii th& reponlng date, 

Dcfmed tn• liobllitle; dlfJ rvcogniscJ ror oll t••~blo tomporo,y dilTorcuoc;, ·••tPI: 
When the d~fcrr•d t•• liobility orlsos r1orn the h1i1ial rccojnition of goodwill or on ossot or liobiliiy In a lrunsoction !hat is not g b~inc$1i oombinolion •nd, at 
lhc time of the tr.ms;u;1lon, ttni!:cLS 1111:ithct the occounlins profit n9r tnxilble prorit or loss: 
Deferred l.Qx R~s.els nre recognised for o.11 dtducHblc temporary dirTerence:r;, the c.a.rry for.vttfd of u,luscd tax credits nod ony unu;ed bx iosses. ~ l"e-tte:d lax 
..,.i, .,.. r«ognls<d 10 1h• oxlofll tho! it is probobl• thot toxoblo prori1 will bo ovnllnblo ogoinst which tho dodootible tompomy J,ffcrtnets, and tho cnrry 
forward or unused tax credits and unused hl1' los,;e:; con \,e utilised, extt!pt: 

When the delorred lox .,..., rcloling tu U,c dedue1iblc tcmporory difference •ri;o; from lhc initiol 1eeos,1itlon of on amt or li•bililY in o lr;m;aotion thot i; not 
11 bu~incs; t1ombinn1i0n ~nd, Al U1c 1ir110 ofihc lrnnsocliPn, glfctli neither the t1C1C1ountmg pruflt J\0f 1n,rnblo profit or Ion, 

Th4; carrying omount or deferred t11x i.1551:b: is re:vloweJ 8( l}.QCh rcpor1ing dt1le nnd rcduC:ed to the ulent th:it it jg. 1iO lo,,ser prob11ble lh~1 $UfTi0ient t.u:,1ble 
profit will be a.vailab1e to 3.llow all or port of Hie defc.JTcd ln.x p.s.;el to be utilised. Unrecogn!!ie·d defilrr\ld lox nssets 9rc n:•Q.fis:ened DI ea1.h n!pOrling d:ue and are 
recogn,:sed to the oxtanl tho1 it hl\S become probnblc th.ii fu1urc t:lx:ible ptolit, will allow the deferred tox tl.$set to be rel:!overe-d. 

DoforrcJ IRX .. ,ei. and liobilitiu ore moosured ol tho lox fill.S that nr~ expected to opply in lhc yi,ar when U,e amt Is rOlltiscd or lho linbililY i~ ;citied, b""cd 
on tax mtes (and tax l:1w1) that ho.vo been cnac.tcd or subst.antivcly enacted at the report ing date. 
Deferred I.Qx rela1ing to items rCCottnlsc-d outside. profi1 or loiti i~ recognised auuide profit 0t lois (ullJun in other c.omprc.hcn$ive inoome or in equhy). 
Deforrod 1:1x item, ~tc rc.:oanised in correlMion to th• underlying 1ron;oo11011 oilh.r in OCI or directly i" equity . 

Dol'tirtc1J lox osscis nnd def~rrcd tnx linbiliti~ ar<!-ofi's:ct If ti le.gaily onrorc011blc right, cxiilti to ,ct oIT e::urrent lax .is HLS 8Jt1ili1!t ieurrcnl 1ax li"bililiei nnd the 
deferred lnxc.s rel-11c IQ the silme wxable cniity n.nd the same 1mm1ion AUlhority, 

Mloinrnm Allernnte T11x (MAT ) 

Minimum Altem:Ste Tax (MAT) poid 1\$ per Indian Jnf;Qm~ T+ax Act, 1961 ,:a m the mHure of unused io.,c ere.di! which c.o.n be cmrried (orward and utlli10J '-Vhun ' 
tho Co!llp~11y will pay nom1nl income lpx during the speoifiod ponod. Oofotrcd tnx o!,uts on such IRX orodil is recognised 10 1hc oxtont 1h01 it is probable Iha! !ho 
unu!td lox crodil con be utilised in the spocif,ed fulur•• po nod. 11,e no! ornou,,1 of tox rccovcrnble from, or p,yoblo to, th• toxollon outhority Is included M pnn 
or reeoivablos or pnynbles in the bnl,nco ;h••~ At eooh Bolauca She.1 Jnto,tlic corryini nmount of MAT Crodlt Entitlomonl 1,ccivoblo is reviewed to renssurc 
reollmlur,. 

3.06 lntnnglblo n,sol.$ 
Under the: Con,;:e;$ii;m Agree men ls, wht!ra 1ht Cornpa.n~ hos rcctivcd ihc right to ch.use users or tha public !le.rvlee, such riahls. ore rcCO!!ni;ed :md dBSs.ified il5 

"lnlilllglble As.Set!". Such rl¥,hl is 11ot an uncondilion~t right to receive. consider·zitlon bteauso the QITIOlmts 1ue: contingent to 1he extent that Liu~ public ugos the: 
sorv,oo ond thus 1110 rocoanised nnd cllll'sifi•d .. inlongiblo ossol>. Such on lnia,19lblc asset is rccosni;ed by lhc Compnny 01 oo;l (which Is tlic foir volue of the 
considoratlon received or receivnblo for the con,truction s.rvieos delivered) a"d i; cnpitolized whon lh• project Is to11tplu10 i,1 oll r0$pects o"d whon the 
eompi'nic.. rccciv~ the completion te.r1Hica1a l'rom lh\l aulhority ns sp~cificd in the Conce:;sian Aijreemenl. 

Jntangiblo nsse:ts oc.quircd scpor~tcly are. meilSured on initiiil reeognhion ot cost. The cosl of into.nsible 11.5sets ;:u:.quirtd is their fbir value al the dote of 
nequisilion Following initial recognition, lnta1igiblo assets ore c.Rrcicd ot C0$1 len ony nccumulatcd :imo11l!o.1ion and eccumulntcd imp~irrm;nt IQ:.se.s., lnlemally 
gcni:rn!ed int;mgibles, exc:iludlng ttiphollscd development eosts; pre nQl capitn.lised ilmi tha tisl&hsd oxpenditurc ii reflected in profit or loss in the period In 
which the expenditure Is lncutttd. 
Tl,o Compo,1y oxorcisod first time odoption oxomption unde, t.1d AS 101 and hos elected to oontinue with th• torrymg w,luu or its "Toll Colloction Right•" 
(1ntsnaiblc ossc~ under development), 11s reCOj,nisuJ in lho: finonciel litAlcm~nti !:Ui at the date. oftnmslllon nte,as\Jrt1d M per the pr~viou5 OAAP ::i.nd u:.es that .u 
its deemed CO-it ~ nt date of1r:1n~iliOr'I. 

Toll Collection Rights 
Toll (:Qllection rights arc ;rn1eJ at cost 1ust of oc.c.u1m1lalcd :itrnorti;;Jtion :md imp,mmcnt l~se:s. Cost includes: 
Toll Colleelloil Rights owar~ed by tho grontor ngomst ton;1rueilon sor,lcc rondorcd by the compony on DBFOT basis - Dlr.:ci ond indirect expense,; on 
•onstruc1ion or ro•d•, bridge,;, ouiverts. lnfr.1,11ue1u10 ond 01h01 IISSCl8 •I the toll plo,o,;. 

Toll Collection Rish'> ore omorti,ed over tho period or concession, using revenue b""od amortis.11lon o, proscribed in Ind AS 38. Vndor this mothod, tho 
carrying volu• of tho l'lghts Is amonised in lhc proporliot• of ootunl toll re.vonuo rot tho ytar lo projected revenue for tho bnlnnoo loll period, to reflect tho pollen, 
in whi,h tl1u moi, oCOitomic bcncflls will be con;um•d At ooah bafantc ,l,w Jal$, tho projcclcd rcvo"uc for tho bolancc loll petiod II reviewed by tlio 
mon•H•m•nt. lrthctu is a,,y chonsc in the projootcd rcvcnu• from prcv,ou, 011lrnatos, the omortiilllion of loll collcotion righ'> I, thonged p1ospoc1ively lo rcfloct 
any dui.riiJ.65 iii 1ho v.stimnlcs, 

Amoi•Ut11Uou of lntnn2lble A.nets 
Th¢ inlt'lnBible o.sscts. whic;h n.re rccogni~cd in 1he form of Riah1 to ch1uec user$ of the infrastructure esse.1 are o.moniscd by toking proporti~;m;,te of ilcilu.il 
revcnYc re:ceived for the year ovet Total Projcc1ed Rcvc"1,1e from project to Co~, ar lnl3ngible assots. The cslimalion of total projection revenue requires 
$ignificant 11.5sumption ilbout t>Cptr::tcd '1,fOwth mlc And traffic pr1;1jeotion ror fulure. All BS.!urnpUons arc: rcvicw-c:d nt e.nch reporting d::i.te. 

3.07 Rcsnrfocing E1.pti1St'8 

The Compllll)' hilS :3n obligation io moinlaio. ii& rond~ lhcy oper;i,tc and hmte in addilou 10 routine maintoint)nce expenses, periodic m~lntattanco of roads is 
rrqulttd to be cMricd ou1, Pro"ison l$ milde for 1hc plilnned e.xpendhuru for the period, Al lhc end Qf whitih rcsud~clns; would bl! required, out of lhc totnl 

on1i1lcd poriod by the mo.nagement. 

3.08 Dorrowli,g eom 
Borrowing C:o5t.s includes i111orcs\ and omortisa,lion Qh.naiU,uy co5l5 mcum::d in eon1h~c1ion with th¢ nrrnngcrn~nt of borrowings. 
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J.09 Con1h11cn1 lloblllllu 
A conlinicni liability i9 a possible obligollon that ori«; from PMI cvcnls whoso exl11ont e wlll be conrirmed by the occurrence or non-occurroocu of o,,o or 
more uncertain futyr~ ~vc.nt.9 bC)'Ond the comfol of 1hc tompany or o1 prc~e.nt obligDtion th11I is nol rccognisvd b6CiiWa ii Is not prob.1blc th.ii on 01,11flow of 
ruourt es will be required tQ ;,c1tl~ the obliantion, A cotuinac,\t Ji3b.lhy also arises in extremely rnre ~cs whc.rc there is &. liability 1h31 cannol be rcc;ogni:i;cd 
bocou,o: it cannOI be mco.sured reliably. TI1e Cc;,mpAny does not rcco,yniso a contingent liability but dlSclosi:$ i~ exi1acoce in the rlnenciol a1ui11-rnent!. 

l 10 lnipnirmcnl of 11on•fi11nncinl n$se:ts 

The Company .i.nc~$C$, Rt e~~h r~portin!J dotg:. whother th,ns (9 ~n indic.ilion lh.it ;iq nset mpy be impaired. If Buy irtdlc.\ilon u1sts, or when .innyal 
tmpoinncnL 1u tlr1ij for lffl asset is required, the Compony c.slimotcs iho as9c11s te:covet~ble. amount An ns;c\'$ rccovernb1e '1mounl is the hialitr (I( l\n 3!:!n,t·~ or 
cosh-gcnerolin; unit'& (CGU) (air value less costs Qf dispQs;I ond ils volue in uso. Rccovomblo amount I; determined for nn individuol t!SSCI. unless lite &S!Ot 
does no! genern!c ~;islt inOoWit lhoi ftlo larsely independent of thQ,e from olhcr 11SSets or Co,,,patty's of ,mm. When the canyins amQunt of on MSC! or 
COU exe:eed, it; rccoveroblc amount, tho asa<it 19 comidcred imp.sired .1nd is written down to its recoveroblti a,t'IOlir'lt. 

111 as!esslng; value m use, the estimated future cash flows arc discounted 10 their present value using ;i. pre•tDx discount rate that rGneet.! t Ul'1~nt miirket 
~1sessmehli of tho lime value of money and lite risks specific 10 the mel. In delom1lnin11 fui r V3luc les; t osts of disposal, recent mprkct lmnsoctions arc takon 
into :u:ct;iun(. Ir no ,uch trn.risoctiorit can be idi:in1Hied, an appropri;i!e vnlu1,1!ion model is us.;d. Tha!e e111cuhuiOn5 .ire Gorroborilted by vnl11glio11 multiples, 
quoted :sh;irc prices for publi~ly tn,ded companies or 01her Bvallablo f.slr v.ilue indicator;. 

J.11 Provisions 

Provi~ion;; are recognised wlum the Contp:my h.u a present oblig,11ion (lcgitl er eons1ructivo:) os n rC!ult of a pilll event, it is prob:ible lh'11 QQ outflow of 
re.sources embadyina cconon,ia ben~fi1-& will be required to se11le. the obligiltion and 11 reliable e;1imote cnn be made of tho a ,nou1ll o( the. oblig:1tion. The 
cxponso rtlatiflg to a provision is prcsenlcd in (he $I01¢men1 oft>rofh and loss r,<it of an)' reimbursement 

lflhe effect of lhe lime vnluc ofmo,,oy 1, 1t'llllltrial, ptovisions ,1re discounted wing a eurrenl pre-true. rate Ilia, teOttUI, when ilppropri;:ite, the ri~k, ipccifio to U1e 
ll&bl111y. When discounting is uied, lhc incrensc in ihc: pro'Vi!lioh due 10 the p.issilge of time i:i: recognised PS R finance cost Provision! tLte teviewrd 1i1 rilch 
biJluncu slid! du10 nnd ,1djusted lo rcncct !he currcr1i bcr;1 cslimotcs. 

J.12 C~1h 1u111iorc (grn110 ftom gr,u,co.-
Grnlll rtJ:c-0ivtd 3.J~ tonsldercd i\s .i p3.rt oftolal oullny of lhc construcHon project The some sh::sll be rct!ognizc when the en1i1.Y complies wilh 1hu tonJil!ons 
-11taching lo colleclion orgrall1 consid<!r~d 3.S ;s fin:mdlll 111sct and it &holl be simuUoncously rt1duco: rrorn tht cosl of;:u:;qui.sitii;,n of the i11t3n11ible asset and aro 
rccogni,cd, 

3, 13 F'l11R1tdnl ht!ltumentt 
A futancfal Instrument ls ;:Jny contmct Utiil aivcs rise too fl1HU\C:i~I asset of one entity and n fin;mci~I lit1bility or equity ins1ru1l1Cl\t of drlOthet t ntity. 

/11/tia/ rccognltlon '"'J n,e41surd111f!nl 

All f1nnneiol i155els ate ,eeognised initi.slly ill fnir vt1luc plus, in 1he C.t\SC of n,\anci~I t1sseu not r~corded .st foir v.ilue lhrouah prolil or toss, iroMtiC.lion to~~ 
that are ottribqloble lo lhe ocquisillon of iho fmaneiol amt. Purchase; Qr ;nle1 or finnnciol IIS!ol! thai requite delivery or nsscts within • lime frqmc 
e;tabli;h,d by regulotion or convenlion in 1ho IIIBtkol pl~eo (regullir way trade,) are recogni,ed Qn lhe lride dnto, I.e., tho dole that tho Company commits to 
purchmso ot aoll tho as,et. 

The me.1!.urcmcri1 of linnnciol linbililios d(ip@rn.h on their olmific,uion, 11; de.$cribcd bc::low; 
For purposes oraub~cquf!nl nic3!1urement, fin::sncial anc!; ore cl~ificd in four cotciories: 
Dc,bt ir1~trummts .st ::smorti.:;~d c~I 
Debt in;trumcnt3 81 fair vo luc lhrough utlr~, comprehensive income (FYrOCI) 
Debi itlllltu1n0Jlts, detivat,ves nnd equity in;truments ol fnir voluc llirouuh profit or lo!' (Fvrl'L) 
Equity instrument$ rneiliured Ai foir vqluo 1hrou,ah Olher tomprl!lumsive inc,ome (FVTOCJ) 

l.ou11s a1td bnr,mviugt 

This is the CDt-OijOt)I 1tt0s1 relevant to the Company, i\Ocr inilial r~coanilion, i111-0ro;1-beorl,ri; loan~ and borrowings nre ,~b,cqucntly meosurod al amortised cost 
~ins lhe l?IR rnclhod, Howevor, tha com pony has borrowings at no~ling roles, Considering lhai U10 i1npael ar reitatement of effective inl<r0$I rate, year on year 
due. 10 rc~i:t of inleros.1 rnlc, is nol n)3leriul tmd hence the compilny ii ornortisine. the 1rnns~clio11 cosc ill !!ffll!;hl lme basis over the tenure of the concession 
period. Gain$ nnd losses Arc roco;niscd itt profu or loss when the li.ibilitics. nre dr:rei;ogniscd as \1/CII as 1hrouih 1lt6 11'3.n!3Ction cost .imortisalion Pl'PtCii, Thi5 
category generally applio; lo borrowines, 

I>,rccn,:nl!fon 
A n,1onciDI 1111m (ot, whero applioable, • part ofa finonciol RSsel or po11 ors con,pany orsimrlnr (,nanoiol ossets) i1 primarily derccoaniscd (I.e. r, ,noveJ 
from the Conip,ny's bolooco shoc1) when: 
The right; lo receive cosh flows from iho MHt have: expire!d, or 

11,c Company hos transrerted its rights 10 reeeivc C!nsh flow~ from Che ossc1 or hos ossumod on obllgntlon to ptiy th~ received cD.Sh floW$ jr, full wi1hout material 
lay to a third party under• 'pMs•lhrou;h' orrunvemant: ond oither (a) the Company ho; tr~n$fcrred sub,lantially oil the risks and romtds o(tho asset, or (b) the 
Company has neither tr:m;fcrred nor rolAi11cd subslRnliolly ttll tho ri,ks •nd rewords o(the as.1et, but hM tronsfm-ed conlrol ofehe ll!IStl. 

When lhe Compan)' ha! lrw~C.rred ils rights to receive ca;h no,~ from an asse1 or hos v111c1cd 1010 a im•·through nrronsemenl, ii evoluale1 if and lo whot 
extent ii h~ relRin.cd lhe riski and reword, of own e:nhlp. When it hils neither trnn, fcrrcd nor retained substantially 3.11 or the risk.s n.nd rew.:1rdJ of the 0-5se:I, 
nor lransferred c9ntrol of the nssct, the Cotnpony continues lo rce:ognise lhe lransferred o.sc.l to the cxtom of the Co1np:1ny's conlinumg involvement, In 1h111 
ea.se, the Comp:my alio recognises nn oosociot1ld lioblllty. The ttansrerTed .isscl .ind the n~oci.i,tc~ liobilily ore measured oh a ba!\5 thtu ,enects the righl$ nnd 
obligillions thal the Company hlli ri:toincd, 

lmpuirmc.111 offtnancirll assets 

"frlit.le rH~iwnbll!i 

The compgny M.inogcmcnl has cvoluo1cJ thu ln1pairment provision reqmremenl under IND As 109 ond ha! listed do\vn below miljor rilols for trade .irid other 
n:ceivablcs impilirmenl provisionina; 

Trade receivable$ mn.jority pertoin to Govc.mmu1il reteivublc~. 1-lcnce there 1!. no milJor ri;k ofbiid dcbl.s. 



Soln1mr Ycdt!shi TollwQy Llmlied 
Notf!S to nnnneinl 8(8ttm~u• ror lhc )'C.DJ" cUdt!d MAl"~h 3J. l0l4 

Other f'itinncinl Asseft: 

Other Finnnoi?I A$;el5 mainly co,1sists of Loon~ Lo employee; nnd Security Deposit snd 01hcr deposit,, inLerc,;t accrued on Fixed Dep0sil;, loons Lo reloled 
pllrly, Bnnk Ouo,anlee Morgin receivable from rolatod party, Rolcnlion money receivable from NHAI, Orsn1 rrceivobie frqm NHAI ond othor receivables ond 
AdY8f1CC.8 ,nca,gurod tit 3n'lor1izcd cosl, 
Pollowinv ore the policy for specific financial B&so1s:-

Tvne of 011n11elnl nss•t 

Security Ooposit Seouri1y dcpoiil i& in the no1uro or !IOluLory deposits like electricity, tclcpho,10 deposl1>. Sinoe Lhey ose kepi wilh 
Gov~mnlent bodies, there i; IO\Y risk. 

LoAn5' Bonk 3uoron1ee 10 rel.ied party LQ;in/ D~nk GuQrnnltl) to group tOmp:mles ;ire 4;:onsidercd lo be good a,td lhlre .1re neither bceo Any pMt 
in!ito.nu; o(defoult nod ilhio mprui;gemcm do~n' t expcet ,my default in c11.Se c;,fsroup reecivoble!i. 

Rt!lt!nlii;m money/ <;;~nm rcccivabla Rclenlion mo11cv/ grnnf mojorlv nertain to Oovemmeni rcccivoblcs. Hence thttt is no m!ior risk orb.1d dt::b!i , 

lnrpnlrmont or r.11n11tlnl uw.s 
In nccordanct 11'1111 Ind AS I 09, the sroup pppJics c~pcc1ud t1~dh lo» (ECL) model for m~urcmom 011d recog111don of impoirmen! loss 011 !he followi,1g 
finonciol g;sell; nnd credit risk 11xpo;urc 
a) Fin.mcial ~sets thol nrc Jcl>c iostrumenu., ::md ;ire men.suri=d al amoniscd cost ~-~-, loan.s. debt sec.uritie:$1 deposits, 1r11dc rccoivable! i1nd bank b.1lance 

b} Finrmcinl mets lhot oro dc;bt ln!lrumt!:nts :ind nre me.p.sured M Ol FVTOCI 
e) Loose roc,ivablo, und,r Ind AS 17 
dJ Trade receivables or nny controctual rl,ht lo reocivc oo,;h or onothcr Ononeial u!!ot 1hot rcsuh from lr•nsRctions that ore within 1ho !Oope 11f Ind AS 11 
nnd 11,d AS 18 (roferred to ;u 'con!rgctuRI revenue reteiv;1bt..' in lhe,e illu;ll1!1ive firn1neial st&lor"11er11>) 
o) Lo•n oommitments which nro not me;uured o,; o! FVTPJ. 
0 Financial gu:nantce C!onlraol!i which ".re noi ltlC!lSIJt1!1d a3 3t FVTPL 

The company docs r10L have any purchi'.l.$cd or 0riQinatcd credit-irttpolrcd (POCJ) flnoncip1 M-SCt.61 i,C,; finon¢lal mat~ which arc <:redit imptlircd on purchase/ 
origim1.1ion, 

ECL irnpoirmcnl loss ollowanco (or reversal) recoani.:ed durinjt tho p..tlod I; mognized ;u income/ cxpe09¢ in dro mtam,nl of profit ond loss (P&L) This 
nmtrunl is reflected under lhc head 'other expon;c,· in lhe P&cl.., 
r ln3m1i11I .i.s.s,ls me;.;ured D& RI ,unonitcJ co,t 3nd other conlmclmd rcvcnuu rcceivtible,:- ECL is pr~ented n.s on o.llowo.nco, i.e .. ft! an intf!grul pout 9f lhc 
mcnsuro,iie,u of 1hose-;is sets in the bolimcc _shctt. Th6 8IIU\v3nce reduces the net cnrrying amounL Un1II th~ iissd meel.5 writc•oR' criteria. the group doci:s not 
reduce impaimrniil allowunc:I!! from the gro,:; cru-ryins amount. 

Financinl ns6CIS moil!urcd n1 FYTQ(:1 • Finoncinl IISSCIS th~i ftre debt instrument; ere me11Surod ol PVTOCI. ECL amount is presented M 'oecu111ulaiod 
impainnenl nmo1,1nf in lhc OCI. 

Finp11clnl llnbllitles 

/;,II/al n!cut;nition nm/ 111eas11rcmc11t 

Fin.1ncii1l liabililies nrc classified, a.1 initial renognitir;m, M fmnncinl liobilitlt! :11 f.;ir v11luc thr1;>ugh profil or lois, loa,i! and bo1row111gs_, tnsde p:iyables. ilnd 
Olhi!r payable~. 

All linaneial li.1.b1li1ie:; nrc r,::~ogriiscd initl11lly at llur v.ilue and, in the c~e of loons and boFtO\vings and pay.il;tl,;, net of dircclly Bltributulile. ttarmrt:tion costs. 

llro Company's financial liobilitios Include l~dc ond Qlhor poyoblcs, loons 011d borfOw11111' inoluding ~ank overdrnft& and othor pnyobltt. 

S11bS1!flllt1it n11:ns11rf-111cnt 
The. me.isurement c,rfinorrciol linbilitio!I depends on their cl.i.;;ifli:n1ion1 ns dcscrjbod below: 

Fimlntinl linbilitie.$ Rf fnir v.nh,o through proli1 or Ion 

Finon,ial liobililies at fair value througlr profit or lo$5 include Onancial l13bllitics lrold for !roding ond finonciol liabill1io; dc•isnoled upon iniliol recognition as 
31 r3ir value through profit or loss. flnMeiol liobit/1ies ore cla;sifiod ns held fur trodlng lf 1hoy ore in,urred for the purpose of rnpurch .. ing in the neor term, This 
Cate.gory 3lso indud~ derivative fino.ncial itmtun11m1s entered inlo by lhc group that ore not design.1ted il$ hedging inslnmionts ii1 hedv.e tel:ilionships iJ$ defi"ed 
by Ind AS I 09. Separated embedded derivatives o,o ol,o ,l..,.ified •• held for trading unle,, they oro d«ignoled ., efTeclive hcdijing lns1rnmen1s. 

UJ#HS uttJ borrcm•lusy 
Tiii! Is the Cillcgory mo;:t rclc:v~nl to lhc Compwty. Ancr initial rcC!ognilion; intercsl•b0nrlng 103.rts and borrowings ore 5ubsequemly mensurnd at 11mor1ised co:.t 
utiing the BIR method. Howevt'r, lhe: comp;my hN borrowirhp rst nonhng r.Jle.s. Considi:riog lhal Iha impact of restatement or effective inlcrc.sl rntc, year on )'l!!:lr 
due to re;ct of intcrca( fl.lhl, is not m.ileri.1l and heniic the company is 01norli!ing the lriJ.nsac:tion co:;I in &lraiV,111 linu ba!ils over tin, lt!nure of the IOi'I\ Gains ond 
IOS!t"s .irc recognised in prol'U or los!I whtu\ the liabilities iJ.rc dc:rccogniscd as woll ti throug)1 lhe lr.lnsactit:m cost nmortisotion procMs. 
This ootegory gonorully opplics 10 borrowings 

J)crccug11itio11 

A finMciol liobllity is Jerocognrsed when !he obligotion rlhdor tho li3b1llty i, di,chorgcd or cancelled or expire;. When on cxi,1ing finonciol liability i; 
roploced by onother from lho somo lander on subslanliolly different lemts. or 1ho terms of on oxi,1ing li•bilily ore sub,uu1tlolly mod,fi,d, suoh an ""change 01· 
modification is lrealcd ns 1hc dcr~eoy.nidon or the. originil liilbility and tho rccog,titlon of tt new liability. The diffcrcue:c in the: rnspe:cllv~ C!anying iJ.m0'-111"5 is 
tteognised in the ; f.>.te.mcnl of prolil or los!I. 

Rcclnn iOcnllon or 011n11clnl o;,,u 
The Compnny de.tennim:s ot1niiia.ation arfinimc:uil osscls 3rid li~bili1lci un inilial rcci;,gnitioo. Aflcr initial tctojnidon, no rcd~sificalion is mode fot 11nanci3f 
mets whie;h ~re equity inslrumont!i o.nd Gnand.1I Hal;tililics For finnn~iol assol! which are debt in;trumcn'5, o rcclassificolton I! m3de only if there ii q, e:h11nsc in 
1he busin'-1$ model for monoiilll} U1o!e tts!cts. Ch.1ngC$ to lhc business 111odol are expected to be infrequcni, The Company's senior m.an.1gement determines 
eh'1nge In the bu; incss model as 11 r~suh of extem.11 1;1r i"lcmgl chonau.s which am signifloanl 10 1h1; CompttnYs opora1ior'rs. Such c,hilngcs one cvidenl to 
ex1tmutl p::irtics A chonge in iho busint!!.! model occurs when 1hc Compiuly (lithor bo&;ln! ar cea.ses 10 pcrrqnn Rn AClivity thol is: ilgnilic.1n1 to its oper11tions

1 
If 

th• Company reclo,;,iF,cs nn,neinl a ... 1, . It applle! the roolo,;sifi•~lion pro,pectivcly fr"om tho recl:u,ifacoliQn dale which is the flrst day or the inrmediotely ne"1 
reporting period foll1;1,vir,g the chrin,ac in b·uslr1ess rttodel, The CompilttY doe5 nol rcslnt6 ilr\Y prt:ivlously recogai;~d gains, lossos (if1cludlng lmp.:airment gain; or 
ll)S!U) or interest. 



Solnpur Yedos.t,i Tollway 1,imiled 
No10; io r.11,u1drll siruoment for Ilic year 011ded March 31, 2024 

Tho followin~ toble ,!rows vorlou; n,tl;.;;ificMlo,; and how U1cy aro accounlcd for. 
Ori•innf dnssi0catlo11 Rtvl1ed olnislffcnUon Acc;:011nlin11 trenlme.ul 

Amortised •~I FVTPL 
Foir voluc. is mcnsurcd a,t rechinific;ilion dnte. Difference between prcviou; 
nmortized C!O:SI ilnd rilir v:1'ue is 1teognised In P&L. 

FVTPL Amortised cosl 
Foir voluc ul rccl;i.nificgH,;m d;uc becomes it.5 new gtMS eatrying 11rnount. EIR is 
oa.kul:11cd based on the new aro!! C4rrylng amount 

Amortised tost PVTOCI 
Fair villuo is measured Al rc~IQ.&,Sificp;lion dale, Difference bt:lwccn puwious amortised 
co,1 i11"!4 fi3ir v.iluc ii rcc:ognised In OCI. No el1;mgo Jn ElR doe LO reclassifico1ion, 

Fair voluo a1 1ecla;;lric~tlor1 d,io b4con1e11 i1s new amortised •~I •~rrying amount 
FVTOCI Amortised co1t However, ~umulaliv~ anin or !OS$ in OCI is 11djwted 11~ins1 r.iir villuc. Consequ11:.ntly. tho 

osscl ii; mcn::;yred ;i; if it h.id illw.iy, bc~n meiUured at nmor1lscd eost. 

FVTPL FVTOCI 
Fair volue 01 rod;;;ificotion d.ie boeort1os ii! now carrying amounl, No olher odjll$in,ent 
I; roqulrnd. 

FVTOCI l'VTPL 
As!cts cominuc to be mcMurcd foir v?h,u;, Cumul11tive g.1in or los.s previo115Jy recognized 
in OCI i, reclll.$;ificd to P&.L at the rec;hissitiea1ion date. 

OITsttllng of nnAnclnl lnslrPmc111, 
Finortc,~I Mlol, a,1J flnoneiel liobililics arc olfacl nnd lhc nel ~moµn t ii reported in the bolanoo slre,1 Ir thcra is a currunlly onro,cooblc legal righl lo offscl the 
recognised amount; gnd !here i; on intention to ;ettle on • net bo,i,, 10 le.tis. tho assets artd solllo the liobililios simullaneou.ly, 

3,14 lmpAlrmcnl ofn11onciol nucu 
The Company n.55¢5.5¢$ on o forw1ud looking b;1;i; the expected credit lo.sses ;usO(lnted w11h Its 11!.S&I! eartiod at amortised cost nnd P'VTOCI debt in~rumenLS, 
The impoirment methodology opplied depends on whethot 1hoft lros b<l,n o sig,1ifleo11i i11ercssc in credit risk 
For trad• receivobl•• unly, Ure Cort1pany applies the simpliflcd opprooch pcm1illcd by Ind AS 109 Finonciol Instruments, whic-h lcquiro; expected lifotlmo 
lo,s,, to be. recognlsud front inilittl recoanilio11 oflho reccivoblcs, 

3. i S Cu•h 1111d ruh ,quivnltnlt 
C11Sh .ind c.uh equlv3.1en1 in the balance shoot comprise ca9h nl bflnks ond on hand pnd :;hort-lcnn deposits with .in original maturity ur 1hrti n10,1ths or lts9, 

which oro subjocl (o on insitllliflconl ri•k oFohanyos i• voluc, • 
For lhe. purpose or the !ilatement or e-::i!h no~. ta!lih arid c.ash tquivalen19 consisl of ensh nnd shorMcrm depo;its, 11$ ch:fincd .ibove, net or oulsiilnding bank 
overdron, o; 1lrot at~ co~!idorcd M imogrel port of tire Comp;my's cPsh m;mpycrnent, 

3.16 Enrning!I' per shnre 
O.L$ic ,mmings per sh3re .1re cnloulal!!d by dividing thG m!lt prone Ot lou for lhe purioJ 011ribul~blc lo cquily shgrcholdern by lhc weighted average number of 
equity !h.Jre! Oul!litandlng durint, 1ho period. 

For 1h11 purpo1e of eoleuloting dilulod comir,e• pc1 shore, lhe ncl profil or loss for tire period aurlbutoble 10 equity ,lrorolroldcr.1 and th• wulglrtod ave1age 
11um~c1 of shares oul5to.nding duri11g the period ore odjv~ied for tire e!Teol, of oil dilutive potential equity ;hMti. 

3, 17 S.g111e111 l11ror010Uo11 
Tiu1 Comptmy Is engog~d ill •1Road lnrrastruciurc Projcc;.is'' which in 1he contc:_xt of Ind AS 108 • Operalins Srgments Is coruidc,e-J u 1he: only illi1liileu1. The 
ColTipAlly's activities nrc res1ricted \.,ithin l"dip tmd hence no $Cparntc geogr.iphic.11 segment dlsclosu,e is ~onsldtrcd no:cc!!BI')'. 

3.18 l\tnlerinl nccounlln.: policy infomlftli6n 
The Comp•ny adopied Disclo,ure of Accounting Policies ( Amondmcnl! to Ind AS I) from I April 202), Allhouah lhc Amcndmcn~ did not re;ull in any 
ohonges In tho ocoounting p01lclos 1he,r1sclY()s, the impoctcd the accounlinQ policy infom1otion diselo;cd in the finoncial stotemont., . 

The 11rncndme.nt; rcq1,1ire the discilosurc of"m.J.terial' rather than •~ignl flco.,u' aceounijnJJ; pulicil.)S. TI·1e an1cndmcots olso provide g1,1idonce on the (Jpplic:i.tic;m Qf 
m.ileri:illy to dlselosure or 3eeou111i11g polkfos, ussi5tin~ '1niitica to provide uscful1 enlity spe~ifia i;iccounling policy inrorma.tion that user-5 nl!ed to unddr!tand 
otl1er inrurn1atio,, In tho l1110,1cial atotcmoola. 

J.19 Amendmenl In Ind AS and lcs rffrcllve 
Miulslry ofCorporolc AIThiri ("MCA") noliflc$ now $lnndQrd$ or ?mendment., to lhe existing ;1onddfds under Compaliie, (Indian Aecounling Slandords) Rul .. 
ns issued fcom lime to time. For the yeor ended Maroh 31, 2024, MCA lro; 1101 notified or,y ,,cw a1ondArd5 or nmcndmcnli 10 lhe ox[$liny $1andards oppliooble 
lo lhe Compony. 



Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to financial statements as at March 31, 2024 

Note 4: Other Intangible assets 
(~in Millions) 

Toll Collection Rights 

Particulars As at March As at March 
31,2024 31, 2023 

Gross block 
Opening balance 13,748.55 13,748.55 
Additions - . 
Less: Deductions/adiustments - . 
Closin11: bnlnnce 13,748.55 13,748.55 

Depreciation /Amortisation 
Opening balance 592.98 424.01 
Additions 156.93 168.97 
Less: Deduct.ions/adjustments . . 
Closing: balance 749.90 592.98 

Net block 12,998.65 13,155.57 

Tangible & Intangible assets are subject to first charge io secured long tenn bQrrowing from the lenders. 



Solapur Yed~shi Tollway Limited 
Notes to flnnnclal statement$ as nt M:,rch 31, 2024 

Note S : Fi111rncial as~~ts (turrent) 
5.1 Investments 

tnveslments in Mutual Funds (quoted) (FVTPL) 

5.2 Trnde receivable 
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise statc:d) 
- others 

S.3 Cash 1111d cnsh equivalent 
Cash on hand 
Balnnccs with banks: 
- In current accounts 
- In escrow accounts 

5.4 Other bonk bnhrnces 
Debt service reserve account with bank$ /carmurked balance 
- M111urity more than 3 months but less Utan 12 month 

Major maintainance rese1-ve occount with bnnks / earmuked balance 
- Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 month 
Deposits with banks 
• Maturity more than 12 months 

Debt service reserve accounV m~jor maintenance reserve account and trust, 
rclcntion and other escrow accounts. 
Bank deposits are marked lie,1 / pledged Hgi1inst the non current secured loan as 
per term loun agreement with the lender, further the len<!ers have first charge on 
trust, 1·etention aud other escrow acc-ounts. 

5.5 Other l11111nd11I assets 
(U,1secured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 
Retention money receivable 
- from NMAI & others 
Other rccc:ivable 
- other pnrties 
Balance wiU1 government auU1orities 
Security and other deposits 

Note 6 : Current hU'. llSSCIS (net) 
Adva,1ce i11come tax (net or provision for tax) 

Note 7 : Other current nsscts 
(Unsecured, considered good unless 0U1erwise stated) 
Advance givc:n lo suppliers 
• others 
Duties and taxes receivable 
.Prepaid expenses 
Total 

As at Mareh 
31,2024 

0.91 

13.35 
26.20 
40.46 

520.00 

2.00 

522.00 

0.47 

29.93 

4.25 
15.64 
0.50 

S0.79 

11.73 
ll,73 

7.28 
0.30 
6.93 

~ in Millions 
Asnt 

March 31, 2023 

72.82 

?l.82 

29.37 
29.37 

1.01 

4.35 
19.50 
24.86 

260.00 

520.00 

2,00 

782.00 

3.13 

9.49 

5.24 
6.06 
0.SQ 

24.42 

4.42 
4,4:2 

0.04 



Sulnpur Yede-shl Tollway Llhitlcd 
Noles to financial •tatcmenu 11$ ill March 31, 2024 

Nole : 8 : Equity 

A) E:<111i!y shnre capital 
n.Authoriscd Share Cnpital 
At the beginning oflho yw 
luereaso <lurl,1g the ycnr 
Al lite end ortl,o Y••r 

b.lssuctl, ,ul,;cribcd and pnid-uJl sho re c111>it111 
Equity •hare of Rs. 10 oaelt ls,ued, iubscrlbcd and fully f1ald up 
At the beginniug of the year 
lncrcnsc during 1hc yenr 
At tho ond orth• }'llfir 

c. Term,/ rights attached to equity slrntes 

Asnt 
March JI, 20Z4 

982,SO 

982.50 

98l,SO 

982.50 

fin MIiiions) 
As nt 

March 31, 20.ZJ 

982.SO 

982.50 

982.50 

982.S0 

The Compan)' hns only one class of equity shares having par vnluo of ~ 10/· p,;:r shore. Each holder or equfly shnres iscntitled to one vote per share. In the event ofliquidntion 
oflhe Company, lhe holders ofequhy shores will be entilled lo receive remaining "-~•ets of1he Company. atler dislribu!ion ofnll preferential amounts. The distribution will be in 
proportion to lhe number of equity shores held by lhe shareholders. 

d. Roconcilintio11 of lhe number of shares oul$tm11I111g 1111d !he amount of sh~re Cllll:..:il.::.lll:..:.: ____________________________ _ 

As 111 As at 
Equity shnl'CS oH 10 cnch issued, subscribed 1111d fully paid 

At the bcginninB of the year 
lncr~se durini! 1hc year 
At the end of the ycnr 

c. Dctnil5 of the hold Ing more thnn 5% share• in the Com1mny 
Out of equity share• issued by lhe Company. shares hold by its holding company•• below: 

From fellow subsidiary and holding 
IRB lnfr.,structure 1'rusl, (hotding company) 

Nntc, : S11bo1·dlnato Dobt 

Subordin11te debt 
A1 the beijinning of the year 
lncroD$e/(decrcase) during the year 
At ihe end of the ye11r 

Note :10 Other E9uity 

Attri~ulnblc lo Ilic cq11ily holders 
I. RctnfnQd car11lng1 
At the beginning of U1c year 
ProOl/(Loss) for 1ho yeat 
Tuinl rclninc~ cArnlngs 

2, 01hcr com11rchcnsh•c h1co11;1!/(lo1s) 
Rc-m•n•ureme,it ~•I••/ (los,"l') on donnod benefit 1ilottY 

At lhe begittning !if the ycpr 
lncrcnse/(dcc,e:u~) du11ng 1hc yc~r 
At thcend ofll,o yeor 

Tolol Other t,1ui1y 

Mnrch 31, 2024 Marc.It 31, 2023 
No. of slrnr!!S (_tin million!) 

9,82,50,000 982.50 

9,82,50,000 982.$0 

As Ill 
Murch JI, 2024 

No. of share• % holdinG 

9,82.50,000 100.00% 

9,82,50,000 100.00% 

( ~ in Millions) 

As nt As nt 
March JI, 2024 M1n~h 31, 2023 

4.423.70 4,423.70 
(4.423.70) 

4,423.70 

(~ill Millions) 
As at Asnt 

March 312024 March JI, 2023 

(2,283.71) (2,058.2') 
(844.60) (22S.44) 

(31 128.31) (2,283.71) 

(3,128.31) (2,283.71) 

( , 111 niillions) 
9,82,50,000 

9,82150,000 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

982.50 

98l.50 

No. ofshnres ¾ Milling 

9,82,50,000 100.00'Yo 

9,82,50,000 100,00% 



Solnpur Ycdeshi Tollwny Limited 
Notes to ilmrncinl stntements as lit Mnrch 31, 2024 

Note 11 : Non-current financial liabilltles 

11.1 Borrowings 
Secured 
Non-convertible debentures • OU1ers 
Less : Unamortiseu transaction cost 
Sub total (n) 

Unsecured 
Loan from related pnrties 
• interest bearing 
Subordinated Debt 
- interest bearing 
Sub totnl (b) 
Total (a+b) 
Terms & condition 
11,S&cured 

As ot Moreb 
31, 2024 

5,910.00 
(66,85) 

5,843.15 

4,000.00 

4,209.67 
8,209.67 

~ in Millions 

Asnt 
Morch 31, 2023 

5,910.00 
(80,64) 

5,829.36 

4,000.00 

4 ,000.00 
9,829.36 

i) Secured by first charge on the movabl~ / immovable asset by way of mortsese / hypothecation, first charge on all intangible nssets, present 
a11d ftliure, sove and except the project assets ai1d the first chersc on borrower's account, including but not limited to the Escrow Account nnd 
tho Sub-Accounts (or any account in substitution thereof), funds deposited from time to time (including reserves), permitted investments or 
other securities represent ins all amounts credited to the Escrow Account and receivables to the extent of the wnterfall of priority of payments 
to the lenders under Escrow Account agreement. 

ii) Tem1 loans have been refinanced during the financial year 2022-23 and Debentwes have been issu!ld 
iii) l'lcdsc of shares held by the major shareholder assregating 51% of the total paid-up equity share cnpital of the Company. 

iv) First ch11rg~ on the Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve Account and any other reserves and othor bank accounts of the Company, 

iv) R.ato of interest on indian rupee loan from bnnks and financial institutions is MCLR Rate+ SpreDd, term loan repay~l>le in 195 111onthly 
structured instalments w,e.f.April O I. 2018 as specifled in the repayment schedule of the term loan agreement, 

v) Rnte of interest on NCD from financial institution is Coupon Rnte, NCD redemption, Tranche I & Tranche 2 - Series 2A in Septeml>er 
2027 ~ Series 2B to be repaid in 24 installments from November 2027. 

b. un~ecur~~ 
The loan from related parties shall be repayable in untrcptcd installments as per terms of the agreements, 

Note J2 : Long-tetin provisions 
Major maintenance expenses 

The movement in provision for resurfacing expenses is as follows:­
At the begiirning of the year 
Add:- Provision during the year 
Less:• Utilised during the: year 
Less:• Current 111a1urities 
At the end of U1e year 

The above provisions ate based on current best estimation of expenses that n1ny 
be req11ircd to fulfil the re.surfasing obligation ns per the service c-0ncession 
agreement wiU1 the National Highways Authority or India. The (lct11nl expense 
incurred at the end or Uie period may vary from tne above. No reiinbut'Sement are 
expected from any sources against the above obl.igation. 

103.57 198.95 
103,57 198.95 

198.95 124.34 
88,52 74.61 

183.90 
103.57 198,95 



Solnpur Ycdeshl Tollway Limihid 
Notes to financial st;1ten1ents ns at Mnrch 31, 2024 

Note 13 : Current linnndol llnbilltics 
13.1 Borro,Yings 

Unsecuted lonn 
• From related parties 
- Interest free 
lllterest accrued but 11ot due on borrowings 
Total 

As at Mnrch 
31,2024 

1 342.15 
1,342.15 

l11e unsecured loan tnlcen from holding company which is repayable on demand and arc interest free. 

13.2 Trade Payables 
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and snrnll enterprises 
b)total outstanding clues of creditors other than micro and s1:nall e11terprises 
• related pnrties 
- others 

Total 

13.3 Other lin11nclnl liabilities 
Due to directors 
Retention money payable 
• related parties 
• others 
Deposit (POS) 
Revenue share payable to NHAI 
Other payables 
- related parties 

Note 14: Other current llobllltlcs 
Advance rrorn customer 
- others 
Statutory dues payable (i11cludi11g PF, TDS, GST & others) 

Note IS : Provisions 
Major maintenance expenses 

2.08 
11.20 
13.28 

0.16 

22.12 
24.38 
0.11 

28.14 

4,89 
79.80 

2.03 
6.40 
8.43 

183,90 
183.!)0 

( { in Millions 
Asat 

Mnrch 31, 2023 

114.82 
539,90 
654.72 

219,69 
6.81 

226.50 

0.08 

6.44 
24.03 
0.1 I 

22.34 

4.89 
57.90 

2.03 
1.55 
3.58 



Solnpur Ycdeshl Tollway Limited 
Notes to li1rnncial statement for the yenr ended Mnrch 31, 2024 

Note 16: Revenue From Operations 
Operating income 
Contract Revenue (road construction) 
Income from toll collection 
NHAf Revenue share Fasuig 

n. Di~aggregated revenue information 
Jncome from services (Revenue from contracts with Customers) 
Income from toll collection 
Contract Revenue (from NI-IAJ - Utility shifting) 
Revenue share to NHAI- Pastag 

b. Performance obllgntion 
Income from toll collection 

Yeor ended March 31, 
2024 

77.70 
1,272.76 

(10.30) 
1,340.16 

1,272.76 
77.70 

(10.30) 
J,340.16 

The performance obligation in service of toll collection is recorded as per rates notified by NHAI. 
Contract Revenue 

(, in Milllons) 

Year ended March 
31,2023 

3.32 
1,295.10 

(16.75) 
I ,281.67 

1,295.10 
3.32 

(16.75) 
1,281.67 

The performance obligation under contractual agreements is due on completion of work as per terms of contracts. 

Note 17 : Other Income 
Bank deposits 
Others 
Gain on sale of investment 
Other non-operative income 
Fair value gain on investments 

Note 18: Road work and site expenses 
Contract expenses 
Operation and maintenance expenses 
Site and other direct expenses 
Technical consultancy & supervision charges 

Note 19 : Finance cost~ 
fnterest expense 
• Term loan from bnnk / financial institutions 
- Debentures 
• on unsecUl'ed loan from related parties 
• Unwinding of discount: on provision of MMR 
Amorisntion of transaction cost 
OU1er finance costs 

54.68 
0.25 
4.77 
0.06 

59.76 

77.70 
245.14 

0,00 
3.35 

326.J9 

513,51 
1,192.25 

22.18 
13.79 
1.19 

l,742.92 

26.81 
0.20 
3.74 
0.05 
0.21 

31.0J 

3.32 
230.65 

10.20 
244 . .17 

212,66 
263.10 
560.00 

13.86 
7.15 

26.68 
1,083.45 



Solnpur Yedcshi Tollway Limited 
Notes to nnontlal sta1c111cnt for the year ended Morch 31, 2024 

Note 20 : Depreciation nod amortisation expenses 
Amortisation on intangible assels 

Note 21 : Other expenses 
Renl 
Rates & taxes 
Travelling & conveyonce 
Directors sitting fees 
Legal ond professional fees 
Payment to auditor (refer note below) 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Bank charges 
Tnsurance 

P:iyment to auditor (including service tax / GST) 
As auditors: 
• Sratutory oudil fees 
• Limited review fees 
In other capacity: 
• Other services (certification tees) 

Note 22 : Tax expenses 
Total tax expenses 

Year ended Mnrch 31, 
2024 

156.93 
156.93 

0.04 

0.10 
0,03 

0.37 

16.81 
0.36 
0.21 

0.00 
0.09 

18.01 

O.D7 
0.11 

0.18 

0.36 

0.47 
0.47 

( f In Millions) 

Year ended Mnrch 
31, 2023 

168.97 
168.97 

0.02 

27.47 

0.30 
13.20 

0.28 
0.15 

0.02 

0. 11 
41.55 

0.07 

0.1 l 

0.10 
0.28 



So101llir Y,dMhl 'rollwoy Llmli•d 
Nolu lo rin;mcinl sl11lm 1,111 for lht )"tnr tnd,d l\tnrch Jl, 201,4 

Note 23 1 Enno ht£• per shnre (EPS) 

D11$ic £ PS nmounls Dre! cnkul.itcd by dividing the profit for Iha period attribumble lo equily sh.::ueholdel"5 by the weis;hlcd ilvertlgti numbu of Equity :!ih!tn Oul!ltmdlr)fi' dutlr'I$ th~)'l!:at. 

Dilutod EPS 6niOui118 a1e c:11eula1cd by dividing 1ho pio01 3llrlbutllblc lo cquhy ilmrcboldm by 1ho 1vciBhicd average number of f!quily ;hare$ OUl$lllnding during lhe period pl~ ,he weiQ)ucd evornao 
number of E(1uity sh~te. 1ha1 would b<I lssuw on convo1sl0n or ill 1ho dllutlvo vo1emi.1 £q1thy shuct Imo Equity slwcs. 

Tho follow,n~ rcn~ts 11111: ir1c-0mo 8-Iid s11-11ro d.tuQ uso.d h1 th~ bulc tnd dllu1ed EPS c-0111pumion5; 

Profit ;ittribut.ible to equity l1older; for Mele lbarrhfi.i$ 

Wolghi.d iVCrDBC number of Squily ih~re; for ba,;io l!PS• 
Foe• volue per ; h~ru (hi Rs,) 
O:isio e3Jlling per sh;mi (in R5.) 

Yrnr,ndnl Mnrch J I, 
1014 

(844,60) 

9,82,50,000 
10.00 
(Uo) 

C, In Mi1fi11nn 
Yn r tm.lttl Mrirch 

J I, lOJJ 

9,82,50,000 
10.00 
(2,l~) 

• Tl1ote havo botH l!O 01hor mH~'\C!ion& involving Equity ihtirc. or potcnti11I equity $!hares; between the reporting date and 1he da1c of aulhoris.ition or lhese firuintli11I sblement.s. 

Nole 14 ! Df'tnils or dut's to micro nnd s111nll t'n lt'rp1·i;rs A!I pu• MSl\tED Acl, l006 
Unrl\tt lhC Micro, Sm1II Qt1d Mediu111 Enterpri$C:$ Dcvclopnu:111 Act, 2.006 ('MSMED') which c.ime into force from 2 OC!iober 2006, c;crtlin disc.losurcs ;:m: r~uircd lo be m,1dc rcl11ti11g to M icro, SmQII Pnd 

Medh11n 01iu,uprlscs On 1he bosls or1he infom\Qllon and rcc-ords AVAi111blc widl the 1ll,1nogemcn1, there are no oul$ianding due:; 10 the Micro 11nd Small cmcrpri.$cs a.$ defined in ihc Micro, Small Modium 
Bntcrpri~es Development Act. 2006 tl5 5131 Ou1 in tho followin~ J isclo~ure!. 
The disdo51,1rc in r~pect Qfthc amount p.iiyablc lo cntcrpri:.e!o which h.iivc provided goods ,md :.crvic~ lo !he comp,my ;:md whid1 qu.ilify under th~ definition of micro .ind !m1.1II enlcrprise:l;, ll.S defined 
under Mkro, Smtill :and Mudlu,n Emor,:,riso.; Da.vvlot,mon1 Acl, l006 liAS 1>4:1,111 ,uiidt In 1hu l11d AS nrurnclal &tAicm«il p.s Ill M0,,e.h 31, l0Z4 b~cd on ilic infom11uion rcceivt.d and avi:tilublo whl1 the 
comp:tny 

PAr1lcular-1 
r1rincipnl amount rem.aining un~id io ilill)' supplir:r as at the period end 

lntr:re51 duo thereon 
Amount of interest pi!iid by lhc Comp.my in terms of s~tion 16 of lhe MSMED AcL, 2006 (27 of 2006), 
nlo,1s with lhe 11mount ar lhe p;iyment made: to the supplier beyond the :appoinlc:d dll)' during eilch 
,ccou,11hii1 ~r/porlo~ 
Amounl ofintere-sl due and p.i)'ilble. for the period of delay in m~inij p.tymcnt (whith h:tvo btot!11 paid but 
beyond the 11ppointcd dny during the ye.ir) but without adding the intert~!il specified under the MSMEO, 
l006 

Amount or inter~t nccrucd :ind rcm::iinina unp;:i,id nl tha end of lhc aceounlin~ yrar/pcriod 

The -a111ount or rtmlie-r hHiMC:SI rernr,inlng due and payQblc: cvcfl in the i ui:.c¢c.ding yc.u$, 1mJil 51,1ch d!IIC 
when the inlcr(l~t dui!:, :11 3bow 11,0 :1c.1u1illy l),1id 10 tho s,nnll on1vo,tlso ror 1hv. purpose of 41~tlow,;in~ 
a.; 11 dcducilible expenditure under the MSME.O Acl, 2006 

P:ti1ic1ilan 

MSME Un~i1pu,ed Due,; 
l,.¢!i$ d111n I ycnr 
1,2 v.,,., 
1:·l VC3ri 
Mora than 3 t-tn!i 
Total duu ro mkro 1md smnll enlnp1·is rs as per MSMED Act, 2006 

lJ) Aµf'i ng Of crtditort Other lhtm mit:1"0 t1Utr'pt'i:9f1 1llld !iltli'4II flllftpri1ts ;U :ti 

Less lhan I ye.ir 
1-lY'-"ill 
2.0 :l Ye:i.rs 
M re thnn l elrs 
TofAI du« to trtd~to1•s athe1' thnn mlcl'o enre11wlse1 ond 11null euterpl'lsH as at 

c) out of the nbo,·, unbill,d amount 

Note 1!. 1 Pnlr Vnlmis 

As •• 
Mnth l l , 2.024 

n,w ,n~td Mi,rcli 31. 
2024 

A1 at 
l\l~U'f h l "I 1J _DJ_4 

10.19 
2.06 

I.0l 
13.2& 

3,14 

tin Millions 

Asal 
l\hr•h 31, 2023 

{ ~ in Millions) 
Ytartn~•~ March 

JI, 202~ 

< , In Mllllo11&1 
A1ot 

M~,~h 31, 2023 

l.81 

226.50 

Tl,o c.,~11\H vnlucs oftinanclr;ls lnsi1um,n1, ofth~ Comnllny or.; r~onQble and !!pproxim~tii;>n; of fQ,ir v11lues, 

r;1r1icul~rs 

Fimnltifll i\Ut!U 
Rmmoial anc:1::1 mt·;uurc:d DI iJmorJi:uod c:Pil 
Lo,ni 
O!lU.!f5 

Tnidc Receivable 
Co;h artd e:iili tqulvo!OtH! 
Other th:m Dank b:i.l;mce 

fiuJoGiaJ ;mot:. mmnvuaJ 31 r~,t vnJu; tlnou,•b 
lnnslmcnt, 

Flunnclal llnbllltics 
l!inam;iel liilbi!itic:; mew.sured At nmor1i::1cd cQ.ll 
Trnd, PIIY3blH 

I 

I 
Cl'ltT)'illt ilmOunl 

As nt 

40.4~ 
522.00 

IJ ,18 

As al 
M11r1:ch 3ti 202.l 

l 4.4l 
29.37 
~4,8(1 

782.00 

?l32 

( , in Millions) 

F~lr Vnlut 

AJnl J\Jnl 
March 31 2024 Mn1·d1 31 lOll 

40,46 
522.00 

13.28 

l 4.4l 
29.J7 
iu6 

782.00 



$ol~pur Y,drshl Tollway 1.111,iltd 

Noles to Onnnrlnl 51Alf11ifnl for the )'9r e.ndtd l\tnr<h JI, 202:4 

001,owln~ 
Oth,r fim1~ci.tl Jia i liie, 

IS,394,98 
n .,o 

10,484.08 
'790 

10,484.08 
!790 

Tho 1l1AnHQOm1:nt nss~s,:d thm1 et9h t1id Q;h t:qu1valcni$, trodo rttti~bl,,, tr.1dc p:iy,:iblci1 0011k overdrafts 11nd Other current li:tbilitics appro1Cirntuo 1holr ~rrying 11mount1 lor~oly duo to the sltort-1,mn 
mniu,hios orthnc lnsuumcnt.t;, 

Nott 26 : f'~ II" V111h1e Hierart.h7 

All fin:tnci:tl insl.nlmcn1s f'or which fair ~uc is rccogniHd or disclosed 11rc ca1c9oriso:d w11hin the (11ir value hicrnrchy d~eribed iUi follow;, based on the lowed level it1pu1 lh:il is s1~nilic.int 10 the fair 
valuo mc:isurcmcnt as n whole. 

Level I: Quoted (miadJuucd) pric;e is active nuuk.i (or identical ;wets or li!lbllhlc;. 
Level ?• Voh1'11ion lcchnique for which lliO lowtJI lovcl input th.u h2.t I t iamficant cfftct on the 1bit Vil~• m~urcmcnt 11e obi¢i'Vc:d1 fithtr directly or indirectly 

Level 3: V1lu111io111o<;t111lque for which the: low~t li;Vjl input tw a. 1ignif'ican1 cO'fct On the fair villue mcuWOftuml is not b3cd on ob~CN-"b1o market d;ib. 

Al•r<I, 31- lOH 
fi11flndnl Mstl.J 

Investments in Mutual F'undt 
Other$ 
Tri-do R~elv.1blci 
C.:uh iand nsh cqui\'1len11 
Othtr ihAn B~nk b3h'lnet 

Finnnclnl llablllll., 
Trode p,y.,blo, 
Dor1owing., 
01hc1 0111ne1al ll:1bih1ics 

Mardi 3 1. 2023 
Fh111orli,1 AUf l9 

lnvcsln!Clll1 in Mutu31 Funds 
Othm 
Trade Rccciv1tblc 
C.sh ,u,d ~!h e<tUiVillents 
01htr th3.n Bank b:i.fancc 

Fi11:mcial liabllitiu 
Trodo oar•bles 
Dor1owinS$ 
0 1hor fi1,n1i~ial li:1b1litie.s 

Nole 27 ~ f,"hrnuci:\I rit k mannaemut obhefivu ttml policiu 

•nl I 

50,1~ 

40.46 
SH.OQ 

13.28 
1!,394.9& 

79.80 

7l.82 72.12 
14..ll 
29.37 
24.86 

781,00 

226.50 
10,484.08 

$7.90 

Ytl 3 

S0.79 

◄0.46 

522.00 

ins 
1),394.98 

79.80 

24.42 
29.37 
24-86 

782.00 

226.SO 
I0,484,08 

57.90 

Tho C"on1µ3ny"s risk man:1ge.ment pollcic, "-ft Ul11blished to ide111ify u,d llti3ly;o 01e risks foced by tho Con,p:iny, lo set appropri1uc rlil< liflllls and controls, a.nd 10 monhor risks :1nd adherenco 10 limits. 
Risk' ma11:1il!ment policies and 5)'H1rni, lift, rciviewed regulnrly 10 roncc1 Ch3nii:.s in markc:1 co11dhlo11s ~nd lhu Comp.my'!; oe1ivi1i~s 
'fhc Oo;ud or Directors h.,.s. ovcrntl rosl)Oniibility for the eslilbli$1if'll~nl Ind oversight of the Com,>:hl)''t ri;k man.igemcnt fromcwo1k 
ln perfo rming it.s opelllliii.Q. 1nvu,1mii; :1nd rimmcing 11cfrv11lus, th~ Comp:my is cxpo$«t 10 1h• c,edil risk, Liquidi1y ri,k tnd C"urf(!flty risk. 

Mnrkrl Risk 
M,uket risk i$ 1hc ,1,k 11111 1110 fair value or future C4Sh nows of i1 lirn:mci11l iMlrUIOr.tlll ,~,11 nuctunlc bccoic.c or C~3i1.QOS In morket prices. Markel risk COmJ)riscs lhrec l)'pC$ of risk: l11ttrt!St nlle ri&t 
cur1ency 11,~ .011(1 Other price risk, such IQ cquhy ptlte risk and co1nmodh)' ,lsk. Fin:sm:iil1 lnstrumcntt, offi:.~•d by market risk include IO!l1i, Ind borroMngs, dcpo$ilS, FVTOCI inve,tme.flLS a,uJ 
iJur1\13li\·O fm~ncial instNmenlJi. 

Tho (ollowmr.:: table sumrruuize 1~c cartYlttY, &mount or fin.:mciDI mets tnd llab1lities rrcorded 111 tho. Cild or d1• p<"riod by C?atcgorics: 

lnl" '"'I ila lt, llitk 
Ai tnftt!llruC:lure developmem and COOSllUCtlon bu.5incn is capiu.il lnttn!iYc,, the compMy arc «r,o,cd t<t Interest rate risk.$. Tho con1pany't infr.utruc;ture dcvelop:n1,111 and c-onstruction prOJt(:t., ilrt! 
(undtd to a lilfl'e extent by deb, And fll'IY lnc::re35e in inte.rC:$1 expth.SC ,my hilvC an .advc,se effect Ori our ,nulls of opc1w11ion5 at1d nnancial ~ndition The contpa.oy CUiTenl debt facilitiC$ c,ny inlerest at 
Vilriiible rates III well o.s fixed r.11n with the provi,ioo ror porlodic re~ct of interest fil l;:8, A!J or March l I, :?024 , tho rnajof,IY or the cornp.iny indcb1ednv.!t was subject to \'.triable in1e,os1 m1is. In view of 
1he hlgl1 J'-bl 10 equity r.11ios for the comOll!lY'S lnfra~1ructure devclopmcm projects, ;m imm:iue in in1ores1 e~panse i, likely to h3vc a alanlf1c:int 3dvarse effed on nnitnclal resull5. The con1pn,1y Is 
selectively en~:i.gc in inttrC$-t m.10 hv<hi:ln~ tnulSadioru. from lln,c 10 1lme to prol«;I .ig:.inst inl«uCSI hUO risks. 

The intccesl ralc ritk c;,:poioro It nt:1i11ly from chtLng~ in fl•vd and nootins inter-est ro1e5, Tht lntuesl r;,te a.re disclo;ed In 1ho rcipcclive notes to the flnanclnl i1a1emont of the Company, 11,e following 
t.1ble 3nnly,5c the bt~k,lown of the fmanci11l mcls 11,od liobllltlos by type ofintercac ra10 ; 

FIIH1 11ti:1I IOJtls 
l11crrt1t b,nrin; 
• rixed inti:rcsl m1c 

Lo~n 
B~nk b3lance other thnn 111.,ovv 

Non intClrtH lm\rin; 
Lo:in.s 
o,~~ 
Ca.sh and cash equivalent 

lnvcSlmt'nl.5 

Fin1nd1I Llabllllles 
Interest bu rlne 
• n,cd lot~rc,1 tit& 

Bonowini., 

A,:11 

Mlt'<h 31, 101~ 

!22,00 

S0.79 
40 ◄6 

10,11 9,67 
-66.85 

( ~ ,n Millions} 
A,.1 

March 31, 202.l 

782.00 

14.◄2 
24,86 

72,82 

S,910.00 
.,o.64 Un3moni$td 1r11.11s.1ctlo11 co,t 

• liud i1ucr011 rat• 
Bonowings 4,000.00 

~CJ//~ 

4,000.00 
~J · · ~-~ 

No11 h1tcruf bcnri1iE, 
Borrowinr.:,s 
Trade •nd other P3r.>blc, 
Osher n,uocial h~bilitiH 

l,! 42. IS 
1) .23 
79.80 

( 

6S◄.72 

226.!0 
~7.90 



Soln1rnr Y,duhi Tolhvny Liml1, d 

Note, to fi11.p11clill ~•ntcme:nl tc;i1• Ute: yur t11dctl l\lnrch 31,, 2.014 

Liquidity risk l5 tho risk that the Company rnay not be able to m,et i1s prc.s,nl and fulun, c~'L!lh a.nd colh11,r.al oblivations without inc;unin¥ unac;c;eplablo los~s. Tho Comp;my's obj~tive is to. 111 all times 
mnin111in optimum levels of liquidity to meet il:5 cash ilnd colk1teral requirements. The Comp:my cfosel)' monitor, its liquidil)' position and deplo)'S a robust wh managem~nt !!)'Siem. II mninlllins 
od1.:qYt1t.1 5c:,urcE::fi offln:1ncing including debt and Qverdraft ftom ba.nksi a.I an oplimised cost. 

Tho Cor,u~ny n11;clmum ~)t'fl08Urc IQ crcdii ri;k fQr 1he components of the bnl11nce ,heel at Mnrch 311 ~014 ond M11rch l 1, lOi.l is lhe conyins 11mounls 115;. 

l in Million$) 
0 1ti.lll'mnud L,n _th1111 I :Z. month; 1 tg~~•an ~:5.);tM1 Tolnl 

A, :H J\Hnc-li~J,l0l4 
Do,rowlna! 1114::!.IS 5,165,00 1,954.61 1$,~61.U 
Other fin:,,m:;i;d liabilities 79.80 79.80 
T r.11 dc and 01hcr pu)'i1blC$ 10.19 3.08 13.28 

l i;!ll,14 s116a,oa 8,954,61 1siaS4.90 

"' Al MAl'fli JI, ion 
9orrowin&ii 114.82 539.90 9,329.36 10,484.08 
01l1cr r,npnciol li11bilitie:s ,1.90 ~7.90 
Tr~d• Rnd 011,or l)llyaM;;s i2~ ,o lZ6,$0 

ll4.112 824.30 9,!!2'1.l/i 10,763.43 

At present, Compa.ny doc!i expect to repily all liiJbilities al their contradual m.1turity. In order ID meet such c;uh commilmenl:5, operating tac1ivity is expected to generalc sufficient t:.1.Sh in nows. 

Por the purpos;e. of lhe: Comp:iny's co.pital management, c.Jpillll includes issued equity e.1pit:!I, convertible prefercm;e she.res, share premium and a.11 olher equity reserves a.ttribut-able to the cquily 
hold~, c:,r1ho C<1111p.i.ny, 'T'hc prim11.ry Qbjeclive or the Compilny'; c.ipiul mcm11gcmcnt is to nwciml$e the sha.reholdcr value. 

The Comp,my managl!s its C-3.pit3I ~11ucturc ~nd nukes o.dJustm&nts in lii:hl o(chtm~ltl In coonorni; t(mdillons and the ttf1ul<emc1111l ortllt nn:-.nc:i:al «JY•rt:a,na, io malrrntln ot ;1djus.11he c.:ipit..1I slruc1ure., 
the Comp;my mil)' adjurt the. dividend payment to sh:neholdcn, relum c.1pitnl to sh;ucholdcr!! or issue new shares. Tiu, Compo.n)' monilon c.apit11I usinJ a ¥il'>nin¥ raliO, which is net dcbl divided by total 
¢1\j)lto.l plus f'ICl d¢hl Th¢ CQmp1ny'$ policy is 10 ~eep Qptim1,1m 8Cilring ratio i.e. between 1~% tQ 9Qf/4. 1'he Company include; within net deb!, intere.st be.:arine lo.ans and borrowingli, trndc 11nd 01hcr 
poyubln, lo,; o;uh ~nd cosh •~ulvalo11ts, c»<cludin~ discontinued opcrai/0111, 

Borrowing~ 
Less: til!lh imd C-il!lh cquiv:thmH 
Nol dobl 

Equity 
Sub-ordinille dcbi 
foml 111ouso, ~ni1ol 
Cnpital nnd nrt drbl 
Oo,Jlng rn1lo (¾) 

A$ nt 
MM'C!o ~,. 1014 

1$,)94,98 
(40,46) 

(2,14$.81) 
4 209.67 

t !11 Mllll~111 
A111t 

M•1•eh ll, 202l 

10,484,08 
(24,8~) 

10,4!9,U 

(1,)01,21) 
4 423.70 

IJ:5RJ :7J 
71.0l 

In ou:h::r 10 achiuvo: this. ovwmll obJvc1lvo, lh\; C'ompanfa e3phnl mont'lgomcm, amonaH 01hin 1hings, tims. 10 onsurc. 111111 II mcots fimrnci11I covc:mmts Rill!tched 10 ihe- in,eres!•b~rins loans DfiJ bor,own1us 
lh.'it de£inu c.'iphal s1,uc1u,~ 111c1ulr~mcm1s. B,t-athe-5 111 mlll'id1ii thtl fin3ncial covenanlj would pennh the ~,1k 10 imtne.di31oly eiill loa,t9 i.md borrowl11g11, Tho10 ilavu be.en no b1oochcs ir, lha financial 
covcnDnts of any inlcrcst•bcilring, lo.1ns and borrowing in theeurnml period. 

No changes were made in the objcc.tivcs, poliC:ies or processc~ for milnD.ging c-apit.111 durin~ the ye.1r ended Miuc;h ) 1, 2024 and M;JJCh 3 I, 2023. 

Nole 29 i Sl;niflcnnl .1cco1111tin~ j11ds;,m,11i1 d limlilH .111LI ;m1umplio11, 

The prel}-Omtion or 1hc Con1p;my'$ n,1,n¢ia! 5~1erncnlt requir~ rn~n.119emenl 10 make judgement$, ¢:Si!imJ.le!, nnd D.S$Umplion; that affect the reported 1U11ounl5 or revenue, expenses, illsels and ti!.lbili1ji::9
1 

and tlic aceomp;111y{ng dlsclos11rc,, nnd lhc disclosure or eomingc111 liftbllill¢S. U11~naln1y abool lh¢Sc 11Siump1ioos 011d ¢Sfinllli¢S •o~I~ r¢Sull in outoom¢S !hgt require n m.,terinl n~jµslmc111 10 1ho 
c;myin.s, amounl of.uscts or li.abililies ilrf~tl.!d in futuro periods. 

Estimnlcs and ns:mmptions 
l!slimille:; and underlying .issumplions are reviewed on an onsoiuy, b~is. Revisions to ncc;ounlini; cslimalil's 3 r D rt!COiniz.cd in Iha pcilod i 11 which the iesftm~t\lS ~re revised 4nd futUfl!I P'!riOll! are .ufecled. 

Tho koy mu1np1lo,11 C<)11¢~htlnt tho future and 01hcr key source, or v&1l,n~1lo,1 u,;cortftl111y 01 1ho roportl•ill Jnto, thftt h~vo I slgnlfict1111 risk of Cll"slng ~ motcriol odjum11co1 10 the CO.IT)'lt1a a,nount! or 
11.Ssats ;,nd liabililies within tho noxt financ;i.111 )'t!.lf, .:ua deseribed below. The Comp3lly based i1s :s,; umplion! i111d estlmiltes on p(lnlniUter-; tivallable whM 1ho n1)fincl:11 Stitltmtinlf ~ ft Pr"tp:u,d. Existini: 
cir~unulnnce:; a.nd ILS5umptions about future de\'clopmcms, however, ma.y ch;mge due lo market d ta.nge.s or circumst.lnces ilrisins tho.I ore: beyond the control or the Company. Such chqng~ Ar¢ 

roOected Ii; th• &'5ul\1ptlon, '•hon 1hoy occur 

Rr.surfocin; E1penses 
As per 1hc Sorvlcu Coo"ss!on Agn.hJ:momJ1 1ho comp.111y ie obllg:ucd to c.-irl)' ou1 rcsurfbc{ng ohhc ro~ds. Uildcr concession, The company C$iimnlC$ 1hc likely provi:;.ion required lowordi rcsurfliclng nnd 
accrues the costs on a s1rai~h1 Una basis over tho pe.riod ot U1e t nd ar which rosutracin& would be requited, In 1h• s1ucmc111 of p,oflt and lo;s In ncco1d1mco \vilh Ind AS 37 "f,roV1sions, ConLinijent 
LinbilitiC:$ ond Contingent Assets. 

Amor1it.ntion of lnlaui,ibl, Assets 
Tho lllifa1t8Hd<: AiliCIS which p:rc r·ccogui2~d in the (9rm 9fRight lo charge ~ers or the infrDmuc1urc D.$5el ~re nmortized by tnkine proportiona.le of nctual revenue received for the yeill overTotnl Projected 
Rove,mv r,om 1uojc:~ 10 Cos( of hmioalbl" ASJQJ.s lhe csllm~1io11 of10J.QI projcc(ion revenue reqµ ircs ;ignincaol llUump1)Qn QbQut e,cpceted srow,h nue and traffic projection for future. /\I I 11S1urnp1ions 
.1re reviewe:d al cilch rcpor1 ln'1, dilto. 

Tnxes 
Tax expen!.c comprises or curnnt and dererred t.1X. Current ine-0ma we is meil!lured al tho .amount t,xpcc;ted to be p.iid lo thu W< authoritic!I in ilc;t;Ord3nto with the, lntome Tax Atl, 1961. Derernd ine-ome 
111:ccs rcflecl·i the implct of timing differences between wcoble income ilnd 11.c.counting income orii;inating, during the c.urrent period and revervl or timing. differenus of c.irlier )'Ciln. 

Do(crreJ ti.ii it 111,'<l!u11ld bas.d 011 1110 ta~ rmo, nnJ tho 10, la, .. coao!Cd or ,ub5ioOlivcly •n•md al the balance &heel dale. Deferred m• •n•lli ond deferred lox liabilities are cff,el, if lcgolly onroroeablc 
ri~ht exists to ,, H1ff eurront 1;, <t.,!ots •~oinn cuttont ••• ll•blllties ond tho do(offod 13'< ~"1'01$ a,,d d•f.rrod 1•• Habllltloo rolt 1<d 10 1ho ,.. .. on Income levied by ,~mo govemlog to,coiloo ta,vt. D• t••r•d 
trut n.ssels nre recognised only to the extent tlut there is reasonable c;ort:,,inty thJI sufficient ruturc taxi1ble income wi ll ba available :tgilin.SI whieh euch dofortcd w as!(;U c:&11 be t"'11i!std. In ehu.1tio115 v.1,ero 
1ho Comnany h~ un11bsorbcd dcprccig,lion or Cilf'TY f~mv~rd Ill IQ5.IC$, .11ll deferred Ul.'< assets arc r~ ogniud pnly ir there i.s virtwl cert.linty supported by convincing evidence lh.111 they am be rc.aliied 
ag.iimt fotu1e tu:,,ble profil!!. 

At l<!Ch btlAnCv jj;.el J~t• tho Co1111)l111y rv-•ss•i•" unr••o~niscJ JcfcrroJ ~X Asscli, II rccog11i5c; unrccogoi$CJ Jcfcrr~ IA~ ,~clli 10 1hc c..icnt 11••1 ii ~~ become •=onnbly certnin lh•t ,umcleoc f\liuro 
l:1x.ibla income will bo ~v~ilablis tl~.iil'l!l whith ~uch dtlfaft'Od lflX 3!Sal! C4n be r~liscd Ot Yhtu:illy C(lrl:\lrt ts 1ho C4Sll 1'1'1!\}' be, 

The c myini amount or deferred lax: as!!cls 11.u:1 revi~!rYCd .it e.it h b;dtmca sheet d3le. Tiu, Com~n)' ,vrlle:;-down lhO C;!srryin~ iimOunl or 3 Jercrrt J l;uC. DOOi 10 lhO Ci'ilc1\1 lh3l h ii no km~rr re.uonilbly 
certa in or virtunlly certain, ns the cil!ie m:,,y be, th.at .sufficient folure tnxJ.blr: income will be avililable 11gilinsl wbioh deferred I.ix il.S.set c..in be rc.ilised. Any such w1ile<t-down is rcver!!ed to the: extent 1hot ii 

bo<-OttM resuon11blr ••rill lo or vl rrnolly «nol,,, a, lho ~s• m.,y bc, 111111 ouffici•ou futwo 1~,;ablc lnoom• wlll b• nv'niloblo ~F. ~!I,,. ~ 

L)¥) 
~~ ~,, :::7 



So1;11mr l'tdrshi Tolhuy Llmlte:d 

Nalts 10 flnnndal :11n1emc11f rrJ:r Uifi )'t~r tndt'd l\tnrch 311 2-024 

Minimum i1lternn1ive fllx (MAT) cr¢dl1 ls ttcoc:nts<!d M iln 1155el only when and 10 the e1mrn11111.'!hl is tonvinc;ini; evidence l~t lhc CQmp'1_ny wJII iJ~Y ln~rhG l3}( hi1i1hor lh;m th.11 computed U1ld\\r' MAT, 
during the period ll~C MAT hi Jltf1ni1100 to be ,ct off under the lnct;imc Tq;l< A,;11 1961 (specified period). In the ye.1r, in which jhi, MATeredh bv<:omOS oli$ible to be re<,ognis~ 11S an tu;~e:1 i il atcord;mce: 
whh 1110: f~01f\mendntlons tonlained in the guidance n()tc i,s1,.1ed by tlio ln~1itut1J of Chme,ed At.(;ount1mts r;tf lndi; OCAl)

1 
iho said i..5;et l!i Crl\ilted by \Vil)' of il 1m~di1 10 lh~ Sffl1omom or l)rofit and lo.n 

i\nd shown .is MAT t1edit entitlement Th¢ CornJ)~1iY ,e.vlu,._., lhu 5ame at e,111h b;ilance s;hcet d1110 a1,d wrltvt down the C-iJrT)'ing amount of MAT credit eflliilem~t 10 the "xtc,111 there i~ nQ lonyer 
ronvincing evidence l(l 1he e:ffcc11ht1 th~ Co,npa.ny will p3y income liJX higher t!u,n !\,·1AT dl!•htQ the 11petified period. 

Note JD: Di1clo111rt1 wlih l'<~Rrd ID Toll Coll.ctlon Right, (lnl••~IMo AS!OI!) ; 

N111 11t ot Co11,tuf<ninir., Sol~"•r Y,d,.hl Tollwoy Llmlttd 

S1.ut or concc~ion period _un(lor coilCQfislon aartement (Appointed diJle) 11lnu1UV21 2015, 
End or concession ocriod undor eo111;~~lon 31:1cement Aoril :!O, 2044, 
reriod o( tOntession since the appointecf 4n1c 29 )'C01r5, 

Ct1f\&lntclion co111plo1iM d3te or scheduled construction <!Ompl~tion da!@ undtr 11io to11te.5S1on 
Ql:UOOmttil as :4pp)lt.ible Oct ob;; Is, 2019 

The above DOT/ OBFOT projecli &h~II hnvo (ollowin{:: tlJi:ht.s/ obligntions in u1;;1;ordant1e whh 1ho Conc"81lon As;rel!ment entered inlo with the RC:$peciivo CiovOfnmtnl Authoritie:i:• 

ll klglus to ugc 1J1e Spe~ified 11s:1ets 
b. Oblii;Mions to provide or righu 10 CM~¢1 provh,011 o( services 
c. Obligations 10 doli1i1vr or nahu 10 n~eeive .it the end crtJ,c Conce$si<in 

Nol, 31 : Disclosures H pe.rlndA.S 115~ 
u) D1,ncerte~llo11 or N,Vtlliff, rtom conlrnct, with customtl'S 

The: c;:omp;iny bolio:vo; 1h01 lho inConnitlion provided below for R~O!i\hi 0-om O~mllon,, is sufficient to meet ihc di5c!o.1urv o~jiJ:etlVei whh rospec;t to dis.1ggre9.1tion or rcvcrwo uoder Ind AS 115
1 

l(ownuv rrortt Conlra~ts with Customers and 111;0 refer noto (b), 

Con1rnc1 Rvvcnuv {ro(ur nOle b below) 
lntom1' ftom loll i::ollection (nc1} (re~r note b below) 
Tolnl 

I,) Rtt011cili,i1io11 ornnnue n, per Ind A$ 115 

Pnr1ic11in1'S' 
Co1111't'ci Rtve,rn~ 
Co1t8lrnc1io11 rev8nuu (ulility shifiin9) 
Tolnl Conlrad Revenue 

Income. from loll colltttlon 
Toll Revenue (Oro1i) 
Lm: Nl1AI Pro,1110111 
Lt1~s : NliAt Revenue sh.1rc ~ J711Slng 
Tolnl Toll lte:veuu~ (Ncl) 

Panlculu 
Proo, 8,:for, TlllC 
Sl;,tutory Tax rale 
Adju!itmcn~ rccQQni&cd lo 1he Current ynr in 
rohu/on 10 1ho cur11,1l'l1 t.tx of Prior ye.11'3 

Note l3 : Od1e:r SinCulory ln(unmHiOri 

77.70 
1.262.◄6 

I 40.17 

77.70 
77.70 

1,272,76 

Mlfth 31.1024 

(844.IJ) 

25.17% 

0.47 

Mnrch 311 2023 
• 3.32 
1,278,3$ 
1.281,67 

' Million, 
Mnrch 31, 102;! 

3.32 

l,l.?S 10 

( ~In MIiiion 
M<m.h Jl; ZOZl 

122s.•c1 
2S,17il 

i) The Coml){I.HY havo nOl lr.lded or invest~ in Ccypto currency or Vin~al Curroncy durin,!i: lhts fitr.1nc:i.1l )'e.i!.r. 
ti) The Company does not hold bf!nami prQpcrty llnd no proecedlne, under BenDmi 1nms11.a1ion (Prohibition) A~ l PH havt b~cn initi111ed D.¥:tinst the romp~y. 
iii) The Comp,my do not have any lrRriiOCliof\, with comp.tnie-s :ilruck off. 

iv) 'fhc Con1p;my h11vo 1101 any such tran~:iction which is not rceordcd in 1he l>ooks or 3CC.Ounl! th.1t h:1S been surrendered Qr di5clQsed u lncomv dut111Q the }'oar in the bx .issC!'.sment; ,md~r 1ho (11001111, 

T1r,c Act1 1961 (imeh ?H;!l'.ireh or survey or any other n:lewm provis.lOfli or 1ho lncomo Tax Acl, 1961. 

v) The Comp3ny huvr; not ttt-elved iln)' fond from .a.ny person(1) or vml(y({va). lnciudlna fore:.ii;n enlilics (Funding P11ny) whit 1110 u11d1t,,tlndln1i1 (whether recorded in writing gr 01hc-rv,1;0) th,11 lhe 
Com1,;,1y shoil: 
(1l) di,~clfy Of h1dlr'tetly hmd or invest in oihcr periQni ar emiilca identified In i1n)' manne:.r wh;itsocver by or on bernltrof 1ho fundin& P3rt )' (Ullim:itc Benclici.1rif.S) or 
(b) provide any guiJranleCi :;ecurily or th\il Hkv on bcl11lf or the Ultima.te Bcncfitfarics. 
vi) The Comp:1py hgve 001 ndvanco Or l~m:!d or invesled (either from borrowcJ r,,mJ or !lhUO pnimium or any other _sourC!c or kind off\md) by 1hc co111t13ny 10 or in a.ny person(s) or cnti1y(ics), lncludintc 
ror~jgn omhl~ {tUl\dil'I~ Plrly) will1 the understnnding (wheihcr recordcJ in wrhini;i or otherwise) lh.11 the Compnny sh111l; 

(.1) directly or indircatly lend or i11ve5i In 01h11r perso,1s or ttnlilil!S identified in ,my manner whal$oever by or On bch:\I( ottha Company (Ultimate Dcne.fici.arics) or 
(b) provide Qny gu.an1m~o. 8tlCLHlty or the like on beh.11£ of the Ultimnte De:nenc:iorles, 
vii) The Compilfl)' did not have .1ny long•tem1 conlr'1Ci$ inclyJlna dvrf~1lve con1raet for which there we.re any 1nntcri1111I foresei::ablo 10!!01, 
viii) The Comp.1ny h.J.S not dednrcd A wlll\11 dQR\uh~r by tinY bank/ fin.111cia.l inslitution or .11.ny oiher li::nd,:r (hnln(& tl\O Ytar. 
ix) Con1pn,'ly hp5 u,cd 1ho borrowln\l,S Crom b:mk5 ilnd financi:11 i11$fitutiQn;. for sp(cine purpose (or whit:h it v.'ils bken .al the bnla.nce 5h~i d~1c 



Soln11ur \'ed~hi Tollway Limilfd 

N<tlM 10 Ommchd stntemcnt far thr )'tilr tntl~d l\1fi1'C:h )I, JU?4 

NOi\\ J4 ! O!h~1• nnnnclnl infommtion. rl'lli'1t 
Tht ac..::ourilll'\g r::nios; required derived from tho R$~t~ltd f iMn<:lal lnro,motion under clausa 11 of Part A of Schedule Vl oflht SEBl JCDR Regul.o.lians are given below: 

P■rticnlnn ilOte. ,'tfCl't'IICC 
AJ11t A,1 at 

% Vniiwe• Nernnrks I M•rch JI, 20l◄ ~l~l'c:h 31, 2023 

C!Jfl\:n! l'lli1Jb:L\1cJucal ui1 atcuW1l fflf1.l,iuc1 jm in 

Current r.atio (in timt':5) • o.~? 0.99 •GI¾ cwroot as~b In PYl4 ~ ~•Hlv.nl rrovlnoo ol' 
~,g(fKlns 

Adjusted CUff0ill R111io ( in limes) b 6.30 3.16 93% 
C\Jflqll 1111D ha i:n1'1(uY1.-J 0'1 ~ OUnl or n:JU1:liuii 

in oum nlass~ mcJ ,1im111 .li.1t,ili1i9!f: in P'fl;1 

!Jobi~ ~q11i1y Rolio e l.Ol 1,02 O¾ 

Debt Servico Covora:1:e Rn1lo d ?. 18 2.14 2% 

ThG reduction in rA.Uo i5 m.ainly on 

Rowrn on ~qui,y (ROE): •JJ¾ 7'/4 -S6~\~ 
ao<ounl or aub dob1 ond 1ho11 m,n loM 

• becoming interest ~.1rin4t Upon the lislins 
or1ho 11nhs or Tm! w.e f.3,d i\priUOZ) 

l,1von1"~ Turnover Rnlio NA NA NA 
Tnldo ttcclvabl.s 4y,nov,r raiio /no. of da,-sl NA NA NA 

Trado po~bl.s 1ut,;over fij1io (no. ofd.y,) r 127 288 -56% 
Holding entity h.o.s infus.rd sub debt which 
wos UjCd IQ poy oITlhe trade P•)~bl.,. 
J U< nrr n, ., ... 

Net profit ratio -Q)¼ •i8¾ l l 8% 
nceount ohub debl ond short term lonn 

B li~omin.: inleri:51 b~fiog upon ,h~ listinK 
,- -- . ......... ,. 

Nvt ~p!t.AI 1umover nitio h.o.s. h11provcd 

Ncl capilnl turnDv,n r.1110 h J,78 1.97 ')l¼ On 0¢¢0i.iiil or r~dwc1ion in \VOtkine 

~pital. 

Relum on topi13l <n1ployoJ (ROCE} i 14''• 14% ..ii, 

NOIO I 
.a. Current ratio (fll thncs) , C~ncnt ,.USeti / Current liabi lities 

b. A<iJus1cd Current ril1i0 (in times): Current Ass,t, / Cum'lli\ 111'bllhles less (inlQf~t acorucd but not duc-t-short Tenn prdvision o(Rv1urrAcl"g) 

o. Debt , ~quity ralio : Tolal Dobl divided by El\11hy 
d. D<ib1 $4fvice Coverage Rntio (DSCR) (no. of times) : r,or.t bv(1J1<i: l1ltctCSl and r,covis.iQn ror m.1jor m.iinlenilnce (non c:.ish), dlvidtJ by h1tercst e~~ruie (nel of moratorium inlere:st, interest cost on 
unwimJint: (IOrlfi 1um1 \H\iC~t,Jrcd lo.in;) and .:1mortisation of lr.111.SilCtion C:011) IOKUIIM wilh repay111en~ of long term debt during the purfr,d (r\(HlCd ort IO 1ho <:"tent of long tt:m1 looms availt;:d durin~ the 
s.11111e period for lhe rtpa)'mCnt) 

e. ROE ~ NCl (1wn!s ant:r u,xc:. / Avcmga Sluireholder's Equity. 
(. Trade p.1:yi1bles turnovGt t.11!0 • Not Cr; dl1 PurchAi¢.$ I Average T~de P.iyablcs 11 No of d:1p. 
K Ni;;i prQfil 11111rgin (in ¾) : profit ilfler til.'i. / Rcvcnuo t,·om Op4jNUIOI), 
h. Ncl oap1131 luillOVOf hllio = ~¢1 S~l<:$ 1 Working Capibl. 
I, ft¢1Um Qn api131 employed (ROCE.)• E.rnlrtg boforo lrii.r¢11 ~nd 1qxcs / Copital Employed (Copitoi Employt J g TR1!!1lble Ne! Wonh + To1nl D<bl + Dermed Tax Liobil ily) 

N(lte l~ I Dnsb ar 111"C'pRmiiun orfim'm(iitl i li)i0111'1'11f8 
The CompJny h11s; pi~ented these slandiilone nn~l1¢fo] u\(Or!!ltulOil ( for ntl the periods; presented there in ) in 3C:«nd3.J\CO whh th~ 1~quir,:11,c::nt of Sc.hedule 111 .. of the. Com~ni1's A¢1 , 2013 includin~ 
i'11'11C1\dOlCllll lh~re10, effective from April Ol ,'2021. 

Note J6 : Trade ncrlv■ble.s 
Co11co1m~tion of credit risk with r~pec;:t lo trade rccc,1v:1bl~ ,Ho l1IKh, J ue to the Company'$ customer b.ise being limited. All 1racJ• tt cuiv1b)1;:.S ore ,cviewed and .o.ss~ed far default on .o. qu,:nte.rly biui:s. 
D3.:lcd on lilstorlc.~1 cxpcr!enc:c of collecling receiwbl!:!!i inditato ti low ct.adit tlsk, 

The followini= uabft i)rovM~ lofon,,:.tio!1 '!bout tho 11gcing of g,rou t.trryin,.: amount oru3dc ro~lvvsblcs ~ \11 : 

Oi1dl1J1uled Trnde rtcinnbln -tCliUidt rtJ eood 
Commct 11~ets (unbilled revenue) 
No1 Juu 
l~s than 6 Months 
<i, momhi. I ye.ii 
1-2 Y« Hi 
MYm, 
M(lril: 11!n11 'l cars 
Totnl 

AU i 
Morch J 11 lOH 

JU In mlllions 
AHi 

M••••h 3 1121)23 

29.l? 



Solnpur V•duhl 'rollwny Llml!td 
Notu 10 finnncinl 1tntcmcnt for Iii< yc11r ended Morch 31, 2024 

Note J7: Rrlat<d 1,ortic~ Dilclosurr• 

Nnmcs of re!pt'11.J~ 

Holdinr Co011rnny 
lllB lnfmstmclurc Tnm ( w.c.r. 26/02/2020) 

Fellow Subsldlnry 
IRB Wcslconsl Tollwny Limi1cd (IRBWTL) 
AE Tollw:1y limilcd (AETL) 
Ycdcshi Aurangobod Tollway l..imiled (YATL) 
Koilhnl Tollway Llmilcd (KTL) 
Palsh Oankuni Tollwoy Priva10 Llmilcd (PDTPL) 
S•m•khiynli Tollway Private LimiJcd (STPL) 
IRB KolO Tollw•y Priv~teLi1niled 

CO Tollway Limited (COTI.) 
Kishangorli Oulabpurn Tollway Limhed (KOTL,) 
IRB liopur Morndabad Tolllvay Limi1cd (IRBHMTL) 
Udaipur Tollway Limited (UTL) 
IRB Golcottda Exprcsswny Priva1c Liuiilcd (IOEPL) 
IRB Lali1pur Tollway Priva1e Limited (IL TPL) 
IRD Gwalior Tollway Priv•••Limitcd 

Substdlnry ro11111ony or Sponsor (Only with w'1om thoro hnv• bocn trunsnctlons d urlna lhc yur/ thoro wo• bal.lncc outatondlng 0 1 du period end) 
Mooem Road Makers Privolc Limited 

Key Mnnnaemcnt Personnel 
M&, Shilpa Tod1111kru-, Olrocior 
Mr. Abh:1y Phalak, Dircetor(w.d. 09,03,2022) 
Mr. Jilcndrn Shnnuo, Dircclor (uplo 28.02.2022) 
Mr, Ocvcndra Rnnka. Chief Fi11oncinl Officer (w.o.f. 10, 11 ,2022) 
Mr. M,,.,.h Knmnriyo, Compru,y $ocn:lory (w,c.f.01 .12.2022) 

S1n1cmcnt of Trnnsoctlon, wilh Rclntcd Pnrtlos 
For the 1,crioJ frllnt April 01, 1023 to Murch 31, 1024 

n) Rclnttd Parry 'rr:ln$nction1 

Mr. Chnndrashekhnr Kaplan, Oir~tor 
Mrs. Hccttn RllJII, Dircc1or (upro O i.10.2021) 
Ml'$, Rrutjano Pnranjopo, Oireclor (w.c.f. 06. I 0.2021) 
Mt.Jalprnka:;h Nnndi, Chief Executive Officer (w.o.f. 10.11.2022) 
Mr&. Rishlka R~wnl, Compnny Secretory (w,cJ.20,02.2024) 

P:.r 1kul:1r 
Holdina Comp~11y 5tl0flt0r .uu.l Project MAOAgrr Subsidl•ry com~nny orS110111or Key Ma.nS11,cmt11 l Pcrsonnrl 

Mnr-24 Mn,.13 Mn,.14 Mn,·-2.3 M•r-14 M~r-2.3 MAr-14 Mar•2l 

Subordinolc Oehl - Rccelvttl 1?9.47 - . . . 
IRD Jnfr;nll'\ICt\lrc. Ocvc:loptrs Limited . 
m.n l11£ra11mcrnro Tt\19t 29~.47 . 
Subordinutc Debt - Paid 513.50 . . . 
IRD lnfr.111n1c111rc Oovtlop,rs LimiJcd . 
IRD lnfrnslruclUru Tru!I $13.SO -
Short 1.,,-111 borrowing• • l'nid 2'.UO . 90,U . 

IRD 111nastru,1uro OcvC!l0pers Limited 90.82 . 
mo 1nfr11S1ruc1oru Trmt 14.00 

OJ1ernlion & Mnl111c-n;mo 18f,J3 175.9G -
IRD lnfrnstruclurc Ocvclopq11 Llmiled 188.38 175.96 

CotHt'Atl l~ Silt Expenses 77.10 1,90 
Modern Robd M3km Privolc 1,imllcd . 77,70 1.90 

Ex11,11 sd incurred on bthsal t or (Oitlj)Ji.n)' 0.01 . 
IRD l11fm1rucwrc Tnut 0.01 . . 

Rclmb11rscm1C'Ut or tXl)tilSts illCUITCd 011 
0.01 

btth;dr or compnny 
IRD lrunuwcrure Dtvtloptrs Limited 001 

Rettnl iOn I JJcld u1• nmomu rtltRSttJ . 0,)8 . 

Modem Ro;ad M.aker5 Priva1c Lln1it&I . . 0.38 

Re1ention / Held 11p nmounl . 9,58 . 6,0 . 
IRD lnfr:istruc.ture Developers Ll11\ittd - 9 $8 
Modem Roild Milkers Prlva1e Limited 6.48 

Interest on u11uturcd lonn 1,1?2,lS SGu.0I> . . 

IRB lnfr .. lntCIUIO Trust l, l~l.2S 560.00 - . 

ln1errst rnid an uu5ec11rtJ loan 390.00 567.50 . . . . 
IRD fnrrastruclure Tn1u 390.00 567.SO 

Dimlor Sluing ft<t . . o.n 0.30 
C.S. Koplon . 0.09 0.07 

Shilpn Todankor . 0.11 0.09 

AbhoyPhmk . . . 0.07 0 0$ 
Raniana Pafi111i1rnc 0.10 oos 



Soln1iur Yctlt,hl Tollwny Lhnltctl 
N'Clfts to r.mtrtelnl shlrerue-nt rt)r the year tndcd Marth 311 2024 

b) Rrlol•dbrtx.Jl•lmm:.t 
< " inMillioa,\ 

Pnrliculnr Holding Company Sponsor nnd Projecl Mpnaaer Sob1ldlory compn11y of Spon,or Ke,y M~m1:genuim Ptnonm~I 

Mnr•24 M•r-23 Mnr•:14 Mnr•23 Mnr-24 M•f-23 M:-.ia-2,;I Mor•2l 

Sllort ltrm borrowings - 14.00 90.82 . . -
HU} lnfr'1$irvc1ure Developer$ Limited ?0.82 . 
11!.B Ir11'rn1lruc1urn Tr,m 24.00 -

Lo"t ttrm borrowh121 4.000.00 4,000.00 - - - - . 
JRB 1nrras1ruc1u1'!l Trust 4,000.00 4,000.00 -
Sul.}-clelH UlkNI 4,109.67 ◄,UJ,70 . . -
IRD lnfraslructure Trust 4,209.67 4,421.70 

Trade Pf1)'llble 144.14 2.08 7B6 
IRfl Infrni;lmcture D!!vetopers Limited - 144, 14 - -
Modem R<.ll!d Maker; rrlvn10 Llmhoid 2.08 75.56 

lii!eH!ll l>~Yrtble Oli Unsttllrtd Lonll 1,341.15 53?.90 . . -
JRB Infrastmcture Trust 1.l4l IS $)9,!)0 - -

Other ilAYAblc 4.8? U? - - . 
IRB lnl'rASlf\lClUto TI\Jll 4.39 4.89 -
Rt 1r111io11 l\1ont'J P;i,Ylihlt! 15.64 6,06 6,48 0.31 -
Modem Ro;id M.sken Printc Limilcd 6.48 0.38 -
11\ll li10·os1111c1ure Developers Llmhcd 15.64 6.06 

DlrrElor Sllflna Frrs Paynbh: - - - 0.16 0.08 
C.S. Koplnn . . 0.03 0 oz 
R~ujitm:1 P:ir:mjitpe 0,05 0.02 
Shilpa Todonkor - - - 0.0~ 0,02 
Abhay Pholok 0.03 0.02 

Trn111 011d e0111lltlo•1J or ll'AIIIRCIIOII! with !'elAied PA11k3 
I, The compimy in the cour~e of our bu;ineH h;ive cn!crcd i11IQ vgriCJlJEi m11\JllJ;.tio115 with rclotcd parties, These irfl!lSC1(:IIOll5 include operation end moinlcna.»co charscs paid for opera.lion and 
nialnlcnlRrlet :iCtMtit!! !\Jb-e61llr8Cttd, loimJ and aJvancn, c:cr1.iin rood work cxpcn.J(ls for road work contrilcted lo the project of the comp11ny. The lr.ms;ict ions wilh rcliltcd putic; arc mo.do on 
mms cqul••lcnl 10 those 1ha1 prcvllil In arm's leng1h 1ra1l>actlons. 
2., Out;t;mding bil.fonces ai !he period-end nrc 11n5ec.urcd t1nd inlcrcsl fr« and scHlcmcm occurs In ~sh1 

3. Thc,c have been no guomniccs provided or rccclvc<l for any rnlotod pany recolvnbie, or pfiyobl••· 

4. For reporting period ended, lhe company ha, 1101 r•~ord~d gny impoim,cnl of r~civoblcs rela1ing io ~JllOUlllJ o._,J by r.:IA1cd 1;a11I,! Thi~ u,s"-!!lli<lli Is u11dottuko1i Moh r.ponln& period through 
;,.~amlnlnu 1ho ri11ancldi poshlon 0(1110 r,iattd p&11y and lht 111;rk•1 In which 1hc, rolotod porty opmlo.s. 

Ng(e 18 : Sramrnf tnrot'HHlt!on 
Tho Compony lw idonlified one bu,inc" ,cgmonl in accorda11cc with lh• lndion Accounting SlondRrd 108 •Opornling Sc11monl" notiOcJ u11dcr Section 133 or111• Companie, Act, ZOl 3 road logother 
\.Villi role't't11111ulcJ l!iillNi 1lieftund1!r'. 



Solnpur Y@d@shl Tollwny 1.imltcd 
NolM lo n11,mch1I srnicmcnl for lhc ycnr ondtd Milrch jJ, 2024 

Nole J9 : E\'enli nfccr repotth,g li(ltiOd 

There is no i;:ul>scquem C\'(lfll anet lhl! reporting period whh:11 rcqulrn1 :idjuslmcnts ta the finont.iol s101en1ofi1!. 

Note 40 : Previous period tompRrnth·rs 
Previous poriod'a figures h:ivc been rtgrolJJ)cd/n~clu!llied, wherever necesJO,ry1 10 ~onnrm 10 turre!nt period'~ clil$5ifi.:silfon 

As per our rcpon tilll even date 

l'or M K r S ,'I< Auo,i111cs 
Chancred Accou 111a111f 

Plrm's Ro~J No.3020141! 

CA, Vosudov Snndonlils Mnlln 
P"l'hl~t' 

Mcmbcrship No.0469S3 

f•i~co; Mun,b•i 
Daie , 23/041202•1 

For ond on behalf oflhc Boord of Dircc1ots or 
Solopur \ 'cd<1hl Tollw•y Llnt11,d 
CIN : U45400MH2014PTClSi98J 

Phtce: Mumbai 
Dole : 23/04/Z0l4 

Chiar Finilnci.il Oflker 

Plocc; Mumbai 
Da1c ; :Z3/04/l02•1 

~ Shllpa Todonknr 
Dlrcc1or 
DIN: 0868391 0 

Placo: Mumboi 
Dole , 23/04/2024 

~~ 
~ I 

Co111p&11y Soorelary 

Place: Mun1bpi 
D•!c • l )I04/l0l4 

~ 
J olpntkosl~ 
Chief Exow1uve Officer 

Plaea: Mumbni 
Dalo : 23/0<l/2024 
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